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General Notice No. 1427 of2020

LEGAL SUPPLEMENT

The undermentioned Government Notices are 
published in the Legal Supplement to this number 
of the Government Gazette :

The Construction Industry Development Board 
(Registration of Consultants and Contractors) 
(Amendment No. 2) Regulations 2020.

(Government Notice No. 235 of 2020)

The Copyright (Fees) Regulations 2020.
(Government Notice No. 236 of 2020)

Prime Minister’s Office, 
Port Louis.

This 10th October, 2020.

General Notice No. 1428 of2020

PRISONS BOARD OF VISITORS

In accordance with section 53 of the Reform 
Institutions Act, the Honourable Prime Minister, 
Minister of Defence, Home Affairs and External 
Communications, Minister for Rodrigues, Outer 
Islands and Territorial Integrity has reconstituted 
the Prisons Board of Visitors as follows:

Chairperson: Mrs Ida DOOKHY-RAMBARUN, 
Ag. Vice-President, Intermediate 
Court (Criminal Division)

Members: Ms Damini Ruvita DHOOKY,
Senior District Magistrate

Mr Alvin JOYPAUL, Senior 
District Magistrate

Mrs Marie Esthelle Magalie 
LAMBERT-HENRY, Senior 
District Magistrate

Mr Mahesh BEEHARRY, Principal 
State Counsel

Mrs Hewantee LUCKEENARAIN, 
Commissioner of Probation and 
Aftercare

Mr Lynlay Christophe Arnaud 
MOOROOVEN

MrPrithiviraj Singh RAMPURS  AD 

Mr Rengasamy MARDAYMOOTOO

Date: 07 October 2020

Prime Minister’s Office 
(Rodrigues, Outer Islands 

and Territorial Integrity Division)

General Notice No. 1429 of2020

POST DECLARED VACANT

The Public Service Commission has, in 
accordance with regulation 43 of the Public Service 
Commission’s Regulations 1967, as subsequently 
amended, decided to declare vacant with effect 
from 05 December 2019 the post of Attendant 
(Hospital Services) (on shift) in the Ministry 
of Health and Wellness held by Miss Renouka 
DASANI for being absent from duty without leave.

APPOINTMENT

Mr Arnasalon PONNUSAWMY, Lead 
Analyst has been appointed as Director (Economic 
and Finance) in a temporary capacity with effect 
from 15 September 2020.

Mr Mahess RAWOTEEA, Lead Analyst 
has been appointed as Director (Economic and 
Finance) in a temporary capacity with effect from 
15 September 2020.

Mr Dutt JINERDEB, Deputy Permanent 
Secretary at the Office of the President has been 
assigned the duties of Secretary to the President 
at the Office of the President from 24 August to 
25 September 2020, during the absence on leave of 
Mrs M. Mudaliar, Secretary to the President.

RETIREMENT

Mrs Rajwantee RAMRUKHEEA, Permanent 
Secretary, Ministry of Social Integration, Social 
Security and National Solidarity (Social Integration 
Division), will retire from the Service on 
08 November 2020 in accordance with Section (8) 
of the Pensions Act, as subsequently amended.

Ministry of Public Service, 
Administrative and Institutional Reforms
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First Publication

General Notice No. 1430 of2020

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 6)

Notice is hereby given that three (3) portions of 
land situate at Allée Brillant, Floréal in the district 
of Plaines Wilhems are likely to be acquired by 
the State of Mauritius for the public purpose of 
Improvement of Road Safety along Floréal 
Road (B5).

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 15 (SerialNo. 15) of an approximate 
extent of three hundred and seventy square metres 
(370 m2) is to be excised from two contiguous 
portions of land of an extent of (i) five and four 
tenths square perches (0A 5 4/10 P) or two hundred 
and twenty seven and ninety three hundredths 
square metres (227.93 m2) and (ii) twenty eight and 
four tenths square perches (0A 28 4/10 P) or one 
thousand one hundred and ninety eight and seventy 
three hundredths square metres (1198.73m2) 
belonging to L.SHING LTD as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume TV 1198/55 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South East by former Floreal Road.

Towards the South West by Floréal Road (B5).

Towards the North West by Portion No. 16 
(Serial No. 16) hereinafter described.

Portion No. 16 (Serial No. 16) of an 
approximate extent of fifteen square metres 
(15 m2) is to be excised from a portion of land of 
an extent of nine and three quarter toises (9 % T) 
or thirty seven and four hundredths square metres 
(37.04m2) belonging to Heirs Issoop FATNOO 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 1126/21 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South East by Portion No. 15 
(Serial No. 15) above described.

Towards the South West by Floréal Road (B5).

Towards the North West by Portion No. 17 
(Serial No. 17) hereinafter described.

Portion No. 17 (Serial No. 17) of an approximate 
extent of eighty five square metr’es (85 m2) is to be 
excised from two contiguous portions of land of 
an extent of (i) five and four tenths square perches 
(0A 5 4/10 P) or two hundred and twenty seven and 
ninety three hundredths square metres (227.93 m2) 
and (ii) twenty eight and four tenths square perches 
(0A 28 4/10 P) or one thousand one hundred and 
ninety eight and seventy three hundredths square 
metres (1198.73m2) belonging to L.SHING LTD 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 1198/55 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South East by Portion No. 16 
(Serial No. 16) above described

Towards the South West by Floréal Road (B5).

Towards the North West by River Walk Lane.

Date:01/l 0/2020

The Honourable Louis Steven OBEEGADOO
Minister of Housing and Land Use Planning

Ebene Tower 
Ebène.

First Publication

General Notice No. 1431 of2020

LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 6)

Notice is hereby given that a portion of land 
situate at Petite Rivière in the district of Black 
River is likely to be acquired by the State of 
Mauritius for the public purpose of upgrading the 
Pointe aux Sables Road (B31).

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 74 (Serial No. 74) of an 
approximate extent of twenty square metres (20 m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of two 
hundred and twenty six and six hundredths square 
metres (226.06 m2) belonging to Heirs Deokharan 
SOMRA as evidenced by title deed transcribed in 
Volume TV 7638/68 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North by State Land 
[TV201901/000477].

Towards the East by the surplus of land.
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Towards the South by an exit road three metres 
and five centimetres (3.05m) wide.

Towards the Westby Pointe aux Sables Road (B31).

Observation is hereby made that this present 
notice under Section 6 of the Land Acquisition 
Act deletes and replaces the description of Portion 
No. 74 (Serial No. 74) in the previous notice given 
under Section 6 of the Land Acquisition Act dated 
08/02/2018. and published in the Government 
Gazette in its issues of 03/03/2018 and 17/03/2018 
under GN 269 of 2018 and GN 409 of 2018 
respectively.

Date: 30/09/2020

The Honourable Louis Steven OBEEGADOO 
Deputy Prime Minister 

Minister of Housing and Land Use Planning 
Minister of Tourism 

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

First Publication

General Notice No. 1432 of2020

LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land situate at Phoenix in the 
district of Plaines Wilhems for the public purpose 
of Early Enabling Works for Metro and Road 
Interface at Palmerstone.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 2 (Serial No. 2) [PIN 1734510227] 
of an extent of twelve and sixty one hundredths 
square metres (12.61 m2) is excised from a portion 
of land of an extent of twenty six and sixty five 
hundredths square perches (0A 26 65/1 OOP) or 
one thousand one hundred and twenty four and 
eighty six hundredths square metres (1124.86 m2) 
belonging to Mr Francis Kwok Yin SIONG YEN * 
bom on 06/10/1939 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number S0610390118230 as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 1057/1 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the surplus of land 
on three lines measuring one metre and fifty six 

centimetres (1.56m), two metres and fifty one 
centimetres (2.5 Im) and two metres and fifty three 
centimetres (2.53m) respectively.

Towards the South by a pavement along 
Palmerstone Road (Bl26) on a developed 
length measuring four metres and ninety three 
centimetres (4.93m).

Towards the West by State Land (Phoenix 
Bus Terminus) on six metres and forty four 
centimetres (6.44m).

The whole as morefully shown on a 
plan registered at the Cadastral Unit of the 
Ministry of Housing and Land Use Planning as 
ACQ/75/000557, drawn up by Mr. Tamayah 
JUGGIAH, Land Surveyor on the 07/08/2020.

The plan may be inspected by the public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Land Use Planning, Ebene Tower, Ebene, during 
office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen days of the 
second publication of this Notice in the Gazette a 
written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim 
for compensation.

Date: 01/10/2020

The Honourable Louis Steven OBEEGADOO
Deputy Prime Minister

Minister of Housing and Land Use Planning
Minister of Tourism

Ebene Tower
Ebene

First Publication

General Notice No. 1433 of2020

LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 6)

Notice is hereby given that ten (10) portions of 
land situate at Beard and La Marie in the district 
of Plaines Wilhems are likely to be acquired by the 
State of Mauritius for the public purpose of the 
Construction of La Vigie-La Brasserie-Beaux 
Songes Link Road.
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DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 87 (Serial No. 87) of an 
approximate extent of one thousand five hundred 
and sixty three square metres (1563 m2) is to be 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of 
three thousand nine hundred and eleven and forty 
eight hundredths square metres (3911.48 m2) 
belonging to Mr and Mrs Pahalwon RAMPALL 
for the usufruct and Ms Tamsin Uma RAMPALL 
for the bare ownership as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV201708/001064 and is 
bounded as follows

Towards the North East by Portion No. 85 
(Serial No. 85) being acquired from PAUL 
HERMANUS ECK LIMITED.

Towards the South East by Portion No. 86 
(Serial No. 86) being acquired from PAUL 
HERMANUS ECK LIMITED.

Towards the South West by Portion No. 88 
(Serial No. 88) being acquired from Mr Nillamah 
PENTIAH.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 89 (Serial No. 89) of an approximate 
extent of one hundred and eighty five square 
metres (185 m2) is to be excised from a portion of 
land of an extent of three thousand nine hundred 
and eleven and thirty four hundredths square 
metres (3911.34 m2) belonging to Mr Mahendrah 
GOONNIAH as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume TV 2695/44 and is bounded as follows

Towards the North East by Portion No. 88 
(Serial No. 88) being acquired from Mr Nillamah 
PENTIAH.

Towards the South East by Portion No. 142 
(Serial No. 142) being acquired from LA MARIE 
LIMITED.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

PortionNo. 91 (Serial No. 91) of an approximate 
extent of four thousand five hundred and sixteen 
square metres (4516 m2) is to be excised from a 
portion of land of an extent of three arpents and 
thirty six square perches (3 A 36P) or fourteen 
thousand one hundred and eighty two and twelve 
hundredths square metres (14182.12 m2) belonging 
to Mr Mohamed Haniff EDOO as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume TV 1183/204 and 
is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by Portion No. 90 
(Serial No. 90) being acquired from PAUL 
HERMANUS ECK LIMITED.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South West partly by Portion 
No. 92 (Serial No. 92) and partly by Portion No. 
93 (Serial No. 93) being acquired from Mr Dhanraj 
BEEHARRY and Mr Radhamohon GOKOOL 
respectively.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 95 (Serial No. 95) of an approximate 
extent of four hundred square metres (400 m2) is to 
be excised from a portion of land of an extent of 
one thousand three hundred and sixty eight square 
metres (1368 m2) belonging to Mr Chandralall 
SEETARAM as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume TV 5186/21 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by Portion No. 94 
(Serial No. 94) being acquired from Heirs Aniroude 
BHOGUN.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South West by Portion No. 98 
(Serial No. 98) being acquired from Mr Gorah 
HOSSENALLY.

Towards the North West by Portion No. 96 
(Serial No. 96) being acquired from Heirs Geeta 
ROOPUN (bom SEETARAM).

Portion No. 97 (Serial No. 97) of an approximate 
extent of four hundred and fifty five square metres 
(455 m2) is to be excised from a portion of land 
of an extent of one thousand three hundred and 
sixty eight square metres (1368 m2) belonging to 
Mr Iswarduth SEETARAM as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume TV 5186/ 21 and is 
bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by Portion No. 94 
(Serial No. 94) being acquired from Heirs Aniroude 
BHOGUN.

Towards the South East by Portion No. 96 
(Serial No. 96) being acquired from Heirs Geeta 
ROOPUN (bom SEETARAM).

Towards the South West partly by Portion 
No. 100 (Serial No. 100) being acquired from 
Mr Sookdeo NATHOO and others.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.
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Portion No. 103 (Serial No. 103) of an 
approximate extent of five hundred and twenty 
eight square metres (528 m2) is to be excised from 
a portion of land of an extent of eight thousand nine 
hundred and forty eight and nine hundredths square 
metres (8948.09 m2) belonging to Mr Roshanlall 
MEDIDEEN as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume TV 2147/27 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by a tarred public road.

Towards the South East by Portion No. 104 
(Serial No. 104) hereinafter described.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 104 (Serial No. 104) of an 
approximate extent of four thousand two hundred 
and sixty five square metres (4265 m2) is to be 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of two 
arpents (2A OOP) or eight thousand four hundred 
and forty one and seventy four hundredths square 
metres (8441.74 m2) belonging jointly to Heirs 
Manoohur SOOKHURRY and Heirs Soomant 
SOOKHURRY as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 913/112 and is bounded 
as follows: -

Towards the North East by a tarred public road.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South West by Portion No. 105 
(Serial No. 105) hereinafter described.

Towards the North West partly by the surplus of 
land and partly by Portion No. 103 (Serial No. 103) 
above described.

Portion No. 105 (Serial No. 105) of an 
approximate extent of three thousand nine hundred 
and six square metres (3906 m2) is to be excised 
from a portion of land being all that remains of 
ten arpents (10A OOP) or forty two thousand two 
hundred and eight and seven tenths square metres 
(42208.7 m2) [after excision and sale of (i) five 
arpents and fifteen square perches (5A 15P) as per 
TV 863/142 and (ii) ten thousand five hundred and 
fifty two and two tenths square metres (10552.2 m2). 
as per TV 1864/90], belonging to Mr Roshanlall 
MEDIDEEN as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume TV 2284/39 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by Portion No. 104 
(Serial No. 104) above described.

Towards the South East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South West by Portion No. 143 
(Serial No. 143) being acquired from Mrs Bizwantee 
SEEBORUTH.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 106 (Serial No. 106) of an 
approximate extent of four hundred and twelve 
square metres (412 m2) is to be excised from 
a portion of land being all that remains of eight 
thousand three hundred and eighty six and seven 
hundredths square metres (8386.07 m2) [after 
excision and sale of a portion of land of an extent 
of two thousand and sixteen and seventy five 
hundredths square metres (2016.75 m2) as per 
TV 7008/50], belonging to Mrs Ww Havane Parsad 
RAMLUGUM for the usufruct and to Mrs Sadhna 
Kumari BUNDHOO (bom RAMLUGUM) for 
the bare ownership as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 6435/47 and is bounded 
as follows:-

Towards the North East by Portion No. 143 
(Serial No. 143) being acquired from Mrs Bizwantee 
SEEBORUTH.

Towards the South East by a tarred public road.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 108 (Serial No. 108) of an 
approximate extent of ten square metres (10 m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of an extent 
of two thousand two hundred and seventy nine and 
thirty four hundredths square metres (2279.34 m2) 
belonging to Mr Donachar JADUNUNDON as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV201711/001173 and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South East by Portion No. 109 
(Serial No. 109) being acquired from Mr Premnath 
NAPAUL.

Towards the South West by La Marie - Le Petrin 
- Chamouny Road (Bl02).

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

Date: 30/09/2020

The Honourable Louis Steven OBEEGADOO
Deputy Prime Minister

Minister of Housing and Land Use Planning
Minister of Tourism

Ebene Tower 
Ebene
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General Notice No. 1434 of2020

LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM

In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 
Acquisition Act dated 22/02/2019 containing 
the description of a portion of land being 
Portion No. 72 [PIN: 1206090362] situate Belle 
Vue Pilot in the district of Pamplemousses for the 
public purpose of the Construction of drains in the 
context of Flood Mitigation Measures, published in 
the Government Gazette in its issues of 09/03/2019 
and 23/03/2019 under General Notice No. 367 
of 2019 and No. 532 of 2019 and transcribed on 
16/04/2019 in Volume TV201904/001354, the 
words and figures are hereby deleted and replaced 
by the words and figures as follows:-

(i) “intends to acquire ” by “has decided to 
acquire” wherever they appear

(ii) “ninety two (92) portions of land” by “a 
portion of land” and

(iii) “one arpent and twenty one perches 
( 1A21P) or five thousand one hundred and seven and 
twenty five hundredths square metres (5,107.25m2) 
belonging to Mrs. Sumitra RAMPERSAD as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 1600/150” by “two thousand five hundred and 
fifty three and sixty two hundredths square metres 
(2553.62m2) [being lot 2 of the deed bearing 
PIN: 1206090328] belonging to Mr. Jaiwudraj 
RAMPARSAD, bom on 21/08/1977 and holding 
Identity Card Number R2108774615528, as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV201810/002156” wherever they appear.

Observation:- The present corrigendum cancels 
and replaces the previous corrigendum dated 
13/08/2019 published in the Government Gazette 
in its issues of 17/08/2019 under GN 1440 of 2019 
and transcribed in volume TV201909/000270 on 
05/09/2019.

Date 30/09/2020

The Honourable Louis Steven OBEEGADOO
Deputy Prime Minister

Minister of Housing and Land Use Planning
Minister of Tourism

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

General Notice No. 1435 of2020

LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM
In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 

Acquisition Act dated 30/10/2018 containing the 
description of a portion of land being Portion 
No. 64 (Serial No. 64) [PIN: 1908120174] situate at 
Petite Rivière in the district of Black River for the 
public purpose of upgrading the Pointe aux Sables 
Road (B31), published in the Government Gazette 
in its issues of 10/11/2018 and 24/11/2018 under 
General Notices No. 1596 of 2018 and No. 1723 of 
2018 respectively and transcribed on 31/01/2019 in 
Volume TV201901/001380, the words and figures 
“belonging to (i) Mrs Marie Mercia MARIE 
bom on 26/03/1946 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number M2603468000067 for the 
usufruct and (ii)(a) Mr Tino Lency ANTALIKA 
bom on 11/07/1964 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number Al 10764011612B (b) 
Ms Marie Véronique ANTALIKA born 
on 02/05/1974 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number A0205743500645 (c) 
Ms Shirley MARIE bom on 10/02/1978 holder 
of a national identity card bearing number 
Ml00278350022F jointly for the bare ownership 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 1776/96” are hereby deleted and replaced 
by the following words and figures “belonging 
jointly to (i) Mr Tino Lency ANTALIKA bom 
on 11/07/1964 holder of a national identity card 
bearing number Al 10764011612B (ii) Ms Marie 
Véronique ANTALIKA born on 02/05/1974 
holder of a national identity card bearing number 
A0205743500645 and (iii) Ms Shirley MARIE 
bom on 10/02/1978 holder of a national identity 
card bearing number M100278350022F as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 1776/96 and affidavit of succession transcribed 
in Volume TV 2865/26” wherever they appear.

Date 30/09/2020

The Honourable Louis Steven OBEEGADOO
Deputy Prime Minister

Minister of Housing and Land Use Planning
Minister of Tourism

Ebene Tower 
Ebene
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General Notice No. 1436 of2020

LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM

In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 
Acquisition Act dated 14/03/2016 containing the 
description of a portion of land of the extent of one 
hundred and eighty nine and eighty five hundredths 
square metres (189.85m2) [PIN 1113240177] being 
Portion No. 18A situate at Tranquebar Port Louis 
in the district of Port Louis compulsorily acquired 
for the public purpose of constructing the second 
part of the Ring Road, published in the Government 
Gazette in its issues of 26/03/2016 and 09/04/2016 
under General Notices No. 355 of 2016 and No. 
417 of 2016 respectively and transcribed in Volume 
TV201606/002107 on 28/06/2016, the following 
words “belonging to Mr. and Mrs. Tejkumar 
BEEHARRY” are hereby deleted and replaced by 
the following words and figures “Mr. Tejkumar 
Singh BEEHARRY (born on 30/09/1968) holder 
of a National Identity Card bearing number 
B30096838234 and civilly married to Miss 
Sangeeta Ancharaz holder of a National Identity 
Card bearing number A080976302324G 
(MC 314 of 1994 Plaines Wilhems)” wherever 
they appear.

Date: 01/10/2020

The Honourable Louis Steven OBEEGADOO 
Deputy Prime Minister 

Minister of Housing and Land Use Planning 
Minister of Tourism 

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

General Notice No. 1437 of2020

LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM

In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 
Acquisition Act dated 13/10/2014 containing 
the description of a portion of land being 
Portion No. 23 (Serial No. 23) [PIN: 1420030241] 
situate at St Julien D’Hotman in the district of Flacq 
for the public purpose of Constructing a bypass 
in connection with the improvement of Moka- 

Flacq Road (A7), published in the Government 
Gazette in its issues of 18/10/2014 and 01/11/2014 
under General Notices No.2585 of 2014 and 
No.2693 of 2014 and transcribed on 30/01/2015 in 
Volume TV201510/001071, the words and figures 
“belonging to Mr Hurrynam GOBURDHUN 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 4407/78” are hereby deleted and replaced by 
the following words and figures “belonging to 
Heirs Hurrynam GOBURDHUN as evidenced 
by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 4407/78 and 
as per affidavit transcribed in TV 201411/000250” 
wherever they appear.

Observation is hereby made that the present 
notice (Corrigendum) cancels and replaces the 
notice (Corrigendum) given under Section 8 of 
the Land Acquisition Act dated 30/10/2018 in the 
Government Gazette in its issues of the 03/11/2018 
under GN 1493 of 2018.

Date: 30/09/2020

The Honourable Louis Steven OBEEGADOO
Deputy Prime Minister

Minister of Housing and Land Use Planning
Minister of Tourism

Ebene Tower
Ebene

General Notice No. 1438 of2020

LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM

In the Notice given under Section 8 of the 
Land Acquisition Act dated the 23/10/2017 
containing the description of one (1) portion of 
land situate at Pereybere in the district of Rivière 
du Rempart, compulsorily acquired for the public 
purpose of laying and maintenance of sewer 
pipes under the Grand Bay Sewerage Project 
Phase IB, published in the Government Gazette 
in its issues of the 11/11/2017 and 25/11/2017 
under General Notices No. 1646 of 2017 and 
No. 1699 of 2017 respectively and transcribed 
on 23/01/2018 in Volume TV201801/000486, 
under the heading DESCRIPTION for 
Portion No. 11 (Serial No. 11) (PIN 1305180673) 
of the extent of fifty three and fifty three hundredths 
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square metres (53.53m2), the following words 
“forms part of a portion of land of an original 
extent of five hundred and sixty nine and fifty eight 
hundredths square metres (569.58m2) belonging 
jointly to (i) Mrs Bibi Yasmin Rohomuthally born 
on 04.02.1969 and holder of a national identity 
card bearing number R0402693003881 divorcee 
of Mr. Imran Kistnareddy (SCR No.45231), in 
undivided rights in a fraction of seven hundred 
and thirty out of one thousand three hundred and 
twenty (730/1320), and (ii) Mrs Bibi Nabilah 
Heerah born on 23.10.88 and holder of a national 
identity card bearing number H2310883048023, 
in undivided rights in a fraction of five hundred 
and ninety out of one thousand three hundred and 
twenty (590/1320) as evidenced by a title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 7376 No. 52” are hereby 
deleted and replaced by the following words and 
figures forms part of a portion of land of an 
original extent of three hundred and sixteen and 
thirty three hundredths square metres (316.33m2) 
(PIN 1305180284) belonging to Mrs Bibi Yasmin 
Rohomuthally born on 04.02.1969 divorcee 
of Mr. Imran Kistnareddy (SCR No.45231), and 
holder of a national identity card bearing number 
R0402693003881 as evidenced by a title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 201705/001021” 
wherever they appear.

Date 01/10/2020

The Honourable Louis Steven OBEEGADOO
Deputy Prime Minister

Minister of Housing and Land Use Planning
Minister of Tourism

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

General Notice No. 1439 of2020

LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM

In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 
Acquisition Act dated 24/10/2016 containing 
the description of a portion of land being 
Portion No. 31 (Serial No. 31) [PIN:1743540738] 
situate at La Forêt in the district of Plaines 
Wilhems for the public purpose of constructing 
the Robinson-Glen Park Link Road, published in 

the Government Gazette in its issues of29/10/2016 
and 05/11/2016 under General’Notices No.1530 
of 2016 and No. 1600 of 2016 and transcribed on 
10/01/2017 in Volume TV201701/000213, the 
words and figures under the heading ‘Description’ 
are hereby deleted and replaced by the following:

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 31 (Serial No. 31) 
[PIN:1743540738] of an extent of fifty one and 
thirty six hundredths square metres (51.36 m2) is 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of two 
arpents and sixty nine square perches (2A 69P) or 
one hectare and one thousand three hundred and 
fifty four square metres (lha 1354 m2) belonging 
to Mr Ajmal JAHAJEEAH bom on 25/08/1946 
holder of a national identity card bearing number 
J250846291581B as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 1200/235 and is bounded 
as follows:-

Towards the North by the surplus of land 
on sixteen metres and eighty four centimetres 
(16.84m).

Towards the East by State Land 
[TV202007/002009] on two metres and seventy 
nine centimetres (2.79m).

Towards the South by a common road six 
metres and fifty centimetres (6.50m) wide on 
twelve metres and thirty centimetres (12.30m).

Towards the South West by Feeder Casernes on 
six metres and four centimetres (6.04m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
drawn up by Mr T. JUGGIAH, Land Surveyor on 
18/08/2020 and registered as PIN Application at the 
Cadastral Unit of the Ministry of Housing and Land 
Use Planning with reference ACQ/75/000567.

The plan may be inspected by the Public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Land Use Planning, Ebene Tower, Ebène, during 
office hours.

Date 01/10/2020

The Honourable Louis Steven OBEEGADOO
Deputy Prime Minister

Minister of Housing and Land Use Planning
Minister of Tourism 

Ebene Tower
Ebene
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General Notice No. 1440 of2020

VOLUNTARY DISSOLUTION OF 
A TRADE UNION

Notice is hereby given under Section 20(4) of 
the Employment Relations Act that the “Cane 
Growers Association”, a trade union registered 
under the said Act and bearing registration 
number TU 131, has been dissolved pursuant to a 
resolution approved at the general assembly of the 
trade union.

Dated 14 September 2020.

V. Sanasy 
Registrar of Associations

First Publication

General Notice No. 1441 of2020

MINISTRY OF ENVIRONMENT, SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT AND CLIMATE CHANGE

NOTICE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION 
OF EIA REPORT BY BIOSPHERE 

TRADING LTD

Notice is hereby given under Section 20 of the 
Environment Protection Act 2002 by the Department 
of Environment, Ministry of Environment, Solid 
Waste Management and Climate Change that an 
application for an EIA Licence has been submitted 
on 1 October 2020 under Section 18(1) of the Act 
for a scheduled undertaking and that the EIA report 
shall be opened for public inspection.

(a) The undertaking concerns the proposed 
development of a monkey capture (trapping) 
and breeding farm on 2 contiguous plots of 
land of an extent of 3ha8088 m2 and lha5143 m2 
respectively by Biosphere Trading Ltd.

(b) The location of the proposed undertaking 
is at Closel, Tamarind Falls in the District of 
Savanne.

(c) The report may be inspected during normal 
office working hours (i.e. 08.45 hrs to 12.00 hrs 
and 12.30 hrs to 16.00 hrs) at the Resource Centre 
of the Department of Environment, Ground Floor, 
Ken Lee Tower, Cnr. Barracks and St. Georges 
Streets, Port Louis and at the District Council of 
Savanne.

The report may also be inspected on the portal of 
the Economic Development Board at the following 
address: https ://business.edhmauritius.ore and 
public comments should be submitted online at the 
above address by 31 October 2020 at latest.

2 October 2020
Department of Environment 

Ministry of Environment,
Solid Waste Management and Climate Change

First Publication

General Notice No. 1442 of2020

Police Department

INVITATION FOR BIDS (IFB)

(Authorised under Section 17 of 
the Public Procurement Act 2006)

Refit & Dry Docking of CGS Observer

Procurement Ref. No: POLICE/IFB/2020/228

1. The Police Department is inviting bids 
from eligible bidders of Mauritian nationals or 
entities incorporated in Mauritius through the 
Government eProcurement System for the Refit & 
Dry Docking of CGS Observer.

2. Bidding documents may be 
downloaded from the eProcurement System 
https ://eproc.publicprocurement.govmu. org. Reference 
Number on the system POLICE/IFB/2020/228

3. Bids must be submitted online on the 
eProcurement System at latest by Tuesday 
10th November 2020 up to 13.30 hrs (Local Time)

4. Bidders who have submitted bids online by 
the closing date and time shall decrypt and re-encrypt 
their bids from Tuesday 10th November 2020 from 
14.16 hours to Thursday 12th November 2020 up 
to 13.25 hours.

5. Bids will be opened online in the presence 
of the bidders’ representatives who choose to 
attend at the address given hereunder on Thursday 
12th November 2020 up to 13.30 hours.

6. The addresses referred to above for opening 
of bid is

Police Headquarters, 
Conference Room, 

Line Barracks, 
Port Louis
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7. The Police Department reserves the right 
to accept or reject any bid and to annul the bidding 
process and reject all bids at any time prior to 
award of the Contract, without thereby incurring 
any liability to any Bidder.

Police Department 
Line Barracks 

Port Louis 
06.10.2020

General Notice No. 1443 of2020

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 415 (2) (c) OF
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

Notice is hereby given that the following 
companies have been struck off the Register: -

C1151 CHUE HONG & CO LTD

C2363 GANEE MOOSSA & SONS LIMITED

C3572 MASCAREIGNE TRADERS CO LTD

C3874 MODA SHOES COMPANY LIMITED

C7274 G R CEMENTATION LTD

C7349 NEWTECH CO LTD

Date: 01 October 2020

C7389 DAB LIMITED

C9170 ISLAND DISTRIBUTION & 
MARKETING LTD

C16530 DITTA MASTRO RAPHAEL CO LTD

C19083 SCAN BUILDING SYSTEMS LTD

C19310 SCOOP LTD

Cl 9406 BIJOUTERIE TROCADERO CIE LTEE

C19519 20EME PARALLELE CO. LTD.

C23423 ROSSLAND LTD

C23704 NEERJAYA CO LTD

C23735 CHUNG SHIN LTD

C27104 SOHONET LTD

C46394 RADHIKA HOLDINGS LTD

C46495 SHAYEEN BEAUTY CLINIC LTD

C47320 Maere Nostrum Ltd

C071517 FAST LEASING CO LTD

Director of Insolvency Service 
One Cathedral Square, 

Jules Koenig Street 
Port Louis

General Notice No. 1444 of2020

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 310(l)(c) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given pursuant to section 309(1 )(b) of the Companies Act 2001 that the companies listed 
below are to be removed from the register as there is reason to believe that these companies have ceased to 
carry on business and there is no other reason for these companies to continue in existence/ have failed to 
pay the registration fees/ have not filed the annual return as required under section 223(2) of the Act.

Objection, if any, shall be delivered to the Registrar of Companies not later than 06 November 2020.

FILE NO^ NAME OF COMPANY REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF COMPANY

C066346 MAXISPARES CO LTD C/O DHM CONSULTANTS LTD, 20 VANDERMEERCH 
ST. ROSE HILL

C066931 AUSTRALIAN MIGRATION & STUDY 
CONSULTANT LTD

SEERALLY BUILDING ST URSULE STR CENTRAL 
FLACQ MAURITIUS

C067615 ADVANCED MARKETING INDUSTRY LTD 7 DESCHARTRES ST, CENTURY HOUSE PORT LOUIS 
MAURITIUS

C067666 AUTOPARTS DISTRIBUTORS LTD 70 AVENUE OLLIER ROSE HILL MAURITIUS

C067732 COTOMILI LTEE RESIDENCE 3602 AMALTHEA ANAHITA 40901 BEAU 
CHAMPS

C067781 A.I.N.I Co Ltd ROYAL ROAD, GRAND BAIE MAURITIUS
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C067925 Archigops Company Ltd 03 AVENUE RICHARD, ROSE HILL MAURITIUS

C067967 TOP TRAVEL & TOURS CO LTD ROYAL ROAD, PEREYBERE

C068428 FIRST CLEANING LTD NO.9,JUMNA ST, CITE LA CURE, PORT LOUIS 
MAURITIUS

C068494 U & I CAR RENTAL CO LTD 12 IMP BIJOUX, ST CLEMENT, CUREPIPE MAURITIUS

C072774 DAVIDSON TRAVEL & LEISURE SERVICE 
LTD

62 AVE TELFAIR QUATRE BORNES MAURITIUS

C072857 e- Market Services Limited RUE DES ARTISANS LOT E361 EBENE CITY,REDUIT

C073073 ISLAND INFO CO LTD 13A LAVENDER HILL ST CUREPIPE MAURITIUS

C073102 Highlanders Channel Management Ltd DE COURSON STREET C/O DLB CONSTRUCTION LTD 
CUREPIPE

C073216 SHAMAL PROPERTIES LTD BEEDASSY LANE 8TH MILE TRIOLET MAURITIUS

C073412 WASABI COMPANY LTD 4 STEIN STREET BEAU BASSIN

C073526 MAHARANI Ltd STE ANNE ST CENTRAL FLACQ MAURITIUS

C073559 Lightwave Indian Ocean Ltd LOT 68 MORC SENESTRA BAIE DU TOMBEAU 
MAURITIUS

C073821 DDG CHEMICALS CO LTD CLAIRGONDSNO 1 PHOENIX MAURITIUS

C074245 CAFÉ COTON PRODUCTION LTÉE C/O OLIVIER VEXLARD AVE TRIANON 2 QUATRE 
BORNES MAURITIUS

C074580 L'aiR du temps Ltée C/O L’ANTIQUAIRE LTEE EMILE SAUZIER ST 
CUREPIPE MAURITIUS

C074594 CLIMATIZE LTD SSR LANE MARE TABAC MAURITIUS

C074677 HU INVESTMENTS LTD 59 CHARLES REGNAUD ST EAU COULEE CUREPIPE 
MAURITIUS

C074733 MJFM Consulting Services Ltd LES SALINES PILOT BLACK RIVER MAURITIUS

C074850 LE GUETALI LTD RTE ROYALE LA MIVOIE TAMARIN MAURITIUS

C074906 DVTECH INFORMATICS LTD ROYAL RD MEDINE CAMP DE MASQUE MAURITIUS

C075061 MY WAY LIMITED 4 BATHFIEDL STREET PORT LOUIS MAURITIUS

C075164 SARNATH CONSTRUCTIONS LTD SSSR ROAD UPPER VALE

C075221 RKM INTERNATIONAL CO. LTD. ROYAL ROAD ROSE BELLE MAURITIUS

C075249 TAIPAN PALACE LTD C/O MR BRIZLALL CODAYCHURN 54 ROYAL ROAD 
BAIE DU TOMBEAU MAURITIUS

C075671 Koo & Bissett Co. Ltd. SOTTISE ROAD GRAND BAY

C075814 Logandale Co. Ltd CARDINAL 14, HARBOUR VIEW 1, JUSTICE STREET, 
PORT LOUIS

C075903 Via Condotti Ltee 1 ST FLOOR GRAND BAIE PLAZA GRAND BAIE

C075946 CHOTE ENTERPRISE LTD Royal Road, Grande Pte aux Piments

C076126 EXOTIC CONTRACTING LTD BHARATI ROAD COTTAGE MAPOU

C076979 POWER HILL LTD 206 ST JAMES COURT ST DENIS STREET PORT LOUIS

C077441 RUBIS TERRA LIMITED 787 LA MARIE ROAD VACOAS

C077467 VILLA ANF CO. LTD 23 JERNINGHAM ST CUREPIPE

C077490 Z.H Easy Task Company LTD MOSQUE LANE GUIBIES PAILLES



10 October 2020 3741

C077679 SOLAR PHONE CO LTD 42 MORC LE ROC AVE EMERALD PAILLES

C077688 The Mauritian Rum Company Ltd c/o Bacha Yogendranath, More GIDC, Floreal

C083093 The Pirates Lodge Ltd C/O DGM CONSULTANTS SUITE 703 RICHARD HOUSE 
LEVEL 7 PORT LOUIS

CO83353 MARIO LUCHMUN & D COMPANY LTD MANUEL ROAD CAMP DE MASQUE

C083401 KUMAR SAKURDEEP CO LTD 4TH FLOOR STRATTON COURT POUDRIERE STREET 
PORT LOUIS

Date: 02/10/2020

Registrar of Companies
One Cathedral Square

Jules Koenig Street
Port Louis

General Notice No. 1445 of2020

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 310(l)(c) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given pursuant to section 309(1 )(b) of the Companies Act 2001 that the companies listed 
below are to be removed from the register as there is reason to believe that these companies have ceased to 
carry on business and there is no other reason for these companies to continue in existence/ have failed to 
pay the registration fees/ have not filed the annual return as required under section 223(2) of the Act.

Objection, if any, shall be delivered to the Registrar of Companies not later than 09 November 2020.

FILE NO. NAME OF COMPANY REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF COMPANY
C068528 MY ART LIMITED CORNER RENE GODERE AND ROYAL ROAD 

BEAU BASSIN
C068577 L & N CO LTD 71,bathfield ST, tranquebar, PORT 

LOUIS MAURITIUS
C068626 AHUJA TRADERS CO LTD LA CORDERIE ST, PORT LOUIS MAURITIUS
C068914 LA PASSERELLE LTEE 4,ANTOINE VALASOIS, VACOAS MAURITIUS
C069049 H AND G ENGINEERING AND CRAFTS 

LTD
A-30 NHDC RESIDENCE, L'ASSURANCE, 
DAGOTIERE MAURITIUS

C069229 SUN COLOR LTD 182 RUE CATTEAUX II FLIC EN FLAC 
MAURITIUS

C069299 . FFT PROPERTY COMPANY LTD ROYAL ROAD CALEBASSES
C069616 SOFT LIGHTS LTD. AVE CLAUDE DE LAITRE PAILLES MAURITIUS
C069784 Nationwide Security Services Ltd ROYALROAD CALEBASSES PAMPLEMOUSSES 

MAURITIUS
C069840 che-valle-d'or (villa) LTD CHEMIN 20 PIEDS GRAND BAIE MAURITIUS
C069867 F. F DISTRIBUTION LTD 2ND FLOOR FON SIN BUILDING EDITH 

CAVELL ST PORT LOUIS MAURITIUS
C070019 Urban Architects (Mauritius) Ltd 13 IMPASSE REMY OLLIER BEAU BASSIN 

MAURITIUS
C070038 NEW TECHNOLOGY AGRO CO LTD RISHI DAYANAND RD DUBREUIL MAURITIUS
C070074 ODC (Mauritius) Ltd C/O H RAMOO ROYAL ROAD, 8TH MILES 

TRIOLET
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FILE NO. NAME OF COMPANY REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF COMPANY
C078185 MITALI LTD C/O Yerrigadoo Kalpana, 28 Guy Forget Avenue, 

Kensington Palms, Q. Bornes

C078428 CLAMS LTD Villa Sous Les Palmiers, More Ramdanee, Pointe 
Aux Piments

C078473 SUNDARAM SPICES ROCHE-CARRI LTD RICHE MARE DHALIA RD CENTRAL FLACQ

C078706 DREAM SPA & RESORTS LTD 156 GUJADHUR ST CUREPIPE

C078717 M.F.O.I Cie Ltée DOOKUN LANE 5EME MILE BEAU BASSIN

C078924 F.O.C.U.S Design Ltd ALLEE CAMPHRE CUREPIPE

C078954 R.A.J TECHNOLOGY CO. LTD C.LADEN LANE LORETO CONVENT STREET 
CUREPIPE

C079086 LUTCHMANEN AND SONS CO LTD 17 TELFAIR MOKA

C079178 D.J.A COMMERCIAL CO. LTD. D,J.A Commercial Co Ltd Lamto Bldg Mont Lubin 
Rodrigues

C079241 P.S.G Company Ltd SIR EDGAR LAURENT CUREPIPE

C079701 GME GLASGOW ENTERPRISE CO LTD SHIVALA ROAD BRAMSTAN FLACQ

C079970 DEXTER ENTERPRISE COMPANY 
LIMITED

364 HUGNIN ROAD ROSE HILL

C080082 CAMEL MOTORS LTD 21 MOTAIS STREET PORT LOUIS

C080531 Rosemees Company Limited RUE ARAGON BEAU BASSIN ROSE HILL

C080593 Haines Outsourcing Ltd 47 MARNAWAB STREET C/O HANIAHOLDINGS 
LTD PORT LOUIS

C080628 I AM AN ISLAND LTD 1 ROYAL ROAD TAMARIN

C080734 LE STUDIO CENTRE DE DANSE LTEE BEAU PLAN CRATIVE PARK BEAU PLAN 
PAMPLEMOUSSES

C081142 BATHWORLD COMPANY LTD 134B BAKERY LANE COROMANDEL

C081165 SOURCING HOUSE LTD DGM CONSULTANTS SUITE 109 LEVEL 
STERLING HOUSE PORT LOUIS

C081395 D'AUTHEVILLE REALTY (MAURITIUS)
LTD

4TH FLOOR, EBENE SKIES RUE DE L'INSTITUT 
EBENE, MAURITIUS

C081505 RaNee International Ltd C/O NARA1NDUTH RAMGOOLAM, ROYAL 
ROAD CAMP DE MASQUE

C081694 FIRST SOURCE PROPERTY 
MANAGEMENT CO. LTD

32-34 RESERVE STREET CASSIS PORT LOUIS

C081697 CATAMARAN ISLAND EXCURSIONS CO 
LTD

Robinson Road C/o Navitas Corporate Services Ltd, 
Navitas House Floreal

C081809 AYURVEDIC LIFE CARE PVT LTD 5 LECORNU ST STE CROIX

C082032 Progressive Construction Ltd 18 ROYAL ROAD EAU COULEE

C082053 URBAN VENTURES LTD 13 IMPASSE REMY OLLIER BEAU BASSIN

C082058 N.P.V ASSOCIATES Co LTD ROTN NO 1 AVE BERTHAUD Q BORNES

C082459 AEROFLY TRAVEL & TOURS LTD PHILLIPE BUILDING (OPP) FIRST CITY BANK 
ROYAL ROAD ROSE BELLE

C082600 PEARL CONSULTANCY SERVICES 
LTD

5TH FLOOR, TOWER 3 NEXTERACOM 
BUILDING CYBERCITY, EBENE

C082620 H.Dookun and Partners Properties Co Ltd COASTAL ROAD TROU AUX BICHES
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FILE NO. NAME OF COMPANY REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF COMPANY

C082669 KIMSEN MANUFACTURING & 
DISTRIBUTION LTD

SOUFFLEUR ST MAHEBOURG

C083693 Pro Alia Investment 1 (Mauritius) Limited C/O ABAX CORPORATE SERVICES LTD, 
6TH FLOOR, TOWER A, 1 CYBERCITY, 
EBENE

C084394 PROVOTECH INTERNATIONAL 
CONSTRUCTION & ENGINEERING 
LTD

BAIE DU CAP ROAD CHAMAREL

C084438 DEENAD INVESTMENT LTD 2 JENNER STREET PORT LOUIS
C084670 MEDICAL & SAFETY SHOES LTD 34 SSR ST PORT LOUIS
C084692 ALICE V.S.S COMPANY LTD 54, SSR ST 2nd Floor Madelaine House Port­

louis
C084965 JFA Développement Invest Limitée 5TH FLOOR, C & R COURT 49 

LABOURDONNAIS STREET PORT LOUIS
C085789 RUBIRAY LIMITED 30 BANK ROAD GOODLANDS
C085839 Assoter (Mauritius) Co Ltd MARKET RD ROSE BELLE
C085997 Parchemin Co Ltd NO 22 QUATRE EPICES ST STE CROIX 

PORT LOUIS
C086133 COTTON PLUS LTD ALLEE BRILLANT CASTEL PHOENIX
C086156 K & V Construction & Services Co. Ltd 4 SISTER MARIE CLEMENCE ST 

PLAISANCE ROSE HILL
C086346 MAXI ITEM LTD C/O BEEDASSY ABDOOL AMEEN 373 

BERNARDIN DE ST PIERRE VALLEE DES 
PRETRES

C086356 LA ROUTE DES EPICES CAR RENTAL 
LTD

SADALLY ROAD VACOAS

C086367 Aquarius Learning Centre Co. Ltd GEOFFROY ROAD BAMBOUS
C086446 ATLAI IMPORTS LTD JUPITER LANE BEAUX SONGES BAMBOUS
C086535 M.K RAMPHUL COMPANY LTD TAGORE ROAD, MONGOUT

PAMPLEMOUSSES
C087301 ALLIANCE MAGIQUE LTEE C/o Tamarin Hotel, Tamarin
C087345 R & J Chettiar Enterprise Co. Ltd LOT 299 MORC ALBION 11 ALBION
C087459 Les Compagnons du Devoir Ltée 34 CYBERCITY 4TH FLOOR EBENE 

HEIGHTS EBENE
C087538 PENTAGON UNIVERSAL LTD C/O MIKASH H. RIVER COURT ST DENIS 

STREET PORT LOUIS
C087574 RUSAVA INVESTMENT HOLDINGS 

LTD
MOTORWAY M3 RICHE TERRE PADCO 
HEAD OFFICE TERRE ROUGE

C087892 RANNESERVIS LTD MELDRUM STREET 7D TOWER B 
MELDRUM TOWERS BEAU BASSIN

C087936 B ALINEA LTD C/O SAMPO EP BAIN BOEUF PEREYBERE
C088107 MULTIPORT INTERNATIONAL 

TRADING LTD
C/O 55 MORC LA NOUVELLE INDUSTRIE 
NOTRE DAME
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FILE NO. NAME OF COMPANY REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF COMPANY
C088286 LANDSHOT CO LTD ROYAL ROAD PLAINE MAGNIEN GRAND 

PORT
C088303 GIACOMO E PATRIZIA LTD 20 Palmerstone Street Phoenix
C088337 CURVY XXL LTD 13 CLOSEL RD PHOENIX
C088927 RESORTS & GARMENTS 

CONSULTANTS (MTIUS) PTY LTD
RAMLAKHAN ROAD CONGOMAH 
D'EPINAY

C089012 MSS MOTO-BIKE WORLD & CO LTD ROYAL ROAD TERRE ROUGE
C089069 MARK PLUS FASHION CO LTD THOMY D'ARIFAT ST CUREPIPE
C089188 F & U construction ltd. MOSQUE ROAD ST JULIEN VILLAGE
C089222 M & C Cle Minute Co LTD BAHEMIA BUILDING CNR LEOVILLE 

L’HOMME CORDERIE ST PORT LOUIS
C089432 HYPER SECURITY GUARD LTD NO 5 ST DENIS STREET ST JAMES COURT 

PORT LOUIS
C089566 JAYKEEDS CO LTD MAHANT KABIR LANE NO 3 PHOENIX
C089687 UKAPIL LTD MELDRUM STREET 7D TOWER B

MELDRUM TOWERS BEAU BASSIN
C089858 HARESH VIVA VENTURA LTD ROYAL ROAD GRAND BOIS
C089959 GAZ - EAU -PRO CO LTD. AVENUE JOLIS PIEDS HERMITAGE 

CENTRE FLACQ
C090080 PUBLI. CARE & CO LTD 144 ROYAL ROAD BELLE ETOILE 

COROMANDEL
C090834 NANO STRATEGIES LTD SCHOENFELD RD RIV DU REMPART
C090953 Survya Design LTD C/O MRS BIMALAMOHEEPUT19 COLONEL 

DRAPER ST BEAU BASSIN
C091007 LEX MENTIS LTD Bl49, MORCELLEMENT LE BOUT DU 

MONDE EBENE
C091257 E-MILES MARKETING LTD 30 GUSTAVE COLIN ST BEAU BASSIN
C091339 SHYAMALA CO LTD DOSIEAH ROAD LES MARIANES LONG 

MOUNTAIN
C091499 FAB RITEX LIMITED HOTEL AVENUE, 33 CYBERCITY C/O 

JURISTAX LTD, LEVEL 3, EBENE HOUSE 
EBENE,
72201

C091560 MASTER FIRE LTD BASSIN RD Q BORNES
C091578 PEST PATROL INTERVENTION 

SUPPORT LTD
APPARTMENT M08 N H D C CAMP LE 
VIEUX

C091662 Sweetkai Tours Ltd MANCHESTER ST BAILLACHE LONG 
MOUNTAIN

C091697 MON BEAULIEU SUR MER 
DEVELOPMENT LTÉE

SUNNY HILL MORC REY PTE AUX SABLES 
17A DESIREE

C091776 COHERENCE LTD GRAND PORT ROAD NOUVELLE FRANCE
C091874 PALMINA CONSULTING LTD SHRIMATI INDIRA GANDHI ROAD 

TRIOLET
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FILE NO. NAME OF COMPANY REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OFCOMPANY

C091893 MAUTIYAK LTD 44 AVISH LANE POINTE AUX PIMENT 
POINTE AUS PIMENT

C091941 Perennial Investment Managers Ltd TEMPLE COURT 2 LABOURDONNAIS ST 
PORT LOUIS

C091958 TROPIKANA STUDIOS LTD 24, CYBERCITY 5TH FLOOR, EBENE 
ESPLANADE EBENE

C091974 JAI & ZAI CO LTD DR ROSS AVENUE QUATRE BORNES
C092067 Mascareignes Design & Fashion Ltd ROYAL ROAD ARSENAL SOLITUDE
C092282 Extedim Limited MORCELLEMENT BHEENICK TELFAIR, 

MOKA
C092301 J. Cube Computer Services Ltd C/O MARY JANE ANTHONY PTE MONIER 

RODRIGUES
C092556 MCKC LTD C/O PIM BOUTIK ROYAL ROAD GRAND 

BAIE
C092704 WATSUP LTD AVENUE D'EPINAY Q BORNES
C092741 TILANI & COMPAGNIE LTEE SOCIAL & COMMUNITY CENTRE LANE 

MOUNT ORY MOKA
C092784 SHA - NUSH TRADING CO LTD BEACH LANE PEREYBERE
C094449 LOLULA COMPANY LTD CHEMIN TI DIAMANT ELIZABETHVILLE 

BAIE DU TOMBEAU
C094522 Widescope Marketing Services Ltd 12 MELLISH STREET FOREST SIDE 

CUREPIPE
C094546 ORATORIO CONSEIL LTD S.INDIRA GANDHI ROAD TRIOLET
C094601 SELEUCIA CONSTRUCTION LTD 45 PATEL STREET MARE GRAVIER BEAU 

BASSIN
C094617 Soorya G Events Ltd 223 ROYAL ROAD FOREST SIDE
C094745 PRIME EVENTS LTD 17 RAMDAREE LANE COROMANDEL
C094774 WALKS ON WALLS LTD C/O FINACC, 21-23 MGR GONIN STREET 

GROUND FLOOR, FAIRFAX HOUSE PORT 
LOUIS

C094860 Agricool Ltd SCHOOL ST RIV DES ANGUILLES
C095037 SOCIETE MERIGNAC LTEE ROYAL RD 1ST FLOOR COLUMBIA COURT 

Q BORNES
C095107 UTAYA Co. LTD Royal Road Ripailles St Pierre
C095174 Sunset C (One) Ltd LA MIVOIE LEORA BEACHFRONT 

APARTMENTS Cl TAMARIN
C095201 Click Now Co Ltd 3 MORC BELLONGUET BROWN SEQUARD 

ST CUREPIPE
C095286 BLUE BRIDGE TELESERVICES 

LIMITED
Lot 75 Morcellement VRS No 2 Malakoff

C095337 DEBT COLLECTION SERVICES LTD 518 ST JAMES COURT ST DENIS ST PORT 
LOUIS



3746 The Mauritius Government Gazette

FILE NO. NAME OF COMPANY REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF COMPANY

C095495 L'ATELIER by William Ltd. 151 MORCELLEMENT TROU AUX BICHES 
TROU AUX BICHES

C095589 GOOD WARE LTD ROUTE ROYALE LE GOULET BAIE DU 
TOMBEAU

C095599 HEAVY WEIGHT COMPANY LTD SSR LANE MARE TABAC
C095707 SOUBEN PROPERTIES LTD IMPASSE FAUCON CUREPIPE
C095779 GOLDLINE SPARE PARTS CO LTD 163 FATADIN SQUARE HENRIETTA 

VACOAS
C095831 YOUROPTICS LIMITED 10 FRERE FELIX DE VALOIS ST PORT 

LOUIS
C096114 Applied Mind Training Ltd ST JEAN ROAD NO 501 1 ST FLOOR NEWRY 

COMPLEX QUATRE BORNES
C096131 DAN MOODY Investments Ltd 35 AVE JACQUIER PTE AUX SABLES
C096153 ISADORA LIMITED B12 CHRYSAMTHEME N H D C CAMP 

LEVIEUX ROSE HILL
C096405 LIVE-INN GREEN LTD CNR AVE SODNAC & AVE IBIS SODNAC Q 

BORNES
C096899 TAJ TRAVEL & TOURS LTD ROYAL ROAD UNION PARK
C096954 Forecoming Services Ltd RUE MARGEOT SOUILLAC
C097277 MULTI TROVE LTD C/O KAILASH MANI NUNKOO TROU AUX 

BICHES RD TRIOLET
C097466 CONCRETE TRANSPORT CO LTD AVE LIMIT PLAISANCE ROSE HILL
C097481 SAFE CONTRACTING LTD BASSIN ROAD HIGHLANDS PHOENIX
C097498 Iliad Investment Ltd OFFICES 221 BLOCK B THE JUNCTION 

BUSINESS HUB CALEBASSES
C097500 BELAIR ROSE D'OR CO. LTD ROYAL ROAD BEL AIR RIVIERE SECHE
C097518 FULLEXE LTD 8 BLOC CAMELIA HARRIS ST PORT LOUIS
C097590 GLOBAL FORTUNE TRADING 

COMPANY LTD.
ROYAL ROAD MON DESIR VACOAS

C097602 TOTOF CROISIERES LTEE C/O MR JOCELIN EMMANUEL ORANGE 
LA GROTTE LANE PLAINE MAGNIEN

C097748 THE TOOTH SPA LTD PLOT 3 MORC SOCIETE GENTILLY ROYAL 
RD GENTILLY MOKA

C097840 FLAVIGNY LTD CNR BANCILLON LABOURDONNAIS STS 
PORT LOUIS

C098020 LEBOVALLON MANUFACTURING 
COMPANY LIMITED

198 MORCELLEMENT LORETTE BLUE 
BAY ROAD BEAU VALLON, MAHEBOURG

C098092 T.Saravana Company Ltd SARAVANA BLDG RAYMOND RIVET ST 
MONT ROCHES

C098099 TECHPLUS SUPPLIES HUB LTD NO. 14 MORC L'ABRI PAMPLEMOUSSES
C098161 KEY EDGE INVESTMENT LTD 403 ST JAMES COURT ST DENIS STREET 

PORT LOUIS
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FILE NO. NAME OF COMPANY REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF COMPANY
C098270 TOTAL COACHING SOLUTIONS CO 

LTD
C/O MR SERGE ARMANSIN RUE DES 
FLAMBOYANTS COASTAL ROAD ROCHES 
NOIRES

C098291 Hero Travel Tours Ltd 58 GANNUM ROAD VACOAS
C098305 Multistreem Limited 5 MGR Leen, Beau Bassin
C098371 S.N.Z HITECH RECONDITIONING 

CENTRE LTD
PETIT VERGER ST PIERRE

C098389 FRANÇOIS TRANSPORT CO LTD ROYAL ROAD ARSENAL
C098591 Cartwheel Investments Ltd PRUDENT ST FLOREAL
C098605 MAKNER CONCEPT & DESIGN 

LIMITED
83 AVENUE TRIANON 1 MORC ST JEAN Q 
BORNES

C098735 E - BRIDGE CONSULTING LTD Royal Road, Malenga, St Pierre
C098872 ZOOMPHICS CREATIVE SOLUTION 

LTD
8, OSLO LANE BERNADIN DE ST PIERRE 
VALLEE DES PRETRES

C099439 CLASSY KIDS LTD COUVENT DE LORETTE ST VACOAS
C099587 BJ INVESTMENTS LTD MON DESERT ROAD P MAGNIEN
C101603 M DIVISION CO. LTD 167 ROYAL ROAD BEAU BASSIN
C101884 WHITE LAKE CO LTD 1 LAHASSE STREET ROSE HILL
C101978 ROMI MARGARINE ENTERPRISE LTD HIGHLANDS PHOENIX
Cl02025 LA VIGIE INVESTMENT CO. LTD C/O CHANTIER NAVAL DE L'OCEAN 

INDIEN LTD FREEPORT ZONE 11 MER 
ROUGE PORT LOUIS

Cl02026 NAVAL INVESTMENT COMPANY LTD C/O CHANTIER NAVAL DE LOCE AN INDIEN 
LTD FREEPORT ZONE II MER ROUGE PORT 
LOUIS

Cl 02027 SUROIT HOLDING LTD C/O CHANTIER NAVAL DE L'OCEAN 
INDIEN LTD FREEPORT ZONE II MER 
ROUGE P.LOUIS

C102170 RAIHAN COMPANY LTD ROYAL ROAD L'ESCALIER
C102175 CORPORATE VISION LIMITED C/O T. BHAUGEERUTTY 2A ANGUS ROAD 

VACOAS
Cl 02367 S. SHAVA TRADING LTD. RESERVOIR RD GRAND BAY
Cl 02557 SAM PROPER PLUS CO LTD LE MARIE VACOAS
Cl 02704 V . VISHAL ELECTRONIC CO LTD ROYAL ROAD DERNINGHAM TRIOLET
Cl06708 SOAPETI INTERNATIONAL TRADING 

LTD
5TH FLOOR HENNESSY COURT POPE 
HENNESSY STREET PORT LOUIS

C106759 Société de Pêche Professionnelle et 
Industrielle Ltd

24 AVE DES HIRONDELLES QUATRE 
BORNES

Cl06802 Pro-Coverage Ltd Victoria Building 1 corderie Port Louis
Cl07055 The Professional Medical Healthcarers Ltd BOOJHAWOON ROAD UPPER DAGOTIERE
Cl07307 Crystal Beach Resort Ltd ST DENIS ST 2 RIVER COURT PORT LOUIS
Cl07322 WACA ZANZIBAR LTD 62 A TELFAIR AVENUE QUATRES BORNES
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FILE NO. NAME OF COMPANY REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF COMPANY

C088286 LANDSHOT CO LTD ROYAL ROAD PLAINE MAGNIEN GRAND 
PORT

C088303 GIACOMO E PATRIZIA LTD 20 Palmerstone Street Phoenix
C088337 CURVY XXL LTD 13 CLOSEL RD PHOENIX
C088927 RESORTS & GARMENTS 

CONSULTANTS (MTIUS) PTY LTD
RAMLAKHAN ROAD CONGOMAH 
D'EPINAY

C089012 MSS MOTO-BIKE WORLD & CO LTD ROYAL ROAD TERRE ROUGE
C089069 MARK PLUS FASHION CO LTD THOMY D'ARIFAT ST CUREPIPE
C089188 F & U construction ltd. MOSQUE ROAD ST JULIEN VILLAGE
C089222 M & C Cle Minute Co LTD BAHEMIA BUILDING CNR LEOVILLE 

L'HOMME CORDERIE ST PORT LOUIS
C089432 HYPER SECURITY GUARD LTD NO 5 ST DENIS STREET ST JAMES COURT 

PORT LOUIS
C089566 JAYKEEDS CO LTD MAHANT KABIR LANE NO 3 PHOENIX
C089687 UKAPIL LTD MELDRUM STREET 7D TOWER B

MELDRUM TOWERS BEAU BASSIN
C089858 HARESH VIVA VENTURA LTD ROYAL ROAD GRAND BOIS
C089959 GAZ - EAU -PRO CO LTD. AVENUE JOLIS PIEDS HERMITAGE 

CENTRE FLACQ
C090080 PUBLI. CARE & CO LTD 144 ROYAL ROAD BELLE ETOILE 

COROMANDEL
C090834 NANO STRATEGIES LTD SCHOENFELD RD RIV DU REMPART
C090953 Survya Design LTD C/O MRS BIMALAMOHEEPUT19 COLONEL 

DRAPER ST BEAU BASSIN
C091007 LEX MENTIS LTD Bl49, MORCELLEMENT LE BOUT DU 

MONDE EBENE
C091257 E-MILES MARKETING LTD 30 GUSTAVE COLIN ST BEAU BASSIN
C091339 SHYAMALA CO LTD DOSIEAH ROAD LES MARIANES LONG 

MOUNTAIN
C091499 FABRITEX LIMITED HOTEL AVENUE, 33 CYBERCITY C/O 

JURISTAX LTD, LEVEL 3, EBENE HOUSE 
EBENE,
72201

C091560 MASTER FIRE LTD BASSIN RD Q BORNES
C091578 PEST PATROL INTERVENTION 

SUPPORT LTD
APPARTMENT M08 N H D C CAMP LE
VIEUX

C091662 Sweetkai Tours Ltd « MANCHESTER ST BAILLACHE LONG 
MOUNTAIN

C091697 MON BEAULIEU SUR MER 
DEVELOPMENT LTÉE

SUNNY HILL MORC REY PTE AUX SABLES 
17A DESIREE

C091776 COHERENCE LTD GRAND PORT ROAD NOUVELLE FRANCE
C091874 PALMINA CONSULTING LTD SHRIMATI INDIRA GANDHI ROAD 

TRIOLET

FILE NO. NAME OF COMPANY REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF COMPANY

C091893 MAUTIYAK LTD 44 AVISH LANE POINTE AUX PIMENT 
POINTE AUS PIMENT

C091941 Perennial Investment Managers Ltd TEMPLE COURT 2 LABOURDONNAIS ST 
PORT LOUIS

C091958 TROPIKANA STUDIOS LTD 24, CYBERCITY 5TH FLOOR, EBENE 
ESPLANADE EBENE

C091974 JAI & ZAI CO LTD DR ROSS AVENUE QUATRE BORNES

C092067 Mascareignes Design & Fashion Ltd ROYAL ROAD ARSENAL SOLITUDE

C092282 Extedim Limited MORCELLEMENT BHEENICK TELFAIR, 
MOKA

C092301 J. Cube Computer Services Ltd C/O MARY JANE ANTHONY PTE MONIER 
RODRIGUES

C092556 MCKC LTD C/O PIM BOUTIK ROYAL ROAD GRAND 
BAIE

C092704 WATSUP LTD AVENUE D'EPINAY Q BORNES

C092741 TILANI & COMPAGNIE LTEE SOCIAL & COMMUNITY CENTRE LANE 
MOUNT ORY MOKA

C092784 SHA - NUSH TRADING CO LTD BEACH LANE PEREYBERE

C094449 LOLULA COMPANY LTD CHEMIN TI DIAMANT ELIZABETHVILLE 
BAIE DU TOMBEAU

C094522 Widescope Marketing Services Ltd 12 MELLISH STREET FOREST SIDE 
CUREPIPE

C094546 ORATORIO CONSEIL LTD S.INDIRA GANDHI ROAD TRIOLET

C094601 SELEUCIA CONSTRUCTION LTD 45 PATEL STREET MARE GRAVIER BEAU 
BASSIN

C094617 Soorya G Events Ltd 223 ROYAL ROAD FOREST SIDE
C094745 PRIME EVENTS LTD 17 RAMDAREE LANE COROMANDEL

C094774 WALKS ON WALLS LTD C/O FIN ACC, 21-23 MGR GONIN STREET 
GROUND FLOOR, FAIRFAX HOUSE PORT 
LOUIS

C094860 Agricool Ltd SCHOOL ST RIV DES ANGUILLES
C095037 SOCIETE MERIGNAC LTEE ROYAL RD 1ST FLOOR COLUMBIA COURT 

Q BORNES
C095107 UTAYA Co. LTD Royal Road Ripailles St Pierre
C095174 Sunset C (One) Ltd LA MIVOIE LEORA BEACHFRONT 

APARTMENTS Cl TAMARIN
C095201 Click Now Co Ltd 3 MORC BELLONGUET BROWN SEQUARD 

ST CUREPIPE
C095286 BLUE BRIDGE TELESERVICES 

LIMITED
Lot 75 Morcellement VRS No 2 Malakoff

C095337 DEBT COLLECTION SERVICES LTD 518 ST JAMES COURT ST DENIS ST PORT 
LOUIS
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FILE NO. NAME OF COMPANY REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF COMPANY

C095495 L’ATELIER by William Ltd. 151 MORCELLEMENT TROU AUX BICHES 
TROU AUX BICHES

C095589 GOOD WARE LTD ROUTE ROYALE LE GOULET BAIE DU 
TOMBEAU

C095599 HEAVY WEIGHT COMPANY LTD SSR LANE MARE TABAC

C095707 SOUBEN PROPERTIES LTD IMPASSE FAUCON CUREPIPE
C095779 GOLDLINE SPARE PARTS CO LTD 163 FATADIN SQUARE HENRIETTA 

VACOAS
C095831 YOUROPTICS LIMITED 10 FRERE FELIX DE VALOIS ST PORT 

LOUIS
C096114 Applied Mind Training Ltd ST JEAN ROAD NO 501 1 ST FLOOR NEWRY 

COMPLEX QUATRE BORNES
C096131 DAN MOODY Investments Ltd 35 AVE JACQUIER PTE AUX SABLES
C096153 ISADORA LIMITED B12 CHRYSAMTHEME N H D C CAMP 

LEVIEUX ROSE HILL
C096405 LIVE-INN GREEN LTD CNR AVE SODNAC & AVE IBIS SODNAC Q 

BORNES
C096899 TAJ TRAVEL & TOURS LTD ROYAL ROAD UNION PARK
C096954 Forecoming Services Ltd RUE MARGEOT SOUILLAC
C097277 MULTI TROVE LTD C/O KAILASH MANI NUNKOO TROU AUX 

BICHES RD TRIOLET
C097466 CONCRETE TRANSPORT CO LTD AVE LIMIT PLAISANCE ROSE HILL
C097481 SAFE CONTRACTING LTD BASSIN ROAD HIGHLANDS PHOENIX
C097498 Iliad Investment Ltd OFFICES 221 BLOCK B THE JUNCTION 

BUSINESS HUB CALEBASSES
C097500 BELAIR ROSE D'OR CO. LTD ROYAL ROAD BEL AIR RIVIERE SECHE
C097518 FULLEXE LTD 8 BLOC CAMELIA HARRIS ST PORT LOUIS
C097590 GLOBAL FORTUNE TRADING 

COMPANY LTD.
ROYAL ROAD MON DESIR VACOAS

C097602 TOTOF CROISIERES LTEE C/O MR JOCELIN EMMANUEL ORANGE 
LA GROTTE LANE PLAINE MAGNIEN

C097748 THE TOOTH SPA LTD PLOT 3 MORC SOCIETE GENTILLY ROYAL 
RD GENTILLY MOKA

C097840 FLAVIGNY LTD CNR BANCILLON LABOURDONNAIS STS 
PORT LOUIS

C098020 LEBOVALLON MANUFACTURING 
COMPANY LIMITED

198 MORCELLEMENT LORETTE BLUE 
BAY ROAD BEAU VALLON, MAHEBOURG

C098092 T.Saravana Company Ltd SARAVANA BLDG RAYMOND RIVET ST 
MONT ROCHES

C098099 TECHPLUS SUPPLIES HUB LTD NO. 14 MORC L'ABRI PAMPLEMOUSSES
C098161 KEY EDGE INVESTMENT LTD 403 ST JAMES COURT ST DENIS STREET 

PORT LOUIS
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FILE NO. NAME OF COMPANY REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF COMPANY

C098270 TOTAL COACHING SOLUTIONS CO 
LTD

C/O MR SERGE ARMANSIN RUE DES 
FLAMBOYANTS COASTAL ROAD ROCHES 
NOIRES

C098291 Hero Travel Tours Ltd 58 G ANNUM ROAD VACO AS
C098305 Multistreem Limited 5 MGR Leen, Beau Bassin
C098371 S.N.Z HITECH RECONDITIONING 

CENTRE LTD
PETIT VERGER ST PIERRE

C098389 FRANÇOIS TRANSPORT CO LTD ROYAL ROAD ARSENAL
C098591 Cartwheel Investments Ltd PRUDENT ST FLOREAL
C098605 MAKNER CONCEPT & DESIGN 

LIMITED
83 AVENUE TRIANON 1 MORC ST JEAN Q 
BORNES

C098735 E - BRIDGE CONSULTING LTD Royal Road, Malenga, St Pierre
C098872 ZOOMPHICS CREATIVE SOLUTION 

LTD
8, OSLO LANE BERNADIN DE ST PIERRE 
VALLEE DES PRETRES

C099439 CLASSY KIDS LTD COUVENT DE LORETTE ST VACOAS
C099587 BJ INVESTMENTS LTD MON DESERT ROAD P MAGNIEN
C101603 M DIVISION CO. LTD 167 ROYAL ROAD BEAU BASSIN
C101884 WHITE LAKE CO LTD 1 LAHASSE STREET ROSE HILL
C101978 ROMI MARGARINE ENTERPRISE LTD HIGHLANDS PHOENIX
Cl02025 LA VIGIE INVESTMENT CO. LTD C/O CHANTIER NAVAL DE L'OCEAN 

INDIEN LTD FREEPORT ZONE 11 MER 
ROUGE PORT LOUIS

Cl02026 NAVAL INVESTMENT COMPANY LTD C/O CHANTIERNAVALDE LOCEAN INDIEN 
LTD FREEPORT ZONE II MER ROUGE PORT 
LOUIS

Cl02027 SUROIT HOLDING LTD C/O CHANTIER NAVAL DE L’OCEAN 
INDIEN LTD FREEPORT ZONE II MER 
ROUGE P.LOUIS

C102170 RAIHAN COMPANY LTD ROYAL ROAD L'ESCALIER
C102175 CORPORATE VISION LIMITED C/O T. BHAUGEERUTTY 2A ANGUS ROAD 

VACOAS
C102367 S. SHAVA TRADING LTD. RESERVOIR RD GRAND BAY
Cl02557 SAM PROFER PLUS CO LTD LE MARIE VACOAS
Cl02704 V . VISHAL ELECTRONIC CO LTD ROYAL ROAD DERNINGHAM TRIOLET
Cl06708 SOAPETI INTERNATIONAL TRADING 

LTD
5TH FLOOR HENNESSY COURT POPE 
HENNESSY STREET PORT LOUIS

C106759 Société de Pêche Professionnelle et 
Industrielle Ltd

24 AVE DES HIRONDELLES QUATRE 
BORNES

Cl06802 Pro-Coverage Ltd Victoria Building 1 corderie Port Louis
Cl07055 The Professional Medical Healthcarers Ltd BOOJHAWOON ROAD UPPER DAGOTIERE
C107307 Crystal Beach Resort Ltd ST DENIS ST 2 RIVER COURT PORT LOUIS
Cl07322 WACA ZANZIBAR LTD 62 A TELFAIR AVENUE QUATRES BORNES
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Date: 05/10/2020
Registrar of Companies 
One Cathedral Square, 

Jules Koenig Street, 
Port-Louis.

General Notice No. 1446 of2020

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 310(l)(c) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given pursuant to section 309(l)(b) of the Companies Act 2001 that the companies listed 
below are to be removed from the register as there is reason to believe that these companies have ceased to 
carry on business and there is no other reason for these companies to continue in existence/ have failed to 
pay the registration fees/ have not filed the annual return as required under section 223(2) of the Act.

Objection, if any, shall be delivered to the Registrar of Companies not later than 10 November 2020.

FILE NO. NAME OF COMPANY REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF COMPANY

Cl0779 DE CHAZAL DU MEE CTO LTD 10 FRERES FELIX DE VALOIS STREET 
PORT LOUIS MAURITIUS

C11010 GAZ-O-AIR LTEE NO 18 SOCIETE LES FLAMBOYANTS 
SOREZE PAILLES

C11789 2000 TOURS LTD CR DOUGLAS/MORRISSON STS PORT 
MATHURIN RODRIGUES

C11901 CANMAR & CO LTD 233 Barracuda Lane, Trou Aux Biches

C070438 S.H. GHOORA MOTORS COMPANY 
LTD

10 CALICUT ST PORT LOUIS MAURITIUS

C070800 Feizal Timol & Co Ltd 299/1 ROYAL ROAD ROSE HILL

C071762 DOCTEUR RADIATEUR LTD 25 COLONEL DRAPER ST BEAU BASSIN 
MAURITIUS

C071795 GOOD HOPE TEXTILE LTD ROYAL ROAD ROSE HILL MAURITIUS
C071816 Jean Marc André Company Ltd C/O JEAN MARC ANDRE MONT LUBIN 

RODRIGUES

C071857 IOI Tobacco Traders Company Ltd. C/O BACHA POOROOSOOTUM
SCHOENFIELD RD RIV DU REMPART 
MAURITIUS

C071927 Fashion & Jewels Ltd PLAINES DE GERSIGNY ST CENTRAL 
FLACQ MAURITIUS

C072198 Indrajay & Sons Ltd MORISSON RD PAMPLEMOUSSES 
MAURITIUS

C072282 G S POWER BATTERIES LTD ' OLD PAILLES ROAD PAILLES MAURITIUS
C072327 Enterprise Development Consulting (EDC) 

Ltd
DOOKHY LANE ROYAL ROAD LALLMATIE 
MAURITIUS

C072367 Biswal Scientific Supplies Ltd BISWAL HOUSE MONTEE 'S' PTE RIVIERE 
MAURITIUS

C072445 Bluestone Transport Ltd ROUTE ABBATOIR LA CAVERNE VACOAS 
MAURITIUS
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FILE NO. NAME OF COMPANY REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF COMPANY
C072452 BLUEBERRY WORLD LTD MIDDLE TOWN CENTER LA LOUISE 

QUATRE BORNES
C072479 G.M.D.S LIMITEE 12 JOHN KENNEDY ST TRANQUEBAR 

PORT LOUIS MAURITIUS
C072552 Hennessy Tower Ltd LOT 22 BANK STREET HYVEC HOUSE 

EBENE CYBERCITY
C093000 AHRIM ACTION 5TH FLOOR BARKLY WHARF CAUDAN 

WATERFRONT PORT LOUIS
C093035 SMA FROZEN FOODS LTD HOLLYROOAD NO 2 VACOAS
C093086 KEVIN PECHEUR COMPANY LTD DEVALET LANE PASCAL RD BRISEE 

VERDIERE
C093290 BEACHAYO LTD 76 AVENUE ANTELME Q BORNES
C093466 LABOUR HYDRAULICS CO LTD LA TOUR KOENIG N H D C PTE AUX 

SABLES
C093467 Full Pipe Ltd 57 VUILLEMIN ST BEAU BASSIN
C093904 DEMACAR LTD C/O MARPCO LTD ROUTE LA MARIE GLEN 

PARK VACOAS
C093955 SHAMAISH ENTERPRISE LTD 15 MAULANA ABDOOL RASHID NAWAB 

ST EX TURTLE PORT LOUIS
C093965 Davy & Son Engineering Ltd PETIT VERGER ST PIERRE
C094106 GRAND LIVING LTD 31 POPE HENNESSY ST PORT LOUIS
C094146 Homeopathy Cures Ltd 6 AVE BERNARDIN DE ST PIERRE QUATRE 

BORNES
C094312 DINA ARABI BAKERY LTD C/O BOOLAKY ABDUL WAAHID ROYAL

ROAD MEDINE CAMP DE MASQUE
C099919 TIBAMBARI LTD DEBARCADERE ROAD TIBAMBARI LANE 

LE BOUCHON P MAGNIEN
Cl00042 JIS (INDIA) LTD OOGUR LANE BASSIN ROAD Q BORNES
Cl00270 MODAMIX Ltd CASSE GOON ROAD PTE AUX 

CANONNIERS
Cl00387 PHOENIX RESIDENTIAL CARE 

HOME LTD
HAZAREESING LANE CASTEL

Cl00392 MANO-A-MANO LTD ABATTOIR ROAD LA CAVERNE VACOAS
Cl00642 Little Paradiso Ltd DI0-1 LE MERITT APARTMENT SODNAC 

LINK ROAD PHOENIX
C100965 Ecol'eau Filtre Ltée 25, PALMA ROAD QUATRE BORNES
C101562 Doobah Fashion Limited SCHOOL LANE CAMP DE MASQUE PAVE
C107368 The Violet Tulip Ltd 1ST FLOOR CYBER TOWER 1 CYBER CITY

EBENE
C107372 The Purple Tulip Ltd 1ST FLOOR CYBER TOWER 1 CYBERCITY 

EBENE
C107373 The Opal Tulip Ltd 1ST FLOOR TOWER 1 CYBER TOWER 1 

CYBER CITY EBENE
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FILE NO. NAME OF COMPANY REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF COMPANY

C107511 QUINCAILLERIE PETIT VERGER 
LIMITED

LOT NO 107 VERGER LES BAINS PETIT 
VERGER PTE AUX SABLES

Cl07529 Sarah Garden Ltd 174 SADALLY ROAD VACOAS
C107548 Nibert Concrete Ltd B68 CITE CATHERINE LAGREMENT ST 

PIERRE
Cl07648 Atelier Noven Ltd 52 PETUNIAS AVE COROMANDEL
C107810 The Magenta Tulip Ltd 1ST FLOOR CYBER TOWER 1, CYBERCITY

EBENE
C107817 Anastasia Fashion Ltd NO 6 AIMEE DOROTHY STREET BATTERIE 

CASSEE ROCHE BOIS
C107886 LINKOPIA (MAURITIUS) LTD 3RD FLOOR CYBER TOWER 2 EBENE 

CYBER TOWER 2 EBENE
Cl07955 Bootango Ltd C/O NAVITAS CORPORATE SERVICES 

LTD NAVITAS HOUSE ROBINSON ROAD 
FLOREAL

Cl 07995 LE PARK DECOUVERTE COMPANY 
LTD

ROYAL RD NOUVELLE DECOUVERTE ST 
PIERRE

C108050 Fresh Quest Ltd TRES BON RD NO 1 VACOAS
C108237 MAYVEN MEGA LTD ANSE AUX ANGLAIS, RODRIGUES
C108415 MY PLEASURE TRAVEL LTD MELOTTE ROAD CREVE COEUR
C108978 ULTIMATE BUSINESS LINE LTD 11-JUGDUTH LANE LA CAVERNE VACOAS
C109185 HYPERCAR (MAURITIUS) LTD RISHI DAYANAND ROAD PLAINE 

MAGNIEN
Cl 09249 YERANTEL Ltd 16 PAGODA LANE CAMP CAVAL CUREPIPE
Cl 09464 LAS VEGAS INTERNET RESEARCH 

AND MARKETING LTD
15D VILLAGE DE LA MONTAGNE CAMP 
LEVIEUX ROSE HILL

Cl 09692 DELIZIA MARKETING LIMITED CHEMIN ROTIN NO. 1 LA SOURCE QUATRE 
BORNES

C109958 ETA CANADA LTD Remi Ollier Street, Suite 703, Level 7, Richard 
House, Port Louis

Cl 10225 SAS DAIRY FARMS LTD C/O SANJAY K.BHUNJAN BEEJADHUR 
STREET RIVIERE DU REMPART

Cl 10564 Effex Sound Co Ltd D.K JANKEE STREET L'ESPERANCE PITON
Cl 10593 Mobilia Co. Ltd LA VANILLE REUNION VACOAS
Cl 10692 Boiclimatik Cie Ltee C/O IMRAN BACHOOA 81 GUEULE PAVE 

MORC BLUE BAY
C110714 CORAL DREAM LTD COOMBES LANE VACOAS
Cl 10774 Espace Module Ltée BASSIN ROAD, HIGHLANDS, PHOENIX
C110788 Ramsaha Fashion Ltd CASSOOMALLY ROAD CENTRAL FLACQ
C110805 ANG Xchange Solutions Ltd RUE LOUIS AUGUSTE ESNOUF STREET 

BOTANICAL GARDENS ST CUREPIPE
C110912 SATELEC CO. LTD BLOCK 3 MEDINE BUSINESS PARK BLACK 

RIVER RD CASCAVELLE
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FILE NO. NAME OF COMPANY REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF COMPANY
Cl 10947 MAX SURVEILLANCE LTD MORCELLEMENT CARLOS TAMARIN
C111005 PAURIELLE FOOD PRODUCTS LTD 18 RTE BASSIN QUATRE BORNES
Cl 11022 Sea Gold Fishing Co Ltd. 14 CNR ORLEAN & VOLCY POUGNET ST 

PORT LOUIS PORT LOUIS
C111086 Fishing World Co Ltd A7 DR EDWARDS CUREPIPE
C111170 FAST TOUCH CAR SERVICES LTD ROUILLARD LANE TOMBEAU BAY
C111274 DANY N VEER FOODS LTD OLD FLACQ ROAD, KOYRATTY 

CALEBASSES
Cl 11382 E-transfer Technologies Ltd 69B, CALCUTTA STREET PORT LOUIS
Cl 11408 MERIT ACCOUNTING LTD AVENUE JOHN KENNEDY VACOAS
C111592 MABENA CATERING SERVICE LTD LA CAVERNE NO 1 VACOAS
C111599 Otium Hospitality Ltd 55 MORC BLUE PRINT TYACK RIVIERE 

DES ANGUILLES
C111772 MINI FAMILY BAMBOUS 

SUPERMARKET LTD
AHMED JEEWAN LANE LA FERME

Cl 11865 Elegant Villas Ltd LOUIS DE ROCHECOUSTE STREET 
FOREST SIDE CUREPIPE

Cl 11943 Saphir Bay Ltd APPARTEMENT LE PETIT PRINCE ROYAL 
ROAD PEREYBERE

C111998 ESHAN CHAUSSURES LTEE CIRCONSTANCE ST PIERRE
Cl12026 VANN CAPITAL LTD Chemin Vingt Pieds 1 st Floor, Sensoria Building 

Grand Baie
Cl 12093 ALICE Car Rental Ltd 2, WESTERN BOUNDARY QUATRE 

BORNES
C112154 HARISENG LTD 20D WILOUGHBY AVENUE QUATRE 

BORNES
C112162 ESSENCE OF HEALTH LTD. 17 MANICK AVENUE PALMA RD 

QUATRE BORNES
C112174 HANS & DASH COMPANY LTD 300 ROUTE ST JOSEPH TERRE ROUGE
Cl 12204 NL Indian Ocean Ltd 39 ST GEORGES STREET 1ST FLOOR 

AVSTEL IMMOBILIER PORT LOUIS
C112330 TOP GARAGE LTD ROYAL ROAD PELLEGRIN SEBASTOPOL
C112368 CHAVINASHA Ltd. ROYAL ROAD BOIS CHERI SAVANNE
C112391 T.COUMAREN AND SON LTD. 1 SOLFERINO ST ROSE HILL
C112505 Dive Immersion Ltd ROUTE DU JARDIN ARSENAL
C112534 Capgemini Consulting Ltd ROYAL RD LALLMATIE
C112546 GCR Quali-Invest Ltd AZURI VILLAGE CORLIS LOT 26 ROCHES 

NOIRES
C112564 SODNAC B.P.O SERVICES Co. Ltd. LOT 89 AVENUE DES DAUPHINS, ALBION
C112775 MavRus Tour Ltd C/O ANEX CORPORATE SERVICES LTD 

9TH FLOOR EBENE TOWER 52 CYBERCITY 
EBENE
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C112872 FOOTINVESTMENT LTD c/o ANCHORPOINT SERVICES LTD 11 A, 
BROAD AVENUE ST JEAN BELLE ROSE

Cl17394 GBRENT LTD COASTAL ROAD OPPOSITE LENNARD 
STORE GRAND BAY POINTE AUX 
CANNONIERS

C117411 LHF MARINE DEVELOPMENT LTD 7, CHATEAUNEUF STREET BEAU BASSIN
Cl17478 WOOD DESIGN CRAFTS LTD BEELUR ROAD NOUVELLE DECOUVERTE

Cl 17607 DARIO BOUTIK LTD ROYAL ROAD GRAND BAY
C117617 FUESTECH LIMITED ROYAL ROAD RICHE TERRE
Cl 17624 AZAGEN MOOTOOSAMY

ENGINEERING LTD
H.RAMNAIN RD ST MARTIN BEAU BASSIN

Cl 17700 IFRAME NETWORK LTD 4 Mayer Street, Port Louis.
C117734 IDEZI SOLUTIONS LTD 212 PALMA ROAD QUATRE BORNES
Cl 17844 GOVITEX CO LTD ROTIN NO 2 AVENUE PUSPAH LANE 

QUATRE BORNES
C117873 Top Distributors Ltd 18 A.G.M ISSACK STREET PORT LOUiS
C118013 XINDA INTERNATIONAL TRAVEL 

SERVICE LTD
3 SHAKESPEARE STREET PORT LOUIS

Cl 18073 MR CHEF LTD RAJ KOWLESSUR ROAD, 7TH MILLE 
TRIOLET VIKAS BUILDING TRIOLET

C118369 IMAURUN LTEE FREEPORT ZONE 5 MER ROUGE PORT 
LOUIS

Cl 18423 TRIPLE CONSTRUCTION & 
RENOVATION WORKS LTD

HOLLYWOOD STREET BOIS ROUGE 
PAMPLEMOUSSES

Cl 18459 Zanzibar Strategy Ltd C/O AGE MANAGEMENT LTD AVE BAISSAC 
& DUPERRE STREET QUATRE-BORNES

C118471 TRIVOLI LTD HENRY ROBERT PLAINE WILHEMS 
CUREPIPE

Cl 18493 IMPRESS DECOR LTD 275 ROYAL ROAD PALMA QUATRE 
BORNES

C118576 ZORBAS THE GREEK CO LTD Royal Road Next to Police Station Grand Baie
Cl 18608 PHARMACY CHUMMUN CO LTD MORC JAC MADAME LOLO ROSE BELLE
C118615 Ascent Investment Manager Ltd Chemin Vingt Pieds 1st Floor, Sensoria Building 

Grand Baie
C118910 ZANIV TRADING LIMITED 91 LA PAIX STREET PORT LOUIS
Cl 18972 HARMONY DEVELOPMENTS LTD

*
C/O ZENITH CONSULTING LTD 3RD FLOOR, 
TOWER III, NEXTERACOM CYBERCITY, 
EBENE

C118989 HYDRAULIC EXPERT LTD ROYAL ROAD JET BUILDING
COROMANDEL

C119011 COSMOPROF LTD 165 ROYAL ROAD F14 SUNSHEEL CENTRE 
CUREPEIPE

Cl 19028 LES ENVIES D'EMILIE LTEE DE CAEN FOREST SIDE CUREPIPE
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Cl 19049 LSM CONSULTING LTD ROYAL ROAD PALM BUILDING TAMARIN
C119104 VN NET PC LTD ROYAL ROAD CALEBASSE

PAMPLEMOUSSES
C119137 DARK HORSE FILMS (MAURITIUS) 

LTD
Royal Road, 1 Le Petrel Complex, Grand Baie

C119218 EL MARISCO (MAURITIUS) LTD C/O PRAVEEKASH D PRAYAG SHASTRI 
ROAD BOIS PIGNOLET TERRE ROUGE

Cl 19240 MAURESLIE LTD 180 ROYAL ROAD KADEL BUILDING BEAU 
BASSIN

Cl 19268 FRESH FISH (MAURITIUS) LTD Suite 760A91), 7th Floor, Dias Pier Le Caudan 
Waterfront Port Louis

C119311 ROUGH DIAMONDS CO LTD JASMIN ROAD BELLE - MARE
C119319 PORTABLE SOLAR ENERGY LTD LOT 7 AVENUE MAXIME REMY ROCHES 

BRUNES BEAU BASSIN
Cl19366 BELT DESIGN LTD C/O LE DERNIER COMPTOIR ROYAL ROAD 

LA MIVOIE TAMARIN
C131433 PATPRO LTD JOLIETTE ROAD PETITE RIVIERE PETITE 

RIVIÈRE

C131456 AMMAN TRANS SHIPPING LTD 140 PAMPLEMOUSSES STREET
ABERCROMBIE PORT LOUIS

C131608 PHYSIS BIOPOWER LTD 15 Cantons Nol Vacoas
C131658 SOMOGEGE LTEE CHEVREAU LANE CALODYNE GRAND 

GAUBE
C131781 MIDEATIK CO LTD 13 WINSTON CHURCHILL STREET ROSE 

HILL
C131791 REGINA MARINE SERVICES LTD 18 VISHNU KCHETRA STREET PORT LOUIS
C131937 Chris Boat Park Co Ltd Archipel Road Calodyne
C131991 Global Corporate Formation Limited C/O KOOSRAJ RAMANAH OFFICE 113 

2ND FLOOR MEDINE MEWS CHAUSSEE 
STREET PORT
LOUIS

Cl32048 PRESTIGE DE FRANCE CO LTÉE GUIBIES ROAD PAILLES PORT LOUIS
C132061 RYLEC TRADING LTD RUE BERNARDIN DE ST PIERRE VALLEE 

DES PRETRES
Cl32080 PRO-DI CONTRACTING LTD AVENUE CYPRUS SUGAR PLANTERS 

POINTE AUX SABLES
C132095 Acuitas Communications Limited C/o Globefin Corporate Services Ltd, 5 President 

John Kennedy Street,
Rogers House Port Louis

C132107 AGRISA FARMING CO LTD 7 ST FRANCOIS XAVIER STREET PORT 
LOUIS

Cl32262 TERMINAL CARGO LIMITED MACADAM ROAD TOMBEAU BAY PORT 
LOUIS
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FILE NO. NAME OF COMPANY REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF COMPANY

Cl 32300 ORAL CARE DENTAL CLINIC LTD 176, BASSIN ROAD QUATRE BORNES
Cl 32339 SPES Limited LOTS 49 MONC RIPAILLE PAMPLEMOUSSE
Cl 32594 SUNLIGHT GARMENTS LTD ALLEE BRILLANT CASTEL PHOENIX
Cl 32601 AFRICA REVELATIONS LTD 9 AVENUE DES GOYAVIERS QUATRE 

BORNES
Cl 32602 STS AUTO COMPANY LTD ROYAL ROAD CIRCONSTANCE ST PIERRE
Cl 32645 I-VISION OPTICAL LTD GIBSON ROAD MAURICE PRUDENT 

FLOREAL
C132654 MARCO PLUS PROPERTIES LTD Royal Road c/o Ousha Kumari Jugun Riviere du 

poste
Cl 32698 VPMD-TECH LTD RIVIERE BAPTISTE RD ST PIERRE

Registrar of Companies 
One Cathedral Square, 

Jules Koenig Street, 
Port-Louis.

General Notice No. 1447 of2020

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 310(l)(c) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given pursuant to section 309(1 )(b) of the Companies Act 2001 that the companies listed 
below are to be removed from the register as there is reason to believe that these companies have ceased to 
carry on business and there is no other reason for these companies to continue in existence/ have failed to 
pay the registration fees/ have not filed the annual return as required under section 223(2) of the Act.

Objection, if any, shall be delivered to the Registrar of Companies not later than 11 November 2020.

FILE NO. NAME OF COMPANY REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF COMPANY
Cl 1704 SOOBRATTY EXCELLENT 

INTERNATIONAL LTD
64 S.S.RAMGOOLAM STREET PORT LOUIS

C12157 S.K.N. INVESTMENTS LTD 10, Frère Félix de Valois Street C/O Uday Gujadhur, DCDM 
Management Services Ltd, Essar House Port Louis

Cl 12881 NETMARK SERVICES LTD 14 AVENUE STEVENSON, QUATRE BORNES

C112941 ITALIA KITCHEN & LAUNDRY 
EQUIPMENT LTD

C/O SERVANSINGH ASSOCIATES 2ND FL FO SING 
BLDG EDITH CAVEL ST P LOUIS

Cl 12942 Eris Corporate Secretarial Services Ltd 3RD FLOOR, 89 CORNER ST JEAN ROAD AND 
DRAPER STREET QUATRE BORNES

Cl 12992 NEELA MUNGUN LTD BK14 ACACIALANE 24 BEAU VALLON MAHEBOURG

Cl 13048 Mobilestone Ltd *Remi Ollier Street, Suite 703, Level 7, Richard House, Port 
Louis

Cl 13055 The Brand Cafe Ltd ADE CHEMIN 20 PIED G BAY

C113098 Moderation animation service client 
interactive ltd.

Remi Ollier Street, Suite 703, Level 7, Richard House, Port 
Louis

C113125 Etudes Conceptions et Promotions 
Immobilières Ltee

19 Church Street Port Louis
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C113164 Backbay Investment and Properties Ltd OLE AVENUE, VALLEE DES PRETRES, PORT LOUIS

C113265 SOPHYSIO LTEE 2 VILLAS SANS SOUCIS ANSE LA RAIE C 
MALHEUREUX

C113536 MobZoo Ltd Remi Ollier Street, Suite 703, Level 7, Richard House, Port 
Louis

Cl13940 N. BUNDHOO Agro (Mtius) Ltd C/O MR BUNDHOO NARAIN 30 ROYAL ROAD LES 
MARIANNES LONG MOUNTAIN

C113953 SADCO ALUMINIUM CO LTD CORPS DE GARDE AVENUE STANLEY ROSE HILL

C114140 Mobile InteractivApp Ltd Remi Ollier, Suite 703, Level 7, Richard House, Port Louis

C114142 SMSBoost Ltd Remi Ollier Street, Suite 703, Level 7, Richard House, Port 
Louis

C114143 Tempero Group Ltd Remi Ollier Street, Suite 703, Level 7, Richard House, Port 
Louis

C114144 CHAMGA Ltd Remi Ollier Street, Suite 703, Level 7, Richard House, Port 
Louis

C114336 ZHY MERVILLE CO LTD 36, MADRAS STREET, PLAINE VERTE, PORT LOUIS

Cl 14544 VANESSAR & CO LTD S. CHANDRA BOSE RD FOND DU SAC

Cl14547 BEAUX SONGES IMMOBILIER ET 
VILLA LTEE

C/O MANINDRA UTCHANAH CHEMIN DES BRISES 
FLOREAL

C114710 Clavis Finance et Stratégie Ltée Chemin Vingt Pieds 1st Floor, Sensoria Building Grand 
Baie

Cl14786 HOWLAKHAN TISSUS CO LTD SIR WINSTON CHURCHILL CUREPIPE

Cl14842 VICTORIA’S CROWN CO LTD ROYAL ROAD BRAMSTHAN CENTRAL FLACQ

Cl14866 KAFÉ-OLÉ LTÉE Avenue Des Alamandas, Residence St Jacques, Flic En Flac

C114982 Pyrite Gemstones Ltd 35 MGR MURPHY AVENUE QUATRE BORNES

C115084 WOOD PRO LTD 47 MORCELLEMENT SAGITAIRE MONT CHOISY

C115157 NOSHBAY LTD ROYAL ROAD SAINT JULIEN D’ HOTMAN

C115311 BAKERY SUPERGOLD LTD 15 CANTONS HIRONDELLES ISLAM VACOAS

C115356 ROYAL FEATHERS LTD 73 SSR STREET PORT LOUIS

Cl15449 OCEAN SUNLIGHT LTD Cnr Silicon Ave & Bank St, 9th Floor, Maeva Tower Ebene 
CyberCity, 72201

C115577 Cvert Salad Bar Ltd ROYAL ROAD D’EPINAY

Cl15643 LA PLONGEE ROYALE LIMITED CNR OF POPE HENNESSY & SUFFREN STREETS C/O 
ERRIAH CHAMBERS, 2ND FLOOR PORT LOUIS

C115669 SAYANA TRADING LTD ROYAL ROAD VALETTA

C115756 LA CIGALE ET LE DODO LTD C/o Sinews Global Ltd Sir Virgil Naz Street 15th Floor 
Citadelle Mall Port Louis

Cl15763 ISL OUTSOURCING LTD 102 ALLEE BRILLANT CASTEL

C115770 SANTAGO CO. LTD ROYAL ROAD PLAINES DES GERSIGNY 
CENTRAL FLACQ

C115900 N.R PEEROO CONSTRUCTION CO 
LTD

JOHN KENNEDY STREET TRIOLET

C115979 KMH FOODS SERVICE LTD NO 153 RESIDENCE PINEWOOD GARDENS WOOTUN 
CAMP FOUQUEREAUX
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C116153 TANGAZA TECHNOLOGIES LTD TROU AUX BICHES DRIVE A6 COTE OUEST TROU 
AUX BICHES

C116359 BHAY CONSTRUCTION CO LTD ROYAL ROAD, CANOT BAMBOUS

C116371 CIVIC WATCH EDITING AND 
PUBLISHING LTD

NEW MARKET ROAD 8TH MILE TRIOLET

C116385 SIX TO TEN FUEL SERVICES LTD SIR WILLIAM CHURCH HILL CUREPIPE

C116415 RED PROPERTY DEVELOPERS LTD 10TH FLOOR ORANGE TOWER EBENE

C116461 M2M.tax TRAINING SOLUTIONS 
LTD

28 BIS EUGENE LAURENT STREET PORT LOUIS

Cl 16676 EMADOM INVEST (MAURITIUS) 
LTD

153 RESIDENCE PALMYRE FLIC EN FLAC

C116813 BODEGA INTERNATIONAL LTD 9 CEZANNE STREET VILLE NOIRE MAHEBOURG

C116892 ZEALLIE LIMITED 83 AVENUE TRIANON 1 MORCELLEMENT ST JEAN 
QUATRE BORNES

C116898 SEVEN7KEBAB CO LTD 20 VOLCY POUGNET STREET PORT LOUIS

Cl 16920 Gotwo Limited AVENUE DES CAPITAINES CHEMIN CASSE GOON 
POINTE AUX CANNONIERS

Cl 16974 BOAT CONSULTING LTD ALLEE DE L’ERMITAGE PEREYBERE GRAND BAIE

C117117 WHO ELSE LTD CUREPIPE ROYAL ROAD FOREST SIDE NO 10 LA 
JOLLETTE ROYAL ROAD FOREST SIDE CUREPIPE

C117239 DEVINA TEELUCK COMPANY LTD BRANCH ROAD BON ACCUEIL

C117248 BENRISH LTD 20 VANDERMEESH STREET ROSE HILL

C119455 G MOHADEB BROTHERS CO LTD CAVSTA LANE CASTEL

Cl 19507 S.Y.RAYMODE CARD LTD REMY OLLIER STREET IMP ARGENTINE 2 BONNE 
TERRE VACORS’

C119525 MIDLAND CARS LTD SAINT CLEMENT STREET CUREPIPE

Cl 19718 EMCHIGE LTD REMI OLLIER STREET IMP ARGENTINE 2 BONNE 
TERRE VACOAS

Cl 19743 RAINBOW CONSTRUCTION LTD ROYAL ROAD MOUNT ORY MOKA
Cl 19772 ORGANZA LTD C/O LES ORCHIDEES HOTELGRAND BAIE
C119807 HAYCH LTD ROYAL ROAD SAINT PIERRE

C119828 BEN CONSULT LTD LA MIVOIE ROYAL ROAD TAMARIN
C119851 HOTEL CHALET COTE MER LTD COROMANDEL RODRIGUES
C119933 RED ACE LTD MAURICE STREET MAHÉBOURG

Cl 20000 ABOO BAKAR MERVILLE 
HARDWARE SHOP LTD

CORNER DIEGO GARCIA&BOULEVARD PITOT 
PORT LOUIS

C120196 B&B LIGHT N SHINE ENTERPRISE 
LTD

RAJAH STREET L’ESPERANCE TREBUCHET

C120230 CHICKEN 4 U COMPANY LTD 11 SEAGULL STREET LES CASERNES CUREPIPE
C120265 BOATING LIFESTYLE 

(MAURITIUS) LTD
DAUPHIN LANE BAIE DU CAP

C120349 CLEANPLANET SYSTEM LTD 61 AVENUE DES BONITES TAMARIN
Cl 20463 TAMARIN TREE DESIGN LTD CATHEDRAL SQUARE, 9TH FLOOR, LES BACHA 

PORT LOUIS
Cl 20475 QUEENZ UNIVERSE LTD JAGRITI ROAD 7TH MILE TRIOLET
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C120510 FINAL CLEANING LTD MORCELLEMENT GUNGADIN, CANDOS 

QUATRE BORNES
C120511 ZACATUNA LTD Remi Ollier Street, Suite 703, Level 7, Richard House, Port 

Louis
C120512 DREAM AND GO LTD Remi Ollier Street, Suite 703, Level 7, Richard House, Port 

Louis

C120513 INTERACTIVELAB SOLUTIONS 
LTD

Remi Ollier Street, Suite 703, Level 7, Richard House, Port 
Louis

C120514 PJ HARDWARE LTD C/O BERTRAND MARIE PAOLA MYLENNE, 
G22 NHDC FLAT, TOMBEAU BAY

C120581 WULF SECURITY SERVICES LTD RAMFUL LANE CARREAU LALINNE VACOAS

C120648 PRITAM & SONS CO. LTD 11 EMILE SAUZIER STREET CUREPIPE ROAD 
CUREPIPE

Cl20650 ALBANY FREEWAY LTD 21 GASTON VELLIN STREET BEAU BASSIN

C120713 WINE DIVINE LTD LA JOLIETTE INDUSTRIAL ZONE PETITE RIVIERE

C120778 JMH Stable Ltd C/O MAURITIUS TURF CLUB CHAMP DE MARS 
PORT LOUIS

Cl20794 B.CLASSIC CONSTRUCTION LTD CLAIREFONDS NO.2 VACOAS

C120840 NATURE GUARDIAN DEUX LTD PAVE ROAD PETIT RAFFRAY

C120888 SD DE MARIGNY INVESTMENTS 
LTD

9 RUE LEES CUREPIPE

C120898 JANAM (KLS) TRAVEL LTD 34 BOULEVARD VICTORIA STREET PORT-LOUIS

C120936 YASIN MOBILE SHOP LTD RESIDENCE SOMAUROO MOSQUE ROAD PLAINE 
DES PAPAYES

C120989 SOUTHLINE CARRIER LTD SAVANNE ROAD NOUVELLE FRANCE

C121140 ARJUNA SECURITY 
INTERNATIONAL LTD

MME BARBE STREET VILLA JAGANNATH 
ESPERANCE TREBUCHET

C121235 SWIMGLAM LTD 19 SUNSET BOULEVARD GRAND BAY

C121263 GREENDRO LIMITED CORBEILLE ROAD, MOUNT, PAMPLEMOUSSES

C121275 MECAMIX SPARE PARTS AND 
ACCESSORIES CO LTD

31 SUMMY HILL, MORCELLEMENT REY, POINTE 
AUX SABLES

C121336 WIRELINK CONSULTING LTD ROYAL ROAD AMITIE RIVIERE DU REMPART

C121347 COAST BISTRO AND BAR LTD C/o Marie Catherine MOORE Allée Corail Blanc Pereybère, 
Grand Baie

C121402 BELLA HOME CO LTD ROYAL ROAD TOMBEAU BAY

C121565 SYSTEMS CONCEPT LIMITED 2ND FLOOR, LIM FAT BUILDING ST LOUIS STREET 
PORT LOUIS

C121580 GOLD GARDEN CO LTD RAMNARAIN LANE ST MARTIN

C121647 ADDIPRO LTD MIMOSA STREET ST REMY CENTRAL FLACQ

C121685 SELECT GARMENT CO LTD SIVANANDA AVENUE FLOREAL3
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C121807 TWIN ISLANDS FOODS LIMITED EXECUTIVE SERVICES LTD, 2ND FLOOR, LES 

JAMALAC BLDG, VIEUX CONSEIL STREET, 
PORT LOUIS

C121808 GLOBAL FORWARDERS LTD 31 BOULEVARD VICTORIA STREET PORT LOUIS

C121838 SD ENTERPRISE LTD ROYAL ROAD PETITE JULIE PAMPLEMOUSSES

C121882 ALLO TRAVAIL LTD 99 SODNAC AVENUE QUATRE BORNES

C123256 RI & APS TRADING LTD CORPS DE GARDE AVENUE STANLEY ROSE HILL

C123330 BISY-NET LTD 150B BOUGAINVILLE LANE EAU COULEE CUREPIPE

C123372 CENTURY DEALS CENTRE CO LTD 34, AVENUE DOYEN QUATRE BORNES

C123500 FIRST TECHNO LIMITED ROYAL ROAD SURINAM SURINAM VILLAGE

C123529 Le Firmament Ltée 59 AVENUE DES MULETS TAMARIN

C123552 PROKOPE TRACTOR SERVICES 
LIMITED

ROYAL ROAD RIVIERE DU POSTE

C123557 DEDEEPYA ENTERPRISES LTD 30 SIR WILLIAM NEWTON STREET 7TH FLOOR, 
DERAMANN TOWER PORT LOUIS

C123607 PSY TRANCE LTD 25 AVENUE DES ROSIERS QUATRE- BORNES

C123625 CAVALRY CLEANING & 
MAINTENANCE LTD

9, RUE JEAN XXIII CITE ATTLEE, FOREST SIDE 
CUREPIPE

C123663 GLOBAL ANTHEM LTD 30 SIR WILLIAM NEWTON STREET 7TH FLOOR 
DERAMANN TOWER PORT LOUIS

C123666 ORGANIK MINIATURES LIMITED LA LIGNE ROAD CAP MALHEUREAUX

C123726 THE BAKE HOUSE CO LTD AVE DES CERISIERS MOREAL 3 COROMANDEL

C123772 FASHION CAFE LIMITED C/O AISHA SUMUN ROYAL ROAD CAMP DIABLE

C123774 PECHINE CO LTD 80701 ROYAL ROAD MELROSE

C123776 GENIUS DOGS CO LTD 288 AVE DES EMPEREURS MORC DE CHAZAL ALBION

C123832 ALPHA CONSTRUCTIONS LTD 30 SIR WILLIAM NEWTON STREET 7TH FLOOR 
DERAMANN TOWER PORT LOUIS

Cl23864 LOTUN ASSOCIATES LTD SIR WILLIAM NEWTON STREET 7TH FLOOR 
NEWTON TOWER PORT LOUIS

C123884 SMLXL SERVICES LTD 1 AVENUE TROCHETTIA MORC REY POINTE AUX 
SABLES

C123895 KHANDER ENTERPRISE LTD TEMPLE RD CAP MALHEUREUX RIVIERE DU 
REMPART

C123919 CARPEN & VOLOLONA CO LTD DES VERGUES ST GLEN PARK

C123967 TECHNO-SPEC LTD 5A, WELLINGTON STREET ROSE HILL

C123973 CBL KIDS LTD 1 RUE DES VERSAILLES, RESIDENCE TRIANON, 
TRIANON

C123986 FORMIGA-SERV CO LTD IMPASSE MIRABELLE ST FRANCOIS CALODYNE

Cl 24023 HILLSIDE ENERGY LTD 2, JOHANNA STREET C/O STRACONSULT LTD 
PORT LOUIS

C124045 FINAMUR LTD 13 AVENUE DES GEAIS SODNAC QUATRE BORNES

C124155 SEEWAN CO LTD CARDINAL LANE PETITE RIVIERE

C124158 CÔTÉ PLAGE LTD SPLENDID DRIVE 13B RESIDENCE LA CROISETTE 
ALBION
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C124192 AKQUASUN HOLIDAYS LTD ROYAL ROAD FLOREAL
C125733 Varoon Groups Of Transport Ltd KISHUN VAROON AVENUE GANDHI ERNEST 

FLORENT FLACQ
Cl25748 THE DODGE COMPANY LIMITED PANCHOO ROAD, STANLEY ROSE HILL
C125783 AUTOMATION PROFESSIONALS 

LTD
SEENEEVASSEN ROAD PALMA QUATRE BORNES

C125784 ENERGY PROFESSIONALS LTD SEENEEVASSEN ROAD PALMA QUATRE BORNES
C125786 BEST DEAL CONSTRUCTION CO 

LTD
NEW MOSQUE ROAD CHEMIN GRENIER

C125798 Urban Facilities Ltd THE JUNCTION BUSINESS HUB BLOCK B 
CALEBASSES

C125829 MLRT LTD 4TH FLOOR NEW GOVERNMENT CENTRE 
PORT LOUIS

C125947 Avarts Institute Ltd 1ST FLOOR CYBERTOWER 1, CYBERCITY EBENE
C125976 SHA-NES CAR RENTAL LTD CAMP CAVAL CUREPIPE

C126020 KARRS CONSTRUCTION 
COMPANY LIMITED

SCHOOL LANE CALEBASSES

Cl 26066 AS ADVERTISING & MARKETING 
LTD

CNR DUMAT & ROYAL ROAD BEAU BASSIN

Cl26081 THE UPLIFTER CO LTD VILLAGE HALL ROAD MORCELLEMENT TARA 
TERRE ROUGE

Cl 26209 G-Création Ltd ROYAL ROAD PALMA QUATRE BORNES

C126220 A&A ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT 
SERVICES LTD

ROYAL ROAD SAINT JULIEN D’HOTMAN

Date: 07/10/2020
Registrar of Companies 

One Cathedral Square 
Jules Koenig Street 

Port Louis

General Notice No. 1448 of2020

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 (1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT

Notice is hereby given that the companies listed below have been put into liquidation and pursuant to 
section 309(1 )(c) of the Companies Act, are to be removed from the register as there is reason to believe that 
no liquidator is acting or the liquidation of the company has been completed and the documents required to 
be sent or delivered to the Registrar have not been sent or delivered in accordance with section 415(2)(c) 
of the Insolvency Act.

Objection, if any, shall be delivered to the Registrar of Companies not later than 09 November 2020.

File No. Name of Company Registered Office
C10153 TIMELESS LTD. 7 DESCHARTRES STREET, PORT LOUIS

C11322 COMARE CIE LTEE C/O APPAVOO AND ASSOCIATES, 71 ROYAL 
ST, PORT LOUIS

C11358 BELLE MARE PLAGE CASINO LTD TESTE DE BUCH, CUREPIPE
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Cl2009 QUICK SNACK LTD 2ND FLOOR FAIRFAX HOUSE, 21 MGR 
GONIN STREET, PORT LOUIS

C13196 MARATHON SPORTS LTEE 1A REMY OLLIER STREET, BEAU BASSIN
Cl4442 ARTBEAT CO LTD APPAVOO BUSINESS CENTRE, APPAVOO 

BUSINESS CENTRE, PORT LOUIS
C1491 MAURITIUS FISHING DEVELOPMENT 

LIMITED
12 INTENDANCE STREET, PORT LOUIS

C15579 FIRST PRINTING CONSULTANTS LTD 5 BROWN SEQUARD AVE, QUATRE BORNES
C16105 TROU AUX BICHES GOURMET CLUB LTD VILLA BELLE AZUR, COASTAL ROAD, 

TROU AUX BICHES
C16860 AGB LEGEND LIMITED LI WAN PO BLDG, 3/F 12 R OLLIER, 

PORT LOUIS
Cl9452 VOLTAMEX LTD. 6TH FLOOR, CERNEE HOUSE, LA CHAUSSE, 

PORT LOUIS
C20497 BUILDING CONNECTIONS LTD 8 D'ARTOIS STREET, PORT LOUIS
C21413 BEST-IN LTD 37 SYED PEER JAMAL SHAH STREET, 

PORT LOUIS
C21552 SOLSTAR MEDIA LTD TM BUILDING, POPE HENNESSY STREET, 

PORT LOUIS
C22965 FUTURE WORLD TRADERS LTD. 4 AVENUE CARDINAL, LES GUIBIES, 

PAILLES
C25375 ERE LINGERIE LTEE COAST ROAD, POINTE AUX SABLES
C25506 TEXEL KNITWEAR LTD SUITE 350 BARKLY WHARF, CAUDAN 

WATERFRONT, PORT LOUIS
C26215 APART TOURISM SERVICES LIMITED 2ND FL, FAIRFAX HOUSE, NO. 21 MGR 

GONIN, PORT LOUIS
C3085 MODULUS PREFAB LIMITED 16 BIS, JULES KOENIG STR, PORT LOUIS
C45814 KALI SHRIRAM APPLIANCES LIMITED 2ND FLOOR, FAIRFAX HOUSE, 21 MGR 

GONIN STREET, PORT LOUIS
C48381 HORIZONS MARKETING CO. LTD 2ND FLOOR FAIRFAX HOUSE, 21 MGR 

GONIN STREET, PORT LOUIS
C56050 EASTERN-PLUS LTD FRANCOIS MITTERAN ROAD, CENTRAL 

FLACQ
C5708 SOUTHERN TIDE EXPORT LIMITED ROYAL ROAD, MAPOU LECLEZIO, 

GOODLANDS
C6932 LES MAISONS FLORALES LTEE 6 LEOVILLE L'HOMME STREET, 

PORT LOUIS
C7572 L'IMPACT LTEE C/O MARTINE DUPAVILLON, N0.1 LES 

ALIZES 3, MORCELLEMENT CARLOS 
TAMARIN

C8518 HY-Q INTERNATIONAL (MAURITIUS) LTD.« C/O PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS
TRAINING CENTRE, CHAMP DE MARS, 
PORT LOUIS

C8860 MARPHICO LTD TERRE COUPE, CUREPIPE ROAD
C8946 NORTHERN ANGLERS LIMITED C/O SILMIC INC, OLD PAVILLON ST, 

PORT LOUIS
C8976 INTERPULL LTEE CITE LANE BAISSAC, LEES STREET, 

CUREPIPE
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Date: 05 October 2020
Registrar of Companies 

Corporate and Business Registration Dept. 
One Cathedral Square 

Jules Koenig Street 
Port Louis

General Notice No. 1449 of2020

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 319(3) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Mr Paraouty Anwar 
of Morcellement Raffray, Saint Pierre, Director 
of the Company, “LEICESTER TRANSPORT 
LTD” (File No. C074539) has pursuant to 
Section 319(1) of the Companies Act 2001, applied 
for its restoration of the company on the Register 
on the ground that the company was still carrying 
on business.

Objection, if any, to the proposed restoration of 
the company shall be filed with the Registrar of 
Companies, not later than 01 November 2020.

Date: 01 October 2020

Registrar of Companies 
One Cathedral Square, 

Jules Koenig Street, 
Port Louis.

General Notice No. 1451 of2020

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 319(3) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Mr Ramdoo 
Thikambaren of 2E Ghoorun Avenue, Belle Rose, 
Director of the company “BLUEBERRIES 
22 HOLDINGS LTD”(File No.C 135845) has 
pursuant to Section 319(1) of the Companies 
Act 2001, applied for restoration of the company 
on the Register on the ground that the company 
was still carrying on business and has an active 
bank account.

Objection, if any, to the proposed restoration of 
the company shall be filed with the Registrar of 
Companies, not later than 29 October 2020.

Date: 29 September 2020

Registrar of Companies 
One Cathedral Square 

Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis

General Notice No. 1450 of2020

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 319(3) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Mr Pietersen 
Theo Johan of Chemin 20 Pieds, Grand Baie, 
Director of the company “TLS Properties Ltd” 
(File No.C107347) has pursuant to Section 319(1) 
of the Companies Act 2001, applied for restoration 
of the company on the Register on the ground that 
the company was still carrying on business.

Objection, if any, to the proposed restoration of 
the company shall be filed with the Registrar of 
Companies, not later than 28 October 2020.

Date: 28 September 2020

Registrar of Companies 
One Cathedral Square 

Jules Koenig Street 
Port Louis

General Notice No. 1452 of2020

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 319(3) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Mr Roussety M 
Joseph Gaétan, of C/o Mr Ameene Kodabux - 
MABCO, 16 Leoville L’Homme Street, Port Louis, 
Director of the company “LA VOIRIE LIMITEE” 
(File No. C14697) has pursuant to Section 319(1) 
of the Companies Act 2001, applied for restoration 
of the company on the Register on the ground that 
the company owns assets.

Objection, if any, to the proposed restoration of 
the company shall be filed with the Registrar of 
Companies not later than 05 November 2020.

Date: 05 October 2020

Registrar of Companies 
One Cathedral Square 

Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis
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General Notice No. 1453 of2020

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 319(3) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Mr Ramnawaz 
Naraindath, of DN Partners Ltd, 12 Leoville 
L’Homme Street, Port Louis, Director of 
the company “SAURA ASMANA LTD” 
(File No. C099729) has pursuant to Section 319(1) 
of the Companies Act 2001, applied for restoration 
of the company on the Register on the ground that 
the company owns assets.

Objection, if any, to the proposed restoration of 
the company shall be filed with the Registrar of 
Companies not later than 05 November 2020.

Date: 05 October 2020

Registrar of Companies 
One Cathedral Square 

Jules Koenig Street, 
Port Louis

General Notice No. 1454 of2020

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 319(3) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Mrs Coonjul Marie 
Lucie of Royal Road, Pont Praslin, Brisée Verdière, 
Director of the company “Master 4As Ltd” 
(File No. C133817) has pursuant to Section 319(1) 
of the Companies Act 2001, applied for restoration 
of the company on the Register on the ground that 
the company was still carrying on business.

Objection, if any, to the proposed restoration of 
the company shall be filed with the Registrar of 
Companies, not later than 05 November 2020.

Date: 05 October 2020

Registrar of Companies 
One Cathedral Square 

Jules Koenig Street, 
Port Louis

General Notice No. 1455 of2020

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 319(3) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Mr Athanasse Jodhy 
Gary Wensley, 46, Ste Marie Street, Ste Croix, 

Director of the company “JMB ENTERPRISE 
LTD”(File No. C122807) has pursuant to 
Section 319(1) of the Companies Act 2001, applied 
for restoration of the company on the Register on 
the ground that the company was still carrying 
on business, has an active bank account and 
owns assets.

Objection, if any, to the proposed restoration of 
the company shall be filed with the Registrar of 
Companies, not later than 05 November 2020.

Date: 05 October 2020

Registrar of Companies 
One Cathedral Square 

Jules Koenig Street, 
Port Louis

General Notice No. 1456 of2020

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney General is pleased to authorise 
Ms Patricia JATOONAH to change her name 
Patricia into that of Afeza so that in future she shall 
bear the name and surname of Afeza JATOONAH.

Date: 05.10.2020

U. Rawat Neerooa (Mrs) 
Ag. Senior State Counsel

General Notice No. 1457 of2020

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney General is pleased to authorise Kanen 
SOOBBOOROYEN to change his name 
Kanen into those of Hans Kanen so that in 
future he shall bear the names and surname of 
Hans Kanen SOOBBOOROYEN.

Date: 05.10.2020

U. Rawat Neerooa (Mrs) 
Ag. Senior State Counsel



10 October 2020 3763

General Notice No. 1458 of2020

NATIONAL LAND TRANSPORT AUTHORITY
ROAD TRANSPORT DIVISION

Notice is hereby given that the following applications have been received by the Authority and the 

Authority will shortly hear the said applications.

APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC ‘A’ CARRIER’S LICENCE

S.N LICENCE NO NAME OF 
APPLICANT

1600 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20671 Titico Ltee

1601 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20672 Titico Ltee

WEIGHT 
OF 

VEHICLE

BASE OF 
OPERATION

DESCRIPTION OF 
GOODS

NYP Palma,
Quatre Bornes13500kg

GV
General Goods

NYP 
4330kg 

GV

Palma,
Quatre Bornes General Goods

1602 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20673 BUSGEETH
Vijaye Kumar

NYP
15000kg 

GV

Ramgoolam Road, 
Plaine des Papayes General Goods

1603 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20674 Cross Road Agencies
Ltd

' B192, More VRS 2,
„v ® Ville Noire, Mahebourg General Goods

1604 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20675 MOOROOVEN
Vishwanaden

1252ZH92 
6015kg 

GV

Demingham, 
Triolet General Goods

1605 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20676 SEEWOOCHURSING
Nageshwar

NYP 
5000kg 

GV

Royal Road, 
D'Epinay General Goods

1606 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20677 DAMREE 
Premchand

NYP 
2500kg 

GV

Nehru Lane, 
Laventure General Goods

1607 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20678 JHOREE
Syam

1608 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20679
APPADOO 

Reshma 
(Bom Nareydoo)

NYP 
5000kg 

GV

Awatar Lane, 
Plaine Magnien

General Goods 
& 

Waste

3146OC93 
6940kg 

GV

CEB Road, 
Morcellement 

St Antoine, Goodlands
General Goods
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NATIONAL LAND TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

1609

1610

1611

1612

1613

1614

1615

1616

1617

1618

1619

1620

NTA/PUB/A/LC/20680 ROOPUN
Basgeet

4029SP00 
7000kg 

GV

College Lane, 
Grand Bois General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/20681 LOGANADAN
Govinden

NYP 
5300kg 

GV

Mission Cross Road, 
Lallmatie

General Goods 
& 

Waste

JUGOO
Prakashsing

NYP Belvedere Lane,
NTA/PUB/A/LC/20682 3500kg

GV
5eme Mile, 

Beau-Bassin
General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/20683 Hardcore Logistics 
Ltd

NYP
43000kg 

GV

Royal Road, 
Castel Effluents

NTA/PUB/A/LC/20684 RAMKISSOON
Keshav

NYP 
10000kg 

/~'A 7

Comer Tagore Road, 
Kalimaye Road, 
Morcellement General Goods

<JV
Saint André

NTA/PUB/A/LC/20685 LUCKAH
Satyanjit

806MR96
10000kg 

GV

Bodye Lane, 
L'Escalier General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/20686
SUNNIA
Nirmala 

(Bom Gokul)

NYP 
7000kg 

GV

La Forge Road, 
Montagne Blanche Solid Waste

NTA/PUB/A/LC/20687 ALANKALEE
Sundiraj

NYP
4500kg

Sai Baba Road, 
Morcellement Roy, General Goods

GV Bel Air Rivière Sèche

NTA/PUB/A/LC/20688
SYLVESTRE 
Marie Florise 
(Bom Pauline)

NYP 
6000kg 

GV

Royal Road, 
Montagne Blanche General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/20689
BERNARD
Roger Mario

2695ZL96 
3160kg 

GV

Atta Lane,
Riche Terre General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/20690 MISTRY
Ashootoshnath

2081MY99 
6300kg 

GV

Kallee Road, 
Fond du Sac General Goods

NTA/PUB/A/LC/20691 LGVS Logistics Ltd
NYP

10000kg John Kennedy Avenue, 
Vacoas General Goods

GV
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NATIONAL LAND TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

1621 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20692 BAICHOO
Bibi Fazila

1622 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20693 CHOYETAN
Rishiraj

CHOYETAN
1623 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20694 Anoopa

(Bom Ramchurun)

1624 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20695
HURBHOOKUN 

Heeren

1625 NTAZPUB/A/LC/20696 DAMREE
Bibi Parvin

RANOOWAH
1626 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20697 Brijmawatee 

(Bom Horrill)

RONOOWAH
1627 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20698 Rajnawtee 

(Bom Seeboo)

1628 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20699 HYS Enterprise Ltd

1629 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20700 BHOLAH
Veemanddeo

1630 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20701 M.S Excavators Co 
Ltd

1631 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20702 GOLAMHOSEN 
Saleemraza

NYP
10000kg 

GV

Railway Square, 
Rivière des Anguilles General Goods

NYP
10000kg 

GV

Royal Road, 
Old Grand Port General Goods

NYP
10000kg 

GV

Royal Road, 
Old Grand Port General Goods

NYP 
5000kg 

GV

John Bradie Street, 
Roche Bois General Goods

NYP 
7000kg 

GV

Reservoir Road, 
Goodlands General Goods

NYP 
7000kg 

GV

Ramparsad Lane, 
Laventure General Goods

3512ZW06 
32000kg 

GV

Royal Road, 
Laventure, Flacq General Goods

NYP 
35000kg 

GV

Harris Street, 
Port-Louis Containers

NYP 
6000kg 

GV

Bhagelou Road, 
Nouvelle France General Goods

NYP
32000kg

GV

Cyprus Lane, 
La Marie, Vacoas General Goods

NYP 
20000kg 

GV

SJ Pope Hennessy 
Street, Curepipe General Goods
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NATIONAL LAND TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

1632

APPLICATION FOR VARIATION OF PUBLIC ‘A’ CARRIER’S LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF 
APPLICANT

VEHICLE 
NUMBER &
MAXIMUM 

GROSS 
WEIGHT

BASE OF 
OPERATION

GOODS TO BE 
CARRIED

NTA/PUB/A/LC/20401 Best Foods 
Distributors Co Ltd

2988FZ08
31075kg 

GV

Rajcoomar Avenue, From: General Goods 
Quatre Bornes

To: General Goods & 
Containers

1633 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20406 Best Foods 
Distributors Co Ltd

5783FZ01 Rajcoomar Avenue, From: General Goods 
29820kg Quatre Bornes

GV To: General Goods &
Containers

APPLICATION FOR CHANGE IN BASE OF OPERATION OF 
PUBLIC ‘A’ CARRIER’S LICENCE

1634

1635

S.N REF NO NAME OF 
APPLICANT

VEHICLE 
NUMBER &
MAXIMUM 

GROSS 
WEIGHT

GOODS TO 
BE CARRIED

BASE OF OPERATION

NTA/PUB/A/LC/20345 SKA Transport Ltd 2610FZ05
35850kg 

GV

Containers From: Rue Pierre Simonet St, 
Floreal

To: B6 Road, Wooton, 
Curepipe

NTA/PUB/A/LC/20346 SKA Transport Ltd 2612FZ07
35850kg 

GV

Containers From: Rue Pierre Simonet St, 
Floreal

To: B6 Road, Wooton,
Curepipe
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NATIONAL LAND TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued -,

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF PUBLIC SERVICE VEHICLE 
(TAXI) LICENCE

VEHICLE
S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT NUMBER BASE OF OPERATION

91 15260/C From: Heirs Manilall BOOTUN rep by Taxi Car Railway Square Taxi Stand Quatre Bornes
Ramoantee BOOTUN 2708ZT05

To: Heirs Manilall BOOTUN to be 
represented by Pavitree BEEHARRY

92 37997/C From: (Late) Bhai Siddick ETWAREE Taxi Car
1919ZX08

Camp Sadally, Vacoas

To: Heirs Bhai Siddick ETWAREE 
to be represented by Bibi Malekah 
ETWAREE

93 40821/C From: (Late) Chundun SEECHURN Taxi Car
2633AZ11

Petit Raffray

To: Heirs Chundun SEECHURN to be 
represented by Mrs. Jayantee 
SEECHURN

94 9584/C From: (Late) Kharanand
SEEWOOCHURN

To: Heirs Kharanand
SEEWOOCHURN to be represented by
Neerjalee SEEWOOCHURN

Taxi Car
7734NV15

Place Margeot Taxi Stand, Rose Hill

95 12787/C From: Giandutt MADUN

To: Veergyanund MADUN

Taxi Car
V1148 

(60ZP00)

Bon Accueil, Flacq

96 34508/C From: Kanta Koomar Sharma 
BHUGWANT

Taxi Car D’ Epinay
K324

(ex3H5BZ14)
To: Brahmaduth BHUGWANT
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NATIONAL LAND TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

APPLICATION FOR NEW PUBLIC SERVICE VEHICLE 
(CONTRACT CAR) LICENCES

S.N REF NO
VEHICLE

NAME OF APPLICANT NUMBER BASE OF OPERATION

769 CCAR/SP/l 9/2855-2857 Avalex Auto Ltd 3 Cars 
NYP

19A, Thomy D’Arifat, Curepipe

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF PUBLIC SERVICE VEHICLE 
(CONTRACT BUS) LICENCE

S.N REF NO
VEHICLE

NAME OF APPLICANT NUMBER BASE OF OPERATION

34 31495/E From: Bawantee JEKARAHJEE 3723AG05
56-Seater

From: Roche Terre, Terre Rouge

To: RAMNARAIN JEKARAHJEE To: 3, Dieudonner, Riche Terre, Terre
LTD Rouge

35 27417/E From: Malini YENCRASSAMY 3351AG01
25-Seater

From: La Source, Quatre Bornes

To: Gary Leung Kweut Lioong MIN 
KEN

To: Avenue de Plevitz, Plaisance, Rose Hill

36 24196/E From: Farook PEERBACCOS 5277NV99
59-Seater

From: Glen Park, Vacoas

To: F.PEERBACCOS TOURS CO
LTD

To: School Lane, Glen Park, Vacoas

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF ROAD SERVICE LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT ITINERARY

45 NTA 20/63/6366 From: Dipsingh LODEECHAND In respect of 59 + 5 sealer bus 2121MY04 
operating along Route 22 + School Service

To: Rajwunt BISSESSUR
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NATIONAL LAND TRANSPORT AUTHORITY — continued

Any person legally entitled to do so may set out his/her objection/s or other representation/s together with 
his/her name and address and must give the reasons thereof in writing so that these may reach the Secretary 
to the Licensing Committee, National Land Transport Authority, MSI Building, Royal Road, Les Cassis, 
Port Louis not later than on the seventh day of publication of this notice, in the Government Gazette. Any 
objection, that reaches the Secretary to the Licensing Committee after the prescribed time limit will not be 
entertained.

MSI Building
Les Cassis
Port Louis
07 October 2020
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General Notice No. 1459 of2020

TRADEMARK NOTICES

Data Identification Codes

The data identification codes appearing in the tables below are WIPO standards and are known as 
Internationally recognised Numbers for the Identification of Data (INID) Codes.

INID Codes For Marks

Code Interpretation Code Interpretation Code Interpretation
(310) Application (151) Registration Date (Hl) Registration Number

Number
(511) Nice Classification (730) Applicant’s Name & Address

(320) Filing Date
(526) Disclaimer (740) Representative’s Name &

(330) Priority Data Address
(540) Description of the Mark

PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 
(Regulation 38)

Notice is hereby given that the following marks have been accepted under Section 38 of the Patents, 
Industrial Designs &Trademarks Act 2002: -

(310) 31256/2020 (320) 01/06/2020
(730) Guangdong SKG Intelligent

Technology Co.,Ltd.
27th Floor, Building 3, Zhongke R & D Park, 
No. 009, Gaoxin South 1st Road, High-tech 
Zone Community, Yuehai street,
Nanshan District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong 
Province, People’s Republic of China

(740) Pravin Barthia,Trademark Agent
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, 
Port-Louis

(511) (9, 10 and 28) 
(540) SKG

(310) 31663/2020 (320) 17/07/2020
(330) 4657325 16/06/2020 FR
(730) BEL

2, allée de Longchamp, 92150 
Suresnes, France

(740) R.C. Pay en, Trademark Agent 
IBL Ltd, Ground Floor, IBL House, 
Caudan, Port-Louis

(511) (29 and 30)
(540) NURISHH

(310) 31664/2020 (320) 17/07/2020
(730) BEL

2, allée de Longchamp, 92150 Suresnes, 
France

(740) R.C. Payen, Trademark Agent
IBL Ltd, Ground Floor, IBL House, Caudan, 
Port-Louis

(511) (29 and 30)
(540) NURISHH LOGO

(310)
(330)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

31798/2020 (320) 05/08/2020
4657354 16/06/2020 FR
BEL
2, allée de Longchamp, 92150 Suresnes, 
France
RC Payen, IBL LTD,, Ground Floor, 
IBL House, Caudan,
Port Louis
(29 and 30)
NURISHH (LOGO VERT 737)
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PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 — continued

(310) 31877/2020 (320) 17/08/2020
(730) Nicole Fanny Daurat

Ramen Lane, Engrais Cathan, Eau Coulee, 
Curepipe, Republic of Mauritius

(511) (29 and 31)
(540) BazBio (and logo)

(310)
(730)

31878/2020 (320) 28/09/2020
Marie Lilette Geraldine NEELADOO 
No 102, Morcellement Soobrah,
Petit Verger, Pointe aux Sables, Republic 
of Mauritius

(511)
(540)

(35,41 and 45)
Gerlou 8 - Set, Reach & Go Beyond 
(and logo)

(310)
(730)

(740)

(511) 
(540)

31942/2020 (320) 21/08/2020
GRIFOFLEX S.P.A.
Via Teodoro Coletti 8, Frazione Torresapienza, 
06055 MARSCIANO (PG), Italy
Mr Ruben Cyril Payen
IBL Ltd, Trademark Dept., Ground Floor, IBL
House, Caudan, Port-Louis
(6 and 19)
Grifoflex & Device

(310) 32046/2020 (320) 02/09/2020
(730) Laval Brian KONG SHING CHEONG

2 Avenue Capucines, Quatre Bornes, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (30 and 43)
(540) Grab & Go

Grab 
(SeG-o

(310) 32075/2020 (320) 07/09/2020
(730) MEDINE LIMITED

4, Uniciti Office Park, Rivière Noire Road, 
Uniciti, Bambous, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (31)
(540) MO TI BAZAR (and logo)

MO ff BAZAR

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

32079/2020 (320) 07/09/2020
Lushan KALLYCHURN
39A, Tristan D'avice, Sodnac,
Quatre Bornes, Republic of Mauritius 
(21)
NEROPONICS - DIY Vegetables

(310) 32080/2020 (320) 07/09/2020
(730) Lushan KALLYCHURN

3 9A, Tristan D'avice, Sodnac, Quatre Bornes, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (3)
(540) HAC-HEM (and logo)

(310) 32085/2020 (320) 07/09/2020
(730) MOPIROVE LTD

Industrial Estate Coromandel, 71625, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (3 and 5)
(540) JOYCE PLUS AND LOGO

HAO 
HEM

Joyceplus
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(310) 32086/2020 (320) 07/09/2020
(730) MOPIROVE LTD

Industrial Estate Coromandel, 71625, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (3 and 21)
(540) JOYCE

(310) 32101/2020 (320) 08/09/2020
(330) 1142990 11/03/2020 NZ
(730) Pan Pac Forest Products Limited 

1161 S.H. 2, Wairoa Road, Napier, 
New Zealand

(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney 
No. 8 Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) (19)
(MO) pan PAC

(310) 32102/2020 (320) 08/09/2020
(730) Marie Morine Patricia MALABAR NICLAIR

Ligne Berthaud, Vacoas,
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (5 and 29)
(540) GRAND MÈRE EGLANTINE LOGO

(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

32103/2020 (320) 09/09/2020
Deco Deal Ltd
7, Morcellement Beau Manguier, 
Bain Boeuf, Republic of Mauritius 
Neeven Parsooramen, Barrister-at-Law 
Suite 613, 6th Floor, St. James Court, 
St. Denis Street, Port-Louis 
(18 and 24)
Trini's Creation logo

(310) 32104/2020 (320) 09/09/2020
(730) DKD COMPANY LTD

Royal Road, L'Avenir, Saint Pierre, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (17 and 40)
(540) DKD (and logo)

potypipe | Ivoraoje | plastic oats & film recycling

(310) 32106/2020 (320) 09/09/2020
(730) INNOVAGRI LTD

2, River Court, St Denis Street, Port Louis , 
Republic of Mauritius

(740) SELVA MURDAY, Attorney at Law
Suite 404 Chancery House, 
3rd Floor, Lislet Geoffroy Street, 
Port Louis

(5H) 
(540)

(29, 30 and 31)
Innovagri - Cultiver L'Avenir

(310) 32108/2020 (320) 10/09/2020
(730) Tectonic Limited

48 Mere Barthélémy Street, Port Louis, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (7, 11 and 21)
(540) Weltec and Logo

WELTEC

(310) 32110/2020 (320) 10/09/2020
(730) Mohamad Shahnawaaz Mosafeer

28B Ste Therese Street, Curepipe, 
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Ashveen GOPEE Barrister at Law 
LEX FRONTIER LTD, Suite 208a Ebene 
Junction Ebene

(511) (14, 18 and 25)
(540) SASHA
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PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 — continued

(310) 32111/2020 (320) 10/09/2020
(730) DRESSTOTRAVO LTD

Ave Cardinal 1, More. Raffray, Pailles, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (35 and 37)
(540) DRESSTOTRAVO.MU-

Des Pros de confiance 2.0 & WA Logo

(310) 32112/2020 (320) 10/09/2020
(730) Tariq Mahmood Malik

Block C2, Coastal Road, Cap Malheureux, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (18, 24 and 25)
(540) ONE WORLD

(310) 32114/2020 (320) 10/09/2020
(730) Currimjee Limited

38, Royal Street, Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius
(740) Currimjee Limited

38, Royal Street, Port Louis
(511) (41 and 42)
(540) Trampoline by Currimjee

trarrf poline
“ by Currimjee

(310) 32116/2020 (320) 10/09/2020
(730) CARtime Franchising (Pty) Ltd 

Unit 6, No 2 Bishop Road, Pinetown, 
Durban, 3610, KwaZulu-Natal, 
South Africa

(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney 
No 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) (37)
(540) CARTIME QUALITY SERVICE Logo 

CAR time^
QUALITY SERVICE

(310) 32118/2020 (320) 11/09/2020
(730) INTERMART (MTIUS) LTD

3, Lislet Geoffroy Street, Curepipe 74517, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (35)
(540) INTERMART logo

(310)
(730)

(511) 
(540)

32119/2020 (320) 11 /09/2020
INTERMART (MTIUS) LTD
3, Lislet Geoffroy Street, Curepipe 74517, 
Republic of Mauritius
(3 and 16)
Fluffy logo

INTERMART

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

32120/2020 (320) 11/09/2020
INTERMART (MTIUS) LTD
3, Lislet Geoffroy Street, Curepipe 74517, 
Republic of Mauritius
(3 and 16)
POPPY Logo

(310) 32123/2020 (320) 11/09/2020
(730) Mr Harold Ng Hing Cheung

Avenue St. Vincent De Paul, Les Pailles, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (16 and 21)
(540) Sofpak (and logo)
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(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

32125/2020 (320) 11/09/2020
RY HOLDINGS LTD
4th Floor, Ebene Skies, Rue de L'Institut, 
Ebene, Republic of Mauritius 
(32 and 33)
TORRERO LIQUEUR 

0 
TORRERO

(310) 32126/2020 (320) 11/09/2020
(730) RY HOLDINGS LTD

4th Floor, Ebene Skies, Rue de L'Institut, 
Ebene, Republic of Mauritius

(511) (32 and 33)
(540) U-GIN - Premium GiN

(and logo)

lugÏn

(310) 32128/2020 (320) 11/09/2020
(730) RY HOLDINGS LTD

4th Floor, Ebene Skies, Rue de L'Institut, 
Ebene, Republic of Mauritius

(511) (32 and 33)
(540) MYSTIGORG- FLAVORED LIQUEUR

(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

32129/2020 (320) 11/09/2020
Accuindex Limited
C/o Credentia International Management 
Ltd, 2nd Floor, Suite 207, the Catalyst, 
Silicon Avenue, 40 Cybercity,
Republic of Mauritius
Kashish International Limited (IP Agent) 
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes 
(36)
Accuindex (Fig.)

ACCUINDEX

(310) 32130/2020 (320) 11/09/2020
(730) Accuindex Limited

C/o Credentia International Management Ltd, 2nd 
Floor, Suite 207, the Catalyst, Silicon Avenue, 40 
Cybercity, Republic of Mauritius

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes

(511) (36)
(540) Accuindex

(310) 32136/2020 (320) 14/09/2020
(730) Neeraj PYANEEANDEE

Dr. Raoul Felix Street, Ambrose,
Rose Hill, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (29, 30, 32 and 43)
(540) KU DE ME (Logo)

; KU DE ME ;

(310)
(730)

(511) 
(540)

32138/2020 (320) 14/09/2020
BOODHOO Mohammad Nawfal
90, Ste Anne Road, Stanley, Rose Hill, 
Republic of Mauritius
(14 and 25)
Axxitude & Logo

0

(310) 32139/2020 (320) 14/09/2020
(730) QUEENS OF NAILS LTD

Royal Road, Beau Bassin,
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (35 and 44)
(540) QN- QUEENS BEAUTY NAILS- 

Highly Professional

Highly Professional

OyEfNS Beauty nails
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(310) 32141/2020 (320) 14/09/2020
(730) Amenities Product Resource Ltd

191, Old Ste Marie Rd, Ste-Croix, Port Louis, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (18 and 25)
(540) Amenities Making Living Sustainable

& logo

Amenities
Making
Living
Sustainable

(310) 32142/2020 (320) 14/09/2020
(730) Grit Real Estate Income Group Limited 

3rd Floor, La Croisette Shopping Centre, 
Grand Baie, 30517, Republic of Mauritius

(511) (41)
(540) Women with Grit

women rr y i ► 
with y I ll

(310)
(730)

(511) 
(540)

32143/2020 (320) 14/09/2020
Grit Real Estate Income Group Limited 
3rd Floor, La Croisette Shopping Centre, 
Grand Baie, 30517, Republic of Mauritius 
(35 and 36)
Grit Real Estate Income Group - Seychelles

grit
Income G*ôup I seychelles

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

32144/2020 (320) 14/09/2020
Grit Real Estate Income Group Limited 
3rd Floor, La Croisette Shopping 
Centre, Grand Baie, 30517,
Republic of Mauritius 
(35 and 36)
Grit Real Estate Income
Group -Senegal

grit
Real Estate
Income Group I Senegal

(310) 32145/2020 (320) 14/09/2020
(730) Grit Real Estate Income Group Limited

3rd Floor, La Croisette Shopping Centre, 
Grand Baie, 30517, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (35 and 36)
(540) Grit Real Estate Income Group- Rwanda

grit
Real EstateReal Estate 
Income Group rwanda

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

32146/2020 (320) 14/09/2020
Grit Real Estate Income Group Limited 
3rd Floor, La Croisette Shopping Centre, 
Grand Baie, 30517, Republic of Mauritius 
(35 and 36)
Grit Real Estate Income
Group - Mozambique

(310)
(730)

(511) 
(540)

32147/2020 (320) 14/09/2020
Grit Real Estate Income Group Limited 
3rd Floor, La Croisette Shopping Centre, 
Grand Baie, 30517, Republic of Mauritius 
(35 and 36)
Grit Real Estate Income Group - Morocco

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

32148/2020 (320) 14/09/2020
Grit Real estate Income Group Limited 
3rd Floor, La Croisette Shopping Centre, 
Grand Baie, 30517, Republic of Mauritius 
(35 and 36)
Grit Real Estate Income

(and logo)grit
Income Group morocco

Group - Ghana

'E#' Real Estate 
Income Group ghana
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(310) 32149/2020 (320) 14/09/2020
(730) Grit Real Estate Income Group Limited

3rd Floor, La Croisette Shopping Centre, 
Grand Baie, 30517, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (35 and 36)
(540) Grit Real Estate Income Group

grit
Real Estate 
Income Group

(310) 32150/2020 (320) 14/09/2020
(730) Grit Real Estate Income Group Limited

3rd Floor, La Croisette Shopping Centre, 
Grand Baie, 30517, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (35 and 36)
(540) Grit Real Estate Income

Group - Kenya

(310) 32152/2020 (320) 14/09/2020
(730) Grit Real estate Income Group Limited

3rd Floor, La Croisette Shopping Centre, 
Grand Baie, 30517, Republic of Mauritius 

(511) (35 and 36)
(540) Freedom Property Fund

FREEDOM PROPERTY FUND

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

32153/2020 (320) 14/09/2020
Grit Real Estate Income Group Limited 
3rd Floor, La Croisette Shopping Centre, 
Grand Baie, 30517, Republic of Mauritius 
(35 and 36)
Grit Real Estate Income
Group - Zambia

grit
Real Estate
Income Group Zambia

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

32154/2020 (320) 14/09/2020
Grit Real Estate Income Group Limited 
3rd Floor, La Croisette Shopping Centre, Grand 
Baie, 30517, Republic of Mauritius 
(35 and 36)

(310)
(730)

Grit Real Estate Income Group - Botswana

grit
Real Estate 
Income Group

(511)
(540)

botswana

32155/2020 (320) 14/09/2020
Grit House Limited
3rd Floor, La Croisette Shopping Centre, 
Grand Baie, 30517, Republic of Mauritius 
(35 and 36)
THE PRECINCT Grand Baie

■*■11 —1

PRECINCT
Grand Baie

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

32157/2020 (320) 14/09/2020
MOVING FITNESS CLUB LTD
Emerald Park, Trianon,
Republic of Mauritius
(41)
MYFIT 360 - Fit Global Solution

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

32163/2020 (320) 15/09/2020
ECOKIND LIVING LTD
Lot 454, Avenue Waterlilly,
More Beerjeeraz, Albion, Republic of 
Mauritius
(21 and 25)
Ecokind & logo

MYFiTi
FIT GLOBAL SOLUTION
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(310) 32165/2020 (320) 15/09/2020
(730) Eco Hustle Co Ltd

Sonah Lane, Les Guibies, Pailles, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (5)
(540) Recycle Moi Biodegradable Sanitary Pads

flScyctE
BIODEBRAOABLE

IVI Wjy SANITARY PADS

(310) 32167/2020 (320) 15/09/2020
(730) Akzo Nobel Coatings International B.V.

Velperweg 76, 6824 BM Arnhem, The 
Netherlands

(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8 Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (19)

<540) POLYFILLA

(310) 32168/2020 (320) 15/09/2020
(730) Akzo Nobel Coatings International B.V.

Velperweg 76, 6824 BM Arnhem,
The Netherlands

(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney
8 Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) (19)

<540> POLYCELL

Opposition, if any, to be lodged with the Controller, The Industrial Property Office, Ministry of Foreign 
Affairs, Regional Integration and International Trade (International Trade Division), 11th Floor, Sterling 
House, Lislet Geoffroy Street, Port-Louis, Republic of Mauritius by way of notice and within the delay 
prescribed by law (2 months) in accordance with the Patents, Industrial Designs and Trademarks Act 2002.

Date: 08/10/2020 Ag. Controller 
Industrial Property Office
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General Notice No. 1460 of2020

PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 
(Regulation 53)

Notice is hereby given that the following marks have been registered under Section 39 of the Patents, Industrial 
Design &Trademarks Act 2002:-

(111) 28306/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) MIPSIT DIGITAL LTD

No. 3, Tranquille Avenue
Vacoas, Republic of Mauritius

(740) Yusuf Nazroo
12, Frere Felix De Valois Street 
Port Louis

(510) Int Class 35
(540) e shops.mu (and logo)

shops

(111) 28307/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) MAUVILAC INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Pailles Road, Les Pailles
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Ruben Cyril Payen, Trademark Agent
IBL LTD, Ground Floor
IBL HOUSE
Caudan, Port Louis

(510) Int Classes 2 and 16

(54°) Mauvilac Cristal

(111) 28308/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) Dowdy Holdings, LLC

251 Little Falls Drive, Wilmington
Delaware 19808
United States of America

(740) Ruben Cyril Payen, Trademark Agent
IBL LTD, Ground Floor
IBL HOUSE
Caudan, Port Louis

(510) Int Class 36
(540) ARKENSTONE

(111) 28309/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l 
Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E) 
Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent 
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street 
Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) IROVEL

(111) 28310/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l
Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E)
Mumbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India 

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street
Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5 
(540) NEXITO

(111) 28311/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l
Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E) 
Mumbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent 
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street 
Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) OFRAMAX
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(111) 28312/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l
Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E) 
Mumbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) OLEANZ

(111) 28314/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l
Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E) 
Mumbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
<54°) RACIPER

(111) 28313/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l
Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E) 
Mumbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) QUITIPIN

(111) 28315/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l
Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E) 
Mumbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) RANFERON

(111) 28316/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l
Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E) 
Mumbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) RANOPHAGE

(111) 28317/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) TREZOR LOKAL LTD

Reverend Martin Luther King 
Plaisance, Rose Hill 
Republic of Mauritius 

(510) Int Classes 16 and 28
(540) SIKDOZ - Enn ti douser lokal (logo)

(111) 28318/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) Ecofresh Detergents Ltd

Industrial Zone, DBM Building
Military Road, Terre Rouge
Republic of Mauritius

(510) Int Classes 3 and 44
(540) Ecofresh Logo

(111) 28319/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) Tea and Spice Ltd

8, Impasse Dr Lesur
Beau Bassin
Republic of Mauritius

(510) Int Class 29
(540) & burgers-gourmet burgers & wraps (logo)
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(111) 28320/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) Naushaad Khalid Malleck

(510) 
(540)

34 a Decourcy Street, Port Louis 
Republic of Mauritius
Int Classes 35 and 38
ZAFAIRE.COM (Word and Logo)

(111) 28322/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SABABADV Paul Frederic Steeve

94 Pope Hennessy Street, Beau Bassin, 
Republic of Mauritius

(510) Int Classes 29 and 31
(540) egino (Good habits for a great life) (logo)

(111) 28324/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) POLYTOL PAINTS & ADHESIVES

MANUFACTURERS CO. LTD
Baie du Tombeau Road, Riche Terre, Republic 
of Mauritius

(510) Int Classes 3 and 5
(540) Polysafe (and logo)

(111) 28326/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SMESSA LTD

Tagore Road, Mon Gout
Republic of Mauritius

(510) Int Classes 24 and 26
(540) Cherian & logo

(111) 
(730)

(510) 
(540)

28321/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
Polytol Paints & Adhesives Manufacturers Co. 
Ltd
Baie du Tombeau Road, Riche Terre 
Republic of Mauritius
Int Class 2
Polycolor Pure white (logo)

PURE 
WHITE

(111) 28323/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) Fairy Textiles Ltd

Henri Koenig Street, Curepipe
Republic of Mauritius

(510) Int Classes 25 and 40
(540) FT - FAIRY TEXTILES LTD (logo)

(111) 28325/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) ROYAL GRACE TRADING LIMITED
(730) La Chapelle Rd, Mare d'Australia

Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 4
(540) MAURILUB (and logo)

(111) 28327/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf Sulleyman Nazroo, Trademark Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 35
(540) SUN PHARMA Logo

(111) 28328/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) AQUAMET

(111) 28329/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) ALTRAFLAM

(111) 28330/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) bacqure

(111) 28331/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) brimosun

(111) 28332/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) BRUSTAN

(111) 28333/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) CARDIVAS

(111) 28334/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) CANDESAR

(111) 28335/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) CERUVIN

(111) 28336/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express 
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 
063Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis 

(510) Int Class 5
(540) Cl FRAN

(111) 28337/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) CILENTRA

ZAFAIRE.COM
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(111) 28338/2020 (151) 28/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) CONTIFLO

(111) 28339/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) ROSUVAS

(111) 28340/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) ROZAVEL

(111) 28341/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) STAXOM

(111) 28342/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) UROTEL

(111) 28343/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) VOLINI

(111) 28344/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf Sulleyman Nazroo, Trademark Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 35
(540) SUN PHARMA

(111) 28345/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) DAZIT

(111) 28346/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) enhancin

(111) 28347/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l, Western Express
Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai-400 063 
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) FLEXITAL
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(111) 28348/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l
Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E) 
Mumbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India 

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street
Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5 
(540) FLOTRAL

(111) 28349/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l
Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E) 
Mumbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India 

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street
Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5 
(540) HISTAC

(111) 28350/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(730) SUN PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Sun House, Plot No. 201 B/l
Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E) 
Mumbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India

(740) Yusuf NAZROO, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street 
Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) STORVAS

(111) 28351/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(330) 19 4 579 190 05/09/2019 FRANCE
(730) Trace Global

73 Rue Henri Barbusse
92110 Clichy
France

(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney 
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street 
Port-Louis

(510) Int Classes 9, 41 and 42
(540) TRACE ACADEMIA

(111) 28352/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(730) Kerzner International Limited

Atlantis Paradise Island, Coral Towers 
Executive Office, P.O. Box N4777 
Nassau, Bahamas

(740) R.C Payen, Trademark Agent, IBL Ltd
Ground Floor, IBL House
Caudan, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 43
(540) BOTANICA

(111) 28353/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(730) NOVARTIS AG

4002 Basel
Switzerland

(740) Kashish International Limited, IP Agent
16, Autruches Avenue
Quatre-Bornes

(510) Int Class 10 
(540) UNOREADY

(111) 28354/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(330) 14138/2019 28/10/2019 SWITZERLAND 
(730) ROLEX SA

Rue Francois- Dussaud 3-5-7
Geneva, Switzerland

(740) Mr Ruben Cyril Payen, Trademark Agent 
IBL Ltd, Trademark Dept, Ground Floor 
IBL House Caudan, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 14
(54°) CYCLOPS

(111) 28355/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(730) NOVARTIS AG

4002 Basel
Switzerland

(740) KASHISH International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue
Quatre Bornes

(510) Int Class 44 
(540) EYELOVE
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(111) 28356/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(330) 88/672,677 29/10/2019 USA
(730) ASP GLOBAL MANUFACTURING GMBH 

Im Majorenacker, 10 Schaffhausen 8207, 
Switzerland

(740) Me. Vashish Bhugoo, Attorney-at-Law 
8th Floor, Astor Court, Block B 
Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis 

(510) Int Classes 16 and 40
(540) ASP Device

(111) 28357/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(730) Anas Ibn Ahmed Sheik Madan

3 Ter Lane
Port Louis
Republic of Mauritius

(510) Int Classes 16 and 40
(540) iCustom - Get it here (and logo)

(111) 28358/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(730) Farah LUTTOO

39 More Hermitage, Coromandel
Republic of Mauritius

(510) Int Classes 18, 24 and 35
(540) Maurimade (and logo)

(111) 28359/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(730) AJug & CO LTD

Royal Road, Chamouny
Republic of Mauritius

(510) Int Classes 35 and 36
(540) AJug Properties (and logo)

EVERYTHING HANDMADE

(111) 28360/2020 (151) 29/09/2020
(730) NIONI LTD

Bissessur Lane, Petite Riviere
Republic of Mauritius

(510) Int Classes 25 and 35
(540) NIONI (and logo)

SUSTAINABLE KIDS FASHION

(111) 28361/2020 (151) 30/09/2020
(330) 194593206 23/10/2019 FRANCE
(730) Domaine de I'lle

Chemin du Langoustier
Domaine de I'lle
Ile de Porquerolles
83400 Hyères, France

(740) Me. Vashish BHUGOO, Attorney at Law 
8th Floor, Astor Court, Block B 
Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) Int Class 33
(540) DOMAINE DE L'ILE
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(111) 28362/2020 (151) 30/09/2020
(730) ORIENTAL FOOD INDUSTRIES SDN BHD

No. 65, Jalan Usaha 7
Ayer Kerch Industrial Estate 
75450 Melaka, Malaysia

(740) Me. Vashish BHUGOO, Attorney at Law 
8th Floor, Astor Court, Block B 
Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Classes 29 and 30
(540) JACKER

(111) 
(730)

(740)

(510)
(540)

28363/2020 (151) 30/09/2020
ORIENTAL FOOD INDUSTRIES SDN BHD 
No. 65, Jalan Usaha 7
Ayer Keroh Industrial Estate 
75450 Melaka, Malaysia
Me. Vashish BHUGOO, Attorney at Law 
8th Floor, Astor Court, Block B 
Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis 
Int Classes 29 and 30
Cheese Balls & Device

(111) 28364/2020 (151) 30/09/2020
(730) ORIENTAL FOOD INDUSTRIES SDN BHD

No. 65, Jalan Usaha 7
Ayer Keroh Industrial Estate 
75450 Melaka, Malaysia

(740) Me. Vashish BHUGOO, Attorney at Law
8th Floor, Astor Court, Block B 
Georges Guibert Street 
Port-Louis

(510) Int Classes 29 and 30
(540) Green Pea & Device

(111) 28365/2020 (151) 30/09/2020
(730) ORIENTAL FOOD INDUSTRIES SDN BHD

No. 65, Jalan Usaha 7
Ayer Keroh Industrial Estate 
75450 Melaka, Malaysia

(740) Me. Vashish BHUGOO, Attorney at Law
8th Floor, Astor Court, Block B 
Georges Guibert Street 
Port-Louis

(510) Int Classes 29 and 30
(540) Super Ring & Device

(111) 28366/2020 (151) 30/09/2020
(730) Monster Energy Company

1 Monster Way, Corona, California 92879, 
United States of America

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue
Quatre Bornes

(510) Int Class 32
(540) JUICE MONSTER

(111) 28367/2020 (151) 30/09/2020
(730) Monster Energy Company

1 Monster Way, Corona, California 92879, 
United States of America

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue 
Quatre Bornes 

(510) Int Classes 30 and 32 
(540) MONSTER rehab
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(111) 28368/2020 (151) 30/09/2020
(730) Tecno Telecom (HK) Limited

Room 604 6/F, South Tower, World Finance 
Center, Harbour City 17, Canton Road 
TST KL, Hong-Kong

(740) Mr Vassist Rao LUCHMAYA, Attorney at Law
2nd Floor, Suite 205, Sterling Tower 
La Poudrière Street, Port Louis

(510) Int Class 9
(540) POVA (logo)

POVA

(111) 28369/2020 (151) 30/09/2020
(730) LOW AND CO

111 rue Marceau 93100 
Montreuil, France

(740) Me. Vashish BHUGOO, Attorney at law 
8th Floor, Astor Court, Block B, Georges 
Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Classes 9, 28, 38 and 41 
(540) NEONESS LIVE (Colour) (logo)

neoncss^,

(111) 28370/2020 (151) 30/09/2020
(730) LA MADELEINE DOREE LTD

Chemin des campêches, Morcellement 
Cambier, Le Morne 
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Etude Guy Rivalland, Attorneys al Law 
7th Floor, Chancery House 
Lislet Geoffroy Street, Port Louis

(510) Int Class 30
(540) Pains et Moulins - Artisans boulangers & 

pâtissiers (and logo)

PAINS
&

MOULINS
Artisans boulangers & pâtissiers

(111) 28371/2020 (151) 30/09/2020
(730) SPHERE MEDIA TECHNOLOGIES CO LTD

Royal Road
Gentilly, Moka
Republic of Mauritius

(510) Int Classes 35 and 42
(540) SPADEALS.MU (and logo)

Date: 08 October 2020
Ag Controller

Industrial Property Office
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General Notice No. 1461 of2020

The Patents, Industrial Designs and Trademarks Act 2002 and Regulations 2004

(Section 41, Regulation 54)

Notice is hereby given that the registration of the under-mentioned trademarks has expired 
on the date indicated therein. These marks may be renewed within a period of 3 months 
from the date of expiry, subject to the payment of a surcharge fee of Rs. 1050, failing 
which the marks will be removed from the Register.

TRADEMARK REGISTERED OWNER FILING 
DATE

REG. 
NO.

DATE OF 
EXPIRY

SECTRAL SANOFI MATURE IP [FR] 18/09/1975 6168 18/09/2020
SQUIBB E.R. SQUIBB & SONS, LLC [US] 27/09/1975 6175 27/09/2020
POWER UNDER 
FLASH DEVICE BATA BRANDS SA [CH] 30/09/1975 6176 30/09/2020

MA1ZENA PIONEER FOODS (PROPRIETARY) 
LIMITED [ZA] 15/09/1989 10162 15/09/2020

CEFROM AVENTIS PHARMA S.A. [FR] 27/09/1989 10172 27/09/2020
S JVC KENWOOD CORPORATION [JP] 11/09/1989 11232 11/09/2020
ST IVES GREEN BRANDS LTD [MU] 01/09/2010 10200 01/09/2020
HASHI ENERGY HASHI ENERGY HOLDINGS LTD [MU] 01/09/2010 10208 01/09/2020
THORIGNÉ RLMT CREATIONS LTEE [MU] 01/09/2010 10209 01/09/2020
RESTOWAYTREAT RESTOWAY LTD [MU] 02/09/2010 10210 02/09/2020

KRISHNA SWEETS KEN SWEETS DISTRIBUTIONS LTD 
[MU] 02/09/2010 10224 02/09/2020

TANJORE SWEETS SANDRA SWEETS LTD [MU] 02/09/2010 10225 02/09/2020
TISH GIRAUD MARIE LAETITIA [MU] 03/09/2010 10211 03/09/2020
NUIT DOUCE LA
DOUCEUR DE VOS
NUITS

PABSHA CO LTD [MU] 03/09/2010 10239 03/09/2020

PLAISANCE
AERO VILLE THE 
PLACE TO BE

CJ INVESTMENTS LIMITED [MU] 03/09/2010 10212 03/09/2020

IOREC THE FUTURE 
OF DEVELOPMENT

INDIAN OCEAN REAL ESTATE 
COMPANY [MU] 03/09/2010 10213 03/09/2020

ZIIR FRIED ONIONS ROZEEDA BIBI OOZEER [MU] 06/09/2010 10214 06/09/2020

EASY BAKE EDENDALE DISTRIBUTORS LTD 
[MU] 06/09/2010 10226 06/09/2020

GINGER PASSION 
THE ORIGINAL 
TASTE OF LIFE

GINGERLY GLAD ENTERPRISE 
[MU] 06/09/2010 12892 06/09/2020

MUSKAN P&P INTERNATIONAL CO LTD [MU] 06/09/2010 10215 06/09/2020
ZIMAZE PATRICK LA VERDANT [MU] 07/09/2010 10227 07/09/2020
OUSS JIMMY KOON PO YUEN [MU] 07/09/2010 10891 07/09/2020
OCEAN PLATTER JIMMY KOON PO YUEN [MU] 07/09/2010 10228 07/09/2020
TAMAT JIMMY KOON PO YUEN [MU] 07/09/2010 10892 07/09/2020

SOFTWARE LABS ADVANCED SOFTWARE LABS LTD 
[MU] 07/09/2010 10229 07/09/2020

PARISH THOMAS JAWOROWSKI [FR] 08/09/2010 10307 08/09/2020
BELLE ET COQUINE HEMRAZSING SANJEEV [MU] 08/09/2010 10308 08/09/2020
ALAMANDA
GARDEN COUNTRY HOME LTD [MU] 09/09/2010 10240 09/09/2020

CARBOSIN PHARMACHEMIE B.V. [NL] 09/09/2010 10517 09/09/2020
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EPOSIN PHARMACHEMIE B.V. [NL] 09/09/2010 10518 09/09/2020
RESCUVOLIN PHARMACHEMIE B.V [NL] 09/09/2010 10519 09/09/2020
TAMOPLEX PHARMACHEMIE B.V [NL] 09/09/2010 10520 09/09/2020
PCH PACLITAXEL PHARMACHEMIE B.V. [NL] 09/09/2010 10521 09/09/2020

MOZA MAGIC M-NET INTELPROP HOLDINGS 
LIMITED [MU] 09/09/2010 10426 09/09/2020

MNET JABULA M-NET INTELPROP HOLDINGS 
LIMITED [MU] 09/09/2010 10427 09/09/2020

N'SWEBU MAGIC M-NET INTERPROP HOLDINGS 
LIMITED [MU] 09/09/2010 10428 09/09/2020

ISIKO MAGIC M-NET INTELPROP HOLDINGS 
LIMITED [MU] 09/09/2010 10429 09/09/2020

LIWE MAGIC M-NET INTELPROP HOLDINGS 
LIMITED [MU] 09/09/2010 10430 09/09/2020

UNIMELA PIERRE FABRE DERMO- 
COSMETIQUE [FR] 09/09/2010 10839 09/09/2020

CELEEN YOUNG 
COMODITY

JEAN CHRISTIAN SAMOUILHAN 
[MU] 13/09/2010 10278 13/09/2020

BENTA BERRY FR PROJECT ( PTE.) LTD [SG] 13/09/2010 10279 13/09/2020
SURFORTAN ALFA WASSERMANN S.P.A. [IT] 13/09/2010 10431 13/09/2020

GAILLARD BELAMI GARMENTS COMPANY 
LIMITED [MU] 13/09/2010 10241 13/09/2020

LES ENFANTS 
TERRIBLES

GREEDHARRY BIJAYCOOMAR 
[MU] 14/09/2010 10242 14/09/2020

RESTAURANT
AMIGO RESTAURANT AMIGO LTEE [MU] 14/09/2010 10475 14/09/2020

SAVE IT EASY ECO VERDE LTD [MU] 15/09/2010 10260 15/09/2020
UNKNOWN STREET 
WEAR JOOMAN ZAAFIR [MU] 15/09/2010 10261 15/09/2020

NATURE'S CHOICE RESOURCE COMMUNICATIONS CC 
[ZA] 15/09/2010 10697 15/09/2020

COIN FRAIS INNODIS LTD [MU] 15/09/2010 10265 15/09/2020

TRICOMFORT

ALCON INC., A COMPANY DULY 
ORGANIZED AND EXIXTING 
UNDER THE LAWS OF
SWITZERLAND [CH]

15/09/2010 10266 15/09/2020

CIRCLE SQUARE CIRCLE SQUARE HOLDING
COMPANY LTD [MU] 16/09/2010 10268 16/09/2020

CIRCLE SQUARE 
(DESTINATION 
NORTH)

CIRCLE SQUARE HOLDING
COMPANY LTD [MU] 16/09/2010 10269 16/09/2020

PHARMACIE ESPACE 
SANTÉ LA SANTÉ 
AVANT TOUT

PHARMAFORTE (MAURITIUS) LTD 
[MU] 16/09/2010 10522 16/09/2020

ORANGEFIELD ORANGEFIELD TRUST B.V. [NL] 16/09/2010 11868 16/09/2020
SENSAS WEAR THIERRY MAGAMOOTOO [MU] 17/09/2010 10309 17/09/2020
PEARL NEW LIGHT TRADING LTD [MU] 17/09/2010 10523 17/09/2020
SIMPLY INDIA ABKID (MAURITIUS) LTD [MU] 17/09/2010 10281 17/09/2020
ATSUKO ABKID (MAURITIUS) LTD [MU] 17/09/2010 10282 17/09/2020
KITE BAR ABKID (MAURITIUS) LTD [MU] 17/09/2010 10283 17/09/2020
THE NOURMAHAL ABKID (MAURITIUS) LTD [MU] 17/09/2010 10284 17/09/2020
TEA GARDEN ABKID (MAURITIUS) LTD [MU] 17/09/2010 10285 17/09/2020
1904 BAR ABKID (MAURITIUS) LTD [MU] 17/09/2010 10458 17/09/2020
L'ATELIER DE 
DOMINIQUE ABKID (MAURITIUS) LTD [MU] 17/09/2010 10286 17/09/2020
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LE MANOIR ABKID (MAURITIUS) LTD [MU] 17/09/2010 10287 17/09/2020
PALME D'OR ABKID (MAURITIUS) LTD [MU] 17/09/2010 10288 17/09/2020
ASTOR BALLROOM ABKID (MAURITIUS) LTD [MU] 17/09/2010 10289 17/09/2020
THE MAP ROOM ABKID (MAURITIUS) LTD [MU] 17/09/2010 10290 17/09/2020
MORISIEN SAN 
FRONTIER MR ASHVIN KRISHNA DWARKA [MU] 20/09/2010 10270 20/09/2020

CRYSTALS BEACH 
RESORT & SPA VACANCES PLUS LIMITED [MU] 20/09/2010 10271 20/09/2020

ERUPTION STUDIO ERUPTION PRODUCTIONS LTD [MU] 20/09/2010 10291 20/09/2020
RUGBY UNION 
MAURITIUS RUGBY UNION MAURITIUS [MU] 20/09/2010 10863 20/09/2020

EUR 0 SEAL JAEGER MARKETING LTD [MU] 20/09/2010 10524 20/09/2020

OMNI-DRY COLUMBIA SPORTSWEAR 
COMPANY [US] 20/09/2010 10387 20/09/2020

KERRYGOLD LOGO ORNUA CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED [IE] 21/09/2010 12212 21/09/2020
ABOLESE LEO PHARMA A/ S [DK] 21/09/2010 10956 21/09/2020
ERALESE LEO PHARMA A/S [DK] 21/09/2010 10525 21/09/2020
LORS IMA LEO PHARMA A/S [DK] 21/09/2010 10526 21/09/2020
PEPLIN LEO PHARMA A/S [DK] 21/09/2010 10527 21/09/2020
ONE STAR KAYT'S LTD [MU] 21/09/2010 10324 21/09/2020
RISING STAR FIRST 
CHOICE KAYT'S LTD [MU] 21/09/2010 10325 21/09/2020

SADEEA KAYT'S LTD [MU] 21/09/2010 10801 21/09/2020
PARATHOM LEDVANCE GMBH [DE] 22/09/2010 10614 22/09/2020
ZENDOW COMFORT ZENDOW COMFORT CO LTD [MU] 23/09/2010 10311 23/09/2020
LE VERGER HJR MARKETING LTD [MU] 23/09/2010 10326 23/09/2020
SANOFI AVENTIS
ONCOLOGY SANOFI [FR] 23/09/2010 10313 23/09/2020

BON AZUR MASCAREIGNES LUXURY
RETREATS LTD [MU] 23/09/2010 10327 23/09/2020

OLÉ KOKO INNODIS LTD [MU] 23/09/2010 10459 23/09/2020
TAMARINO INNODIS LTD [MU] 23/09/2010 10328 23/09/2020
SMARTSET DEPUY SYNTHES, INC. [US] 24/09/2010 10582 24/09/2020
EMERAUDE BEACH 
HOTEL

COMPAGNIE MARMITES DES ILES 
LIMITEE [MU] 24/09/2010 10329 24/09/2020

OLE INNODIS LTD [MU] 24/09/2010 10460 24/09/2020
CAKY Z & Q INTERNATIONAL CO LTD [MU] 24/09/2010 10528 24/09/2020
CHANA Z & Q INTERNATIONAL CO LTD [MU] 24/09/2010 10529 24/09/2020

BUSINESS TIME SHARINE MAMODE HOSSEN 
BOODOO [MU] 24/09/2010 10330 24/09/2020

CARINE ROITFELD CARINE ROITFELD [FR] 24/09/2010 11277 24/09/2020
THREASY DECATHLON [FR] 27/09/2010 10699 27/09/2020
FRIANCAT INVIVO NSA [FR] 27/09/2010 12136 27/09/2020
SM LA SAN MARCO LA SAN MARCO S.P.A [IT] 27/09/2010 10334 27/09/2020
SM LA SAN MARCO LA SAN MARCO S.P.A. [IT] 27/09/2010 10335 27/09/2020
VODKANE SAINT AUBIN LIMITÉE [MU] 27/09/2010 10336 27/09/2020
SIGNIFOR NOVARTIS AG [CH] 27/09/2010 10530 27/09/2020
MOASTEONLINE.CO 
M ATECH LTD [MU] 28/09/2010 10314 28/09/2020

TWENTYONE 
ADVERTISING 
CONSULTANTS

ATECH LTD [MU] 28/09/2010 10315 28/09/2020

MOSTIKO PANACEA PHARMA LTEE [MU] 29/09/2010 10531 29/09/2020
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COTOMILI SAVEURS 
D’ESSENCES COTOMILI LTEE [MU] 29/09/2010 10646 29/09/2020

GML FOUNDATION
JOSEPH LAGESSE

FONDATION JOSEPH LAGESSE 
[MU]

29/09/2010 10361 29/09/2020

GML TOGETHER
COMPAGNIE D'INVESTISSEMENT 
ET DE DEVELOPPEMENT LIMITEE 
[MU]

29/09/2010 10532 29/09/2020

GML INEO LTEE MON LOISIR COMPAGNIE LIMITEE 
[MU] 29/09/2010 10362 29/09/2020

GML
INVESTISSEMENT
LTEE

COMPAGNIE D’INVESTISSEMENT 
ET DE DEVELOPPEMENT LIMITEE 
[MU]

29/09/2010 10363 29/09/2020

GML TRESORERIE 
LTEE

GML TRÉSORERIE LIMITÉE [MU] 29/09/2010 10364 29/09/2020

GML MANAGEMENT 
LTEE INTÉGRITÉ. 
PROFESSIONALISME. 
RESPECT

GML SERVICES FINANCIERS ET
JURIDIQUES LTÉE [MU] 29/09/2010 10365 29/09/2020

GML PENSION FUND GML PENSION FUND [MU] 29/09/2010 10366 29/09/2020
RESTOWAY RESTOWAY LTD [MU] 29/09/2010 10316 29/09/2020
GROUPE AUSTRAL
ASSISTANCE BELLARD PHILIPPE [FR] 29/09/2010 11844 29/09/2020

SNR DENTON DENTONS GROUP (A SWISS 
VEREIN) [CH] 30/09/2010 11809 30/09/2020

CUBE SNR DENTON UK LLP [UK] 30/09/2010 11810 30/09/2020
ATICS LTD ATICS LTD [MU] 30/09/2010 10337 30/09/2020
KANWEI W & V CO LTD [MU] 30/09/2010 10339 30/09/2020
RUGBY UNION 
MAURITIUS RUGBY UNION MAURITIUS [MU] 20/09/2010 10863 20/09/2020

Please disregard this notice ifpayment for the renewal of the registration of the mark has been 
effected prior to this publication.

Date:06 October, 2020 The Controller
Industrial Property Office
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THE PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGN & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002
(Regulation 40)

Notice is hereby given that the following industrial design has been registered 
under Section 31 of the Patents, Industrial Designs & Trademarks Act 2002:

Description of Design: FFL/PRODUCTS HOLDER
Number & Date of Registration: 00249/2020 of 11 September, 2020
Name & Address of the registered owner: FAST FOODS LIMITED of 2nd Floor, S.I.P.F 
Building, Nelson Mandela Square, Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius
Name & Address of Creator: FAST FOODS LIMITED of 2nd Floor, S.I.P.F Building, 
Nelson Mandela Square, Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius
Filing Date: 11 September, 2020
Products: Holders
Class: 07-06
Representation of Designs:

Clear Acrylic 3mm

E
I

35mm

Inox Rod 2.4 mm

35mm

Clear Acrylic 3mm

35mm

E

190 mm

SIDEVIEW

190 mm

TOP VIEW

Date: 06 October, 2020

70mm
100mm

FRONT VIEW

The Controller
Industrial Property Office
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Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Ms Anupama 
PURSUNNOO (born LECKRAJ) of Royal 
Road, Poudre d’Or, Hamlet, has applied to the 
Honourable Attorney General for leave to change 
her name Anupama into that of Havishka so that 
in the future she shall bear the name and surname 
of Havishka LECKRAJ.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the Office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 21/09/2020

Ms Anupama PURSUNNOO 
(bom LECKRAJ)

Applicant 
(Rec No. 18/148662)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Shakti Singh 
SUJEEWAN and Mrs Dezirani SUJEEWAN 
(bom TANY), of Capitol lane, Rose Belle, have 
applied to the Honourable Attorney General for 
leave to change the names of his minor son Tavish 
Singh into Parasmai Tavish Singh so that in the 
future he shall bear the names and surname of 
Parasmai Tavish Singh SUJEEWAN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 26/09/2020

Mr Shakti Singh SUJEEWAN 
and Mrs Dezirani SUJEEWAN

Applicants
Rec No. 18/148710)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Banjeet
CHEEKHOOREE and Mrs Nisha Devi
CHEEKHOOREE (bom RAMDOWAR) of 

Fountain Road, Roches Noires, have applied to the 
Honourable Attorney General for leave to change 
the name of their minor son Setan into that of 
Laksh so that in the future he shall bear the name 
and surname of Laksh CHEEKHOOREE.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
Registry of the office of the Attorney General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Date: 25/09/2020

Mr Banjeet CHEEKHOOREE 
and Mrs Nisha Devi CHEEKHOOREE

(bom RAMDOWAR)
Applicants

(Rec. No. 18/148711)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mrs Bibi Salma 
ECKER (born ENAMUN) of D 03 Pavilion, 
Cap Malheureux, has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney General for leave to change her names 
Bibi Salma into those of Clara Charlotte Yuzra 
so that in the future she shall bear the names and 
surname of Clara Charlotte Yuzra ENAMUN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the Office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 28/09/2020

Mrs Bibi Salma ECKER (bom ENAMUN) 
Applicant 

(Rec No. 18/148719)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Vishalsingh 
LUCHMUN electing his legal domicile in the 
office of Me. Arvin LUCHMUN, Barrister-at-Law, 
Luchmun Chambers, 2nd Floor, Fairfax House, 
21, MGR Gonin Street, Port Louis, has applied 
to the Honourable Attorney General for leave to 
change his name Vishalsingh into that of Kevin 
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so that in the future he shall bear the name and 
surname of Kevin LUCHMUN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the Office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Mr Vishalsingh LUCHMUN 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/148715)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Raahee Nizam 
JANNOO of Royal Road, Rose Hill, has applied 
to the Honourable Attorney General for leave to 
change his names and surname Raahee Nizam 
JANNOO into those of Raphael Leonardo 
ROSE so that in the future he shall bear the names 
and surname of Raphael Leonardo ROSE.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the Office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 30/10/2020
Mr Raahee Nizam JANNOO

Applicant
(Rec. No. 18/148748)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Miss Marie 
Rindalie Katie XAVIER c/o Ms Seesamah 
Brinda Ivini VEERIGADU of Avenue des 
Capitaines, Morcellement de Chazal, Albion, has 
applied to the Honourable Attorney General, for 
leave to change her names Marie Rindalie Katie 
into those of Katie Marie Rindalie so that in the 
future, she shall bear the names and surname of 
Katie Marie Rindalie XAVIER.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
this notice in the papers.

Dated this 28th day of September, 2020.

Miss Marie Rindalie Katie XAVIER 
(Rec No: 18/148776) Applicant

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Jean Cedric 
Olivier MOREL of 5, Malefille Avenue, 
Belle Rose, has applied to the Honourable Attorney 
General for leave to change his surname MOREL 
into that of MAUREL so that in the future he shall 
bear the name and surname of Jean Cédric Olivier 
MAUREL.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the Office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 01/10/2020

Mr Jean Cédric Olivier MOREL 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/148782)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Rikesh Hans 
BALLAH electing his legal domicile in the Office 
of Me- Dave BOOLAUKY, Attomey-at-Law, 8 
Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis, has applied 
to the Honourable Attorney-General for leave to 
change the names Rikesh Hans into that of Rikesh 
so that in the future he shall bear the name and 
surname of Rikesh BALLAH.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the 
registry of the Office of the Attorney-General 
within a period of 28 days as from the last date of 
publication of the said notice in the papers.

Date: 05.10.2020

Rikesh BALLAH 
Applicants 

(Rec. No. 18/148858)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Ms Bibi Yashna 
AUBDOOLARY of Dr Manilall Road, Bois- 
Rouge, Pamplemousses, has applied to the 
Honourable Attorney General for leave to change 
her names Bibi Yashna into that of Yashna so that 
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in the future she shall bear the name and surname 
of Yashna AUBDOOLARY.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the Office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 07/10/2020

Ms Bibi Yashna AUBDOOLARY
Applicant

(Rec No. 18/148828)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Ms Marie Mylene 
Corine ANDRÉ of Corner Boundary Road, 
Rajkoomar Avenue, Quatre Bornes, has applied 
to the Honourable Attorney General for leave to 
change her names and surname Marie Mylene 
Corine ANDRÉ into those of Elif Mahiza NAICK 
so that in the future she shall bear the names and 
surname of Elif Mahiza NAICK.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the Office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 07/10/2020

Ms Marie Mylene Corine ANDRÉ 
Applicant 

(Rec No. 18/148834)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Hossenkhan 
UMARKHAN and Mrs Marie Annaelle 
BAZERQUE of 28 Labourdonnais, Port Louis, 
have applied to the Honourable Attorney General 
for leave to change the names of their minor 
daughter Bibi Aneesa Husniyah into that of' 
Assenbee so that in the future she shall bear the 
name and surname of Assenbee UMARKHAN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the Office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 05.10.2020

Mr Hossenkhan UMARKHAN 
and Mrs Marie Annaelle BAZERQUE 

Applicants 
(Rec. No. 18/148809)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Ms Khooshanjali 
UJHOODHA electing her legal domicile in the 
Office of Me Ruwaydah JAUNBACUS, Uteem 
Chambers, 4th Floor, Les Jamalacs Building, 
Vieux Conseil Street, Port Louis, has applied to the 
Honourable Attorney General for leave to change 
her name Khooshanjali UJHOODHA into those 
of Shouba Khooshanjali UJHOODHA.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the Office of the Attorney general within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 30.09.2020.

Ms Khooshanjali UJHOODHA 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/148784)

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
26th day of November, 2020 at 1.30 p.m. shall take 
place before the Master’s Court, Supreme Court 
situate at Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, the Sale 
by Levy of: “A portion of land of the extent of 
seven thousand six hundred and one square metres 
(7,601 m2), being Lot No. 3, situated in the district 
of Moka, place called Providence and bounded 
as per a report drawn up by Mr. Adinarain V. 
Naidoo, Sworn Land Surveyor, on the 31/01/2011, 
registered in Reg. B 180/128, as follows:- 
(PIN Number:- 1807070262) On the first side, by 
Lot No. 2, on seventy eight metres seventy nine 
(78 m 79); On the second side, by a common and 
party road three metres ninety (3 m 90) wide, 
a road reserve one metre fifty (1 m 50) wide in 
between, on a developed line of length ninety six 
metres seventy six (96 m 76); On the third side, by 
reserves nine metres seventy five (9 m 75) wide 
separating the presently described portion of land 
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from the Tramway line, on seventy eight metres 
ten (78 m 10); And on the fourth and last side, by 
Mr. Naguib Ramoly & Mr. Bye Nasseer Ramoly 
on ninety three metres sixty seven (93 m 67). 
Together with all buildings, constructions and 
plantations existing thereon and all dependencies 
and appurtenances thereof, generally whatsoever, 
without any exception or reservation the whole 
as morefully described in deed of division in kind 
No. DK 227/10 drawn up by Mr. Adinarain V. 
Naidoo, Sworn Land Surveyor, on the 31/01/2011 
(duly appointed by His Honour, the Master and 
Registrar of the Supreme Court of Mauritius, 
in virtue of an Order dated 26/11/2010, duly 
registered in Reg. B 180/20) and confirmed by the 
Supreme Court of Mauritius on the 06/06/2011, 
registered and transcribed on the 04/07/2011 in 
TV 8145/15.” The Property consists of a plot of 
land of 7,601 m2 (1 A 80 P) situate in an agricultural 
area off Montagne Blanche - Bel Air Road ‘B27’ 
at Providence (Melrose), in the district of Moka, 
belonging to Mr. Muhammad Asif Naujeer as per 
TV 8145/15. The land is described as being Lot 
No. 3 according to a land survey report drawn up 
by Mr. Adinarain V. Naidoo, sworn land surveyor, 
dated 31/01/2011 and registered in reg. B 180/128. 
Land is found at some 200 m from the main road. 
It is presently vacant and under scrub vegetation.

The whole morefully described in the 
Memorandum of Charges filed in the above matter.

The sale is prosecuted at the request of 
The Mauritius Commercial Bank Ltd against 
Mr. Muhammad Asif NAUJEER.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication failing which they shall 
forfeit such rights.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 6th day of October, 
2020.

Udhisteer K. Ragobur 
ENSafrica (Mauritius) 

of 19, Church Street, Port Louis.
Attorney in charge of the sale.

(Rec. No. 18/148861)

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
18th day of February, 2021 at 1.30 p.m. shall take 
place before the Master’s Court, Supreme Court 
situate at Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, the Sale 
by Levy of: “A portion of land of the extent of 
four hundred and thirteen square metres (413 m2), 
being Lot No. 4, situate in the district of Savanne 
place called Chemin Grenier, Chamouny and 
bounded as per a report drawn up by Mr. Louis 
Maurice Dumazel, Sworn Land Surveyor, on the 
26/11/2001, registered in Reg:- B 153 No. 3527, 
as follows:- (PIN Number:- 1613020108), On the 
first side partly by Indraoh Bhurosy and partly by 
a road three metres zero five (3 m 05) wide on 
two lengths measuring respectively sixteen metres 
thirty (16 m 30) and three metres thirty (3 m 30); 
On the second side by Lot No. 3, on nineteen 
metres forty eight (19 m 48); On the third side 
by Radha Jugessur on twenty metres (20 m 00); 
And on the fourth and last side, by Harishankar 
Bhurosy, on two lengths measuring respectively 
eighteen metres thirty eight (18 m 38) and three 
metres thirty (3 m 30). Together with all buildings, 
constructions and plantations existing thereon 
and all dependencies and appurtenances thereof, 
generally whatsoever, without any exception or 
reservation the whole as morefully described 
in the deed of division in kind No. 282 of 2001, 
drawn up by Mr. Louis Maurice Dumazel, Sworn 
Land Surveyor, (duly appointed by Her Honour, 
the Master & Registrar of the Supreme Court in 
virtue of an Order dated 22/11/2001 registered 
in Reg:- B 153 No. 3526) on the 26/11/2001, 
registered in Reg:- B 153 No. 3527, confirmed by 
the Supreme Court of Mauritius on the 10/12/2001 
and transcribed in Vol. 4800/30.” The property 
consists of a plot of land of 413 m2 situate in a 
residential area, off Sawmill Street at Chamouny 
in the District of Savanne, belonging to Mr. and 
Mrs. Geeandeo Hurrydass as per TV 4800/30. 
There exists on that plot of land, a single storey 
house made in reinforced concrete framed 
structure, concrete block walls under reinforced 
concrete slab roof.

The whole morefully described in the 
Memorandum of Charges filed in the above matter.

The sale is prosecuted at the request of 
The Mauritius Commercial Bank Ltd against 
Mr. Geeandev HURRYDASS and Anor.
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All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication failing which they shall 
forfeit such rights.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 6th day of October, 
2020.

Udhisteer K. Ragobur
ENSafrica (Mauritius) 

19, Church Street, 
Port Louis.

Attorney in charge of the sale 
(Rec. No. 18/148861)

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 25th 
day of February, 2021 at 1.30 p.m. shall take place 
before the Master’s Court, Supreme Court situate 
at Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, the Sale by 
Levy of: “Uneportion de terrain de la contenance 
de deux cent trente neuf mètres carrés (239 m2), 
située au quartier des Plaines Wilhems, lieu dit 
Highlands - Phoenix, ‘Hermitage Branch Road’et 
bornée d’après un procès verbal de rapport avec 
plan figuratif y joint, dressé par Monsieur Robert 
Foiret, arpenteur juré, en date du 26/05/1996, 
enregistré au Reg:- L.S. 32 No. 7234, comme suit:- 
(PINNumber:-1734390098) Du premier côté, par 
chemin existant de quatre mètres vingt sept (4 m 27) 
de large, une réserve d’un mètre (1 m 00) de large 
entre, sur dix mètres quatre vingt deux (10 m 82); 
Du deuxième côté, par le Lot No. 9, sur vingt deux 
mètres soixante dix (22 m 70); Du troisième côté, par 
Abdool Azize Jaffur ou ayants droit, sur dix mètres 
trente (10 m 30); Et du quatrième côté, par le Lot 
No. 7, sur vingt deux mètres soixante dix (22 m 70); 
Together with all buildings, constructions and 
plantations existing thereon and all dependencies 
and appurtenances thereof, generally whatsoever 
without any exception or reservation the whole* 
as morefully described in title deed drawn up by 
Mr. Joseph Ignace Pierre Avrillon, Notary Public 
on the 27/05/1996, registered and transcribed on 
the 05/06/1996 in Vol. 3387/5.” Land:- Zoning:- 
Residential, Site:- The rectangular shaped land has 
an even topography with a frontage of 10.82 metres 
to a 4.27 metres wide common road - Dahlia 

Lane. Hermitage Branch Road is approximately 
80 metres away from subject property. The site 
is serviced with all infrastructural utilities and 
facilities. Access:- Access to property is by means 
of a tarred and vehicular road. Services:- Electricity 
and domestic water supply are available on site. 
Neighbourhood:- Neighbourhood consists of semi- 
luxurious and a few luxurious residential buildings 
in a moderately built-up residential zone. All 
amenities including public transport are available 
in the region. Building:- Residential Building:- The 
single storey (ground floor) residential building is 
made of reinforced concrete frame structure with 
concrete block walls under a mainly flat concrete 
slab roof, (a) Area - Approximately 120 m2 
or 1,291.20 ft2; (b) State of repair - Good; (c) 
Finishes: Openings - Aluminium glazed doors and 
windows; Plastering and paint - External walls are 
rendered and painted. Existing site improvements :- 
Yard is enclosed with block walls and a gate.

The whole morefully described in the 
Memorandum of Charges filed in the above matter.

The sale is prosecuted at the request of 
The Mauritius Commercial Bank Ltd 
against Mr. Jean-Claude Gilbert Michael 
CONSTANTIN and Anor.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication failing which they shall 
forfeit such rights.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 6th day of October, 
2020.

Udhisteer K. Ragobur 
ENSafrica (Mauritius) 

19, Church Street, 
Port Louis.

Attorney in charge of the sale
(Rec. No. 18/148861)

SALE BY LICITATION

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
19th day of November 2020 at 13.30 hrs, shall take 
place before the Master’s Bar, Supreme Court, 
situate at Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, the Sale 
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by Licitation prosecuted at the request of Sheela 
Devi LUCHMAN, of 9, New Road, Belle Etoile, 
Coromandel against Perry Jean Eny LABONTE 
of 9, Impasse Emmaus, Coromandel of a portion 
of land of the extent of 287 square metres but 
found to be 287.64 square metres, being Lot No. 9 
situate in the district of Plaines Wilhems place 
called Coromandel, the whole morefully described 
in deed transcribed in Volume No. 7700/48 and 
bounded as follows:- “Dz/ premier côté, par un 
chemin commun de cinq mètres et cinquante 
centimètres (5.50 m) de large, des reserves d’un 
mètre (1.00 m) de large entre, sur quatorze mètres 
et cinquante centimètres (14.50 m); du deuxième 
côté, par le Lot No. 8, sur dix neuf mètres et quatre 
vingt quatre centimètres (19.84 m); du troisième 
côté, par le Lot No. 2, sur quatorze mètres et 
cinquante centimètres (14.50 m) et du 4ème et 
dernier côté, par le Lot No. 10, sur dix neuf mètres 
et quatre vingt quatre centimètres (19.84 m).

Ail parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
mortgage on the said property described above, are 
warned that they must do so before the Judgment 
of Adjudication, failing which they will forfeit 
such right.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 06th day of October 
2020.

Me. N. RAMA
Attorney in charge of the sale 

(Rec. No. 18/148822)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 117 OF 
INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

Nile Investment Limited
File no: Cl68756

(In Shareholders ’ Voluntary Winding-up)

I, Shareef Ramjan hereby notify that:

(i) I have been appointed as liquidator of 
the above named company by virtue of a 
shareholders’ resolution dated the 7th of 
September 2020.

(ii) The commencement date of the liquidation 
is 7th of September 2020.

(iii) Any inquiries by any debtors or creditors 
may be sent to me.

(iv) My contact details are as follows:
C/o SRA Partners
More Bheenick, Telfair,
Moka, Mauritius
Tel: 460 9000

Dated this the 25th of September 2020.

Shareef Ramjan (FCCA) 
Liquidator 

(Rec. No. 18/148841)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 117 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

L’ORFEBRE MAURITIUS LTD

(In Creditors ’ Voluntary Liquidation)

I, Priyaved Jhugroo, hereby notify that I have 
been appointed as liquidator of the above named 
company further to a creditors’ meeting held on 
5 October 2020. The commencement of liquidation 
is the date of the said meeting at 12.15 hrs.

Any inquiries by debtors or creditors may be 
made through the following contact details:

C/o Lancasters Chartered Accountants
14 Lancaster Court
Lavoquer Street
Port Louis
Mauritius
Telephone: 213 4510

Dated this 8 October 2020.

Priyaved Jhugroo fca 
Liquidator 

Licensed Insolvency Practitioner 
(Rec. No. 18/148860)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2008

ACM Aussie Limited (CI/108325)
“The Company”

By special shareholder resolution the following 
resolutions were passed and voted unanimously:-

That the Company will appoint a liquidator 
to proceed with the liquidation of ACM Aussie 
Limited. Mr. Khemraj Rajkumarsingh, c/o 
Nolands Mauritius of 2, River Court, St Denis 
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Street Port Louis be appointed Liquidator of 
the Company.

Liquidator’s Office Holder detail:

C/o Nolands Mauritius, 2, River Court, 
St Denis Street, Port Louis.
Email: luran88@intnet.mu
Phone: 212 6946

By Order of the Board 
7th October 2020

(Rec. No. 18/148877)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

BIFOLIA LTD

Notice is hereby given that:

1) Mr. Subhas Purgus, FCCA, C/o Masterson 
Associates Ltd, 2nd Floor, 20B Dr Eugene Laurent 
Street, Port Louis has been appointed Provisional 
Liquidator of Bifolia Ltd (the “Company”).

2) In compliance with Section 137(4) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009, a declaration has been lodged 
with the Registrar of Companies to that effect.

All persons holding any property, documents, 
books and records of the above Company are 
requested to deliver same forthwith to the 
Provisional Liquidator.

Further notice is hereby also given that all sums 
due, and/or payable, to the Company become 
payable and should be remitted to the Provisional 
Liquidator and receipts for such payments shall 
only be valid if they bear the signature of the 
Provisional Liquidator or his duly appointed 
representative(s).

Dated this 30th September 2020.

By order of the Board
(Rec. No. 18/148785)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

LA BOURDONNAIS CAPITAL LTD
(In Liquidation)

File No: Cl64527

Notice is hereby given that:

La Bourdonnais Capital Ltd is under 
liquidation and Mr. Shareef Ramjan of SRA 
Partners, More Bheenick, Telfair, Moka, has been 
appointed Provisional Liquidator of the Company.

A meeting of creditors will be held on Friday 
9th of October 2020 at lOhOO at SRA Partners, 
More Bheenick, Telfair, Moka.

All creditors of the company are requested to 
send their claims (with details/copies of unpaid 
invoices) to the Provisional Liquidator at latest by 
7th of October 2020.

Dated: 2nd of October 2020

By Order of the Board
(Rec. No. 18/148837)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

LA BOURDONNAIS CAPITAL LTD
File no: Cl64527

(In Provisional Liquidation)

Notice is hereby given that:

(1) Mr. Shareef Ramjan, FCCA of SRA Partners, 
More Bheenick, Telfair, Moka has been 
appointed Provisional Liquidator of 
La Bourdonnais Capital Ltd (the “Company”) 
on 18th of September 2020.

(2) In compliance with Section 137(4) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009, a declaration has been 
lodged with the Registrar of Companies to 
that effect.

All persons holding any property, documents, 
books and records of the above Company are 
requested to deliver same forthwith to the 
Provisional Liquidator.

Further notice is hereby also given that all sums 
due, and/or payable, to the Company become 
payable and should be remitted to the Provisional 
Liquidator and receipts for such payments shall 
only be valid if they bear the signature of the 
Provisional Liquidator or his duly appointed 
representative(s).

By order o f the Board
(Rec No: 18/148838)

mailto:luran88@intnet.mu


10 October 2020 3799

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

HAZELL INVESTMENTS LTD 
File no: C125116

(In Provisional Liquidation)

Notice is hereby given that:

(1) Mr. Shareef Ramjan, FCCA of SRA Partners, 
More Bheenick, Telfair, Moka has been 
appointed Provisional Liquidator of 
Hazell Investments Ltd (the “Company”) on 
17th of September 2020.

(2) In compliance with Section 137(4) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009, a declaration has been 
lodged with the Registrar of Companies to 
that effect.

All persons holding any property, documents, 
books and records of the above Company are 
requested to deliver same forthwith to the 
Provisional Liquidator.

Further notice is hereby also given that all sums 
due, and/or payable, to the Company become 
payable and should be remitted to the Provisional 
Liquidator and receipts for such payments shall 
only be valid if they bear the signature of the 
Provisional Liquidator or his duly appointed 
representative(s).

By order of the Board 
(Rec No: 18/148839)

3. That the liquidator be and is hereby 
empowered to distribute to the’ Member, in specie 
or in kind, the whole or any part of the assets of 
the Company.

Dated this the 25th of September 2020.

By Order of the Board 
(Rec. No. 18/148840)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

L’ORFEBRE MAURITIUS LTD

(In Creditors ’ Voluntary Liquidation)

Notice is hereby given that the shareholder 
of L’Orfebre Mauritius Ltd (‘the Company’) has 
passed a special resolution to wind up the Company 
under Section 137(l)(b) of the Insolvency Act 
2009 on 5 October 2020.

At a subsequent creditors’ meeting on the said 
date, at 12.15 hrs, Mr Priyaved Jhugroo FCA, 
Licensed Insolvency Practitioner of Lancasters 
Chartered Accountants, 14 Lancaster Court, 
Lavoquer Street, Port Louis, 11328, Mauritius was 
appointed as Liquidator of the Company.

Dated this 8 October 2020.

Bemat Migo Moliner 
Director 

(Rec. No. 18/148860)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

Nile investment limited
File no: C168756

(In Member s Voluntary Winding up)

The shareholder of Nile Investment Limited 
(the “Company”) has passed the following special 
resolutions on the 7th of September 2020 in lieu 
of holding a special meeting in accordance with 
Section 117 of the Companies Act 2001 :

1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 
under sections 139 to 141 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009;

2. That Mr Shareef Ramjan (FCCA) of the firm 
SRA PARTNERS (More Bheenick, Telfair, Moka, 
Mauritius) be appointed liquidator; and,

NOTICE OF FIRST CREDITORS’ MEETING

Bifolia LTD

Notice is hereby given that:-

1. A first meeting of creditors of Bifolia 
Ltd (the “Company”) will be held at Masterson 
Associates Ltd. 2nd Floor, 20B Dr Eugene Laurent 
Street, Port Louis on 30th October 2020 at 10.30 hrs. 
for the purposes mentioned in Section 141 and 142 
of the Insolvency Act 2009.

2. To be entitled to vote, creditors should 
lodge their proof of claim with the Provisional 
Liquidator, Mr. Subhas Purgus, FCCA C/o 
of Masterson Associates Ltd, 2nd Floor, Dr 
Eugene Laurent Street, Port Louis not later than 
16 October 2020.
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3. The proof of claim should be supported 
by an affidavit sworn in the Supreme Court of 
Mauritius and be accompanied by a Statement 
giving details of the invoices due (date, invoice 
number and amount).

4. A creditor entitled to attend and vote at the 
meeting may appoint another person as his proxy 
to attend and vote in his stead at the meeting.

5. To be valid, the Proxy Form or instrument 
appointing a proxy, must be deposited with 
the Provisional Liquidator at C/o of Masterson 
Associates Ltd, 2nd Floor, Dr Eugene Laurent 
Street, Port Louis not later than 23rd October 2020.

6. All proofs of claim should be sent by 
registered post to the following address:

Mr. Subhas Purgus, FCCA
Provisional Liquidator
C/o Masterson Associates Ltd
2nd Floor
20B Dr Eugene Laurent Street
Port Louis

Dated this 30th September 2020.

By order of the Board
(Rec. No. 18/148811)

NOTICE OF MEMBERS’ MEETING

BIFOLIA LTD

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the 
shareholders of Bifolia Ltd (the “Company”) will 
be held at 2nd Floor 20B Dr Eugene Laurent Street, 
Port Louis on 30th October 2020 at 10.00 hrs. for 
the purposes of considering and, if thought fit, pass 
the following resolutions as special and ordinary 
resolutions respectively:

( 1 ) That the Company be wound up voluntarily

(2) That Mr. Subhas Purgus, FCCA, C/o 
of Masterson Associates Ltd, 2nd Floor, 
20B Dr Eugene Street, Port Louis be appointed as 
Provisional Liquidator of the Company.

All persons holding any property, documents, 
books and records of the above Company are 
requested to deliver same forthwith to the 
Provisional Liquidator.

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the 
meeting may appoint another person as his proxy 
to attend and vote in his stead at the meeting.

2. To be valid, the Proxy Form or instrument 
appointing a proxy, must be deposited with 
the Provisional Liquidator at C/o of Masterson 
Associates Ltd, 2nd Floor, 20B Dr Eugene Street, 
Port Louis not later than 23rd October 2020.

Dated this 30th September 2020.

By order of the Board

(Rec. No. 18/148785)

IN THE HIGH COURT OF THE REPUBLIC OF SINGAPORE

HC/OS 939 of 2020

In the matter of Section 252 of the Insolvency, 
Dissolution and Restructuring Act 2018 (No. 40 of 
2018)

And

In the matter of Article 15 of the UNCITRAL 
Model Law on Cross-Border Insolvency

And

In the matter of AIR MAURITIUS LIMITED 
(Singapore UEN No. S85FC3557C)

And

1. AIR MAURITIUS LIMITED

(Singapore UEN No. S85FC3557C)

2. ABDUL SATTAR ADAM ALI MAMODE 
HAJEE ABDOULA

(Mauritius ID No. Hl 10659012120A)

3. ARVINDSINGH K. GOKHOOL

(Mauritius ID No. G1412784601404)

Applicants

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR RECOGNITION 
UNDER THE UNCITRAL MODEL LAW ON 

CROSS-BORDER INSOLVENCY

Notice is hereby given that an application for 
recognition by the Singapore courts and in Singapore 
of the proceedings in respect of AIR MAURITIUS 
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LIMITED filed under Sub-Part IV (Voluntary 
Administration) of the Mauritian Insolvency Act 
2009 on or around the 22nd day of April 2020 was, 
on the 25th day of September 2020, filed by the 
abovenamed Applicants in the Singapore High 
Court, and the said application is directed to be 
heard at 10.00 AM on Monday, the 19th day of 
October 2020; the said application will also seek 
the recognition of Messrs Abdul Sattar Adam 
Ali Mamode Hajee Abdoula and Arvindsingh K. 
Gokhool, both care of Grant Thornton Mauritius, 
as foreign representatives of AIR MAURITIUS 
LIMITED within the meaning of Article 2(i) of 
the UNCITRAL Model Law On Cross-Border 
Insolvency (the “Model Law”); and any person 
who intends to oppose the making of an order 
under Article 15 of the Model Law may appear 
at the time of hearing by himself or his counsel 
for that purpose; and a copy of the application and 
the supporting affidavit will be furnished to such 
person upon request.

The 1st Applicant’s registered address is 
19th Floor Air Mauritius Centre, President John 
Kennedy Street, Port Louis, Mauritius, with its 
address in Singapore at 150 Cecil Street, #10-01, 
Singapore 069543. The 2nd and 3rd Applicants’ 
address is at 9th Floor, Ebene Tower, 52 Cybercity, 
Ebene, Mauritius.

The Plaintiff’s solicitors are RAJAH & TANN 
SINGAPORE LLP of 9 Straits View #06-07, 
Marina One West Tower, Singapore 018937.

RAJAH & TANN SINGAPORE LLP
Solicitors for the Applicants 

(Ref: KPM/WZR/CJY/348916/1 )

(Rec. No. 18/148870)

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MAURITIUS

(BANKRUPTCY DIVISION)

SC/COM/PET/000688/2020

In the matter of-
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

And

And in the matter of:-
AMC NETWORKS INTERNATIONAL

BROADCASTING LIMITED having elected 

its legal domicile at the office of the undersigned 
Attomey-at-Law situated at Suite 401,

St James Court, St Denis Street, Port-Louis

Petitioner

v/s

ECONET GLOBAL LIMITED
Of 10th Floor, Standard Chartered Tower,

19 Cyber City, Ebène

Respondent

NOTICE is hereby given that a petition for the 
Compulsory Winding-Up of the above-named 
Respondent by the above Court was presented 
on the 2nd October 2020 to the said Court by the 
agent and proxy of the Petitioner, electing its 
legal domicile at the office of the undersigned 
Attomey-at-Law situate at Suite 401, St James 
Court, St Denis Street, Port-Louis, represented by 
Attorney Gilbert Noël of Suite 401, St James Court, 
St Denis Street, Port-Louis, by electronic filing 
under the Court (Electronic filing of Documents) 
Rules 2012, petitioning the above Court that:

a) The Respondent be wound up by the 
above Court under section 102(5)(b) of the 
Insolvency Act; and

b) For such other order that the above Court 
may deem fit and just.

And that the said petition is registered as Cause 
Number SC/COM/PET/000688/2020 and made 
returnable on Monday the 19th day of October, 
2020 for the Respondent to give its stand through 
the Electronic Filing System and any creditor or 
contributory of the said Respondent, desirous to 
support or oppose the making of an order of the 
petition, by making the necessary appearance by 
electronic filing either through an Attomey-at-Law 
and/or in person/by a representative at the Public 
Service Bureau located at the Bankruptcy/ 
Commercial Division of the Supreme Court of 
Mauritius, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, a copy 
of the petition will be furnished to any creditor 
or contributory of the said Respondent requiring 
the same by the undersigned, on payment of the 
regulated charge of the same or may be obtained 
on the electronic filing system.

Under all legal reservations.
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Dated at Port Louis, this 9th day of October 
2020.

Gilbert Noël 
of Suite 401, St James Court, 

St Denis Street Port Louis 
(Rec. No. 18/148871) Attorney for the Petitioner

First Publication

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that I, Mr. Arnaud 
Lagesse, have applied to the Central Water 
Authority for the renewal of a groundwater 
licence to use groundwater from a borehole at 
Mon Rouillard for irrigation.

Any person, wishing to object to the renewal 
may do so within 21 days from publication of this 
notice by lodging the objection in writing to the 
Authority stating reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:
The Water Resources Unit,
Royal Commercial Centre,
St. Ignace Street, Rose Hill

29th September 2020.
Arnaud Lagesse 

(Rec No: 18/148801) Applicant

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that We, Sobail Ltée, 
have applied to the Central Water Authority for 
a ground water licence to use ground water from 
2 boreholes at Pont Bruniquel, Tombeau Bay for 
industrial purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the granting of 
the renewal of licence may do so within 21 days 
from the publication of this notice by lodging the 
objection in writing within the Authority stating 
reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:
The Water Resources Unit
3rd Floor
Royal Commercial Centre
St Ignace Street
Rose Hill

(Rec. No. 18/148830)

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that I, Mr Sebastien 
Amaury Rochecouste, have applied to the Central 
Water Authority for a ground water licence to use 
ground water from a borehole BH 1242, at Deux 
Bras, Mare D’Albert for agriculture purposes.

Any person who wishes to object to the issue of 
the ground water licence may lodge his objection 
together with the reasons for such objection with 
the Central Water Authority within 21 days from 
the last publication of this notice.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3rd Floor
Royal Commercial Centre
St Ignace Street
Rose Hill

Dated: 1 October 2020
(Rec. No. 18/148827)

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that Gamma Materials 
Ltd has applied to the Central Water Authority for 
renewal of a ground water licence to use ground 
water from borehole BH 1179 at Fond du Sac for 
industrial purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the granting 
of the renewal may do so within 21 days from the 
publication of this notice by lodging the objection 
in writing within the Authority stating the reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3rd Floor
Royal Commercial Centre
St Ignace Street
Rose Hill

Gamma Materials Ltd
(Rec. No. 18/148833)

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that Gamma Materials 
Ltd has applied to the Central Water Authority 
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for renewal of a ground water licence to use 
ground water from borehole BH 1140 at Bananes, 
Midlands for industrial purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the granting 
of the renewal may do so within 21 days from the 
publication of this notice by lodging the objection 
in writing within the Authority stating the reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3 rd Floor
Royal Commercial Centre
St Ignace Street
Rose Hill

Gamma Materials Ltd
(Rec. No. 18/148833)

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that Gamma 
Materials Ltd has applied to the Central Water 
Authority for renewal of a ground water licence 
to use ground water from borehole BH 1116 at 
La Chaumière for industrial purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the granting 
of the renewal may do so within 21 days from the 
publication of this notice by lodging the objection 
in writing within the Authority stating the reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3 rd Floor
Royal Commercial Centre
St Ignace Street
Rose Hill

Gamma Materials Ltd
(Rec. No. 18/148833)

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that Gamma 
Materials Ltd has applied to the Central Water 
Authority for renewal of a ground water licence 
to use ground water from borehole BH 1047 at 
St. Julien d’Hotman for industrial purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the granting 
of the renewal may do so within 21 days from the 

publication of this notice by lodging the objection 
in writing within the Authority sta’ting the reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3rd Floor
Royal Commercial Centre
St Ignace Street
Rose Hill

Gamma Materials Ltd
(Rec. No. 18/148833)

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that Gamma 
Materials Ltd has applied to the Central Water 
Authority for renewal of a ground water licence 
to use ground water from borehole BH 1017 at 
St. Julien d’Hotman for industrial purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the granting 
of the renewal may do so within 21 days from the 
publication of this notice by lodging the objection 
in writing within the Authority stating the reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3rd Floor
Royal Commercial Centre
St Ignace Street
Rose Hill

Gamma Materials Ltd
(Rec. No. 18/148833)

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that Gamma Materials 
Ltd has applied to the Central Water Authority for 
renewal of a ground water licence to use ground 
water from borehole BH 962 at La Chaumière, St. 
Martin for industrial purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the granting 
of the renewal may do so within 21 days from the 
publication of this notice by lodging the objection 
in writing within the Authority stating the reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3rd Floor
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Royal Commercial Centre
St Ignace Street
Rose Hill

Gamma Materials Ltd
(Rec. No. 18/148833)

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that Gamma Materials 
Ltd has applied to the Central Water Authority for 
renewal of a ground water licence to use ground 
water from borehole BH 875 at Fond du Sac for 
industrial purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the granting 
of the renewal may do so within 21 days from the 
publication of this notice by lodging the objection 
in writing within the Authority stating the reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3 rd Floor
Royal Commercial Centre
St Ignace Street
Rose Hill

Gamma Materials Ltd
(Rec. No. 18/148833)

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that Gamma Materials 
Ltd has applied to the Central Water Authority 
for renewal of a ground water licence to use 
ground water from borehole BH 874 at Khoyratty, 
Calebasses for industrial purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the granting 
of the renewal may do so within 21 days from the 
publication of this notice by lodging the objection 
in writing within the Authority stating the reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3 rd Floor
Royal Commercial Centre
St Ignace Street
Rose Hill

Gamma Materials Ltd
(Rec. No. 18/148833)

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that Inicia Ltée, have 
applied to the Central Water Authority for the 
renewal of a ground water licence to use ground 
water from borehole BH 1263 at Riche Bois, for 
Agricultural purposes.

Any person who wishes to object to the renewal 
of the ground water licence may lodge his objection 
together with the reasons for such objection with 
the Central Water Authority within 21 days from 
the last publication of this notice.

Particulars and site plans of the property may 
be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3rd Floor, Royal Commercial Centre
St. Ignace Street
Rose Hill

Date: 02 October 2020
Mr. Krishna Chengan 

Inicia Ltée
Applicant

(Rec. No. 18/148804)

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that VEGILUX LTD has 
applied to the Central Water Authority for a ground 
water licence to use ground water from a borehole, 
or other underground installation BH 1335 at 
Schoenfeld, Poudre d’Or Hamlet for the following 
purposes: Irrigation (Hydroponic).

Any person who wishes to object to the issue of 
the ground water licence may lodge his objection 
together with the reasons for such objection with 
the Central Water Authority within 21 days from 
the last publication of this notice.

Particulars and site plans of the property may 
be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3rd Floor, Royal Commercial Centre
St. Ignace Street
Rose Hill

Date: 5th October 2020
Vegilux Ltd 

(Rec. No. 18/148799) Applicant
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NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that the FOOD AND 
AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH AND EXTENSION 
INSTITUTE have applied for the renewal of ground 
water licence to use groundwater from a borehole 
at Pamplemousses Organic Research Station for 
irrigation purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the granting of 
the renewal of licence may do so within 21 days 
from the publication of this notice by lodging the 
objection in writing within the Authority stating 
reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3rd Floor
Royal Commercial Centre
St. Ignace Street
Rose Hill

Food And Agricultural Research 
And Extension Institute

Applicant 
(Rec. No. 18/148815)

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that ALL TO ALL 
MARKETING LTD, have applied to the Central 
Water Authority for a renewal of a groundwater 
licence to use groundwater from borehole No. 1195 
at Bananes, Eau Bleue for irrigation purposes.

Any person, wishing to object to the renewal 
may do so within 21 days from publication of this 
notice by lodging the objection in writing to the 
Authority stating reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit,
3rd Floor
Royal Commercial Centre,
St. Ignace Street, Rose Hill

2nd October 2020.

ALL TO ALL MARKETING LTD
Applicant 

(Rec No: 18/148789)

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUNDWATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that New Goodwill Co 
Ltd have applied to the Central Water Authority 
for the renewal of a groundwater licence to use 
groundwater from BH No. SW 34H at Royal Road, 
Tombeau Bay for production of drinks purposes.

Any person wishing to object to the renewal 
may do so within 21 days from the publication of 
this notice by lodging the objection in writing to 
the Authority stating reasons.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3 rd Floor
Royal Commercial Centre
St. Ignace Street
Rose Hill

Date: 02/10/2020

New Goodwill Co Ltd
Applicant

(Rec No. 18/148843)

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
GROUND WATER LICENCE

Notice is hereby given that Société Lavilleon, 
has applied to the Central Water Authority for 
renewal a ground water licence to use ground 
water from a borehole, No 779 at Chamarel for 
Non-Domestic purposes.

Any person who wishes to object to the issue of 
the ground water licence may lodge his objection 
together with the reasons for such objection with 
the Central Water Authority within 21 days from 
the last publication of this notice.

Particulars and plans may be inspected at:

The Water Resources Unit
3rd Floor, Royal Commercial Complex Centre
St. Ignace Street
Rose Hill

Date: 07 October 2020

Société Lavilleon 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/148857)
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 9(l)(b) OF 
THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given that I, Mr Gangess Puran 
NAIDOO, Professional Land Surveyor shall at 
the request of Mr. Mahamad Nizam Moolkeea 
representing NIZAM MOOLKEEA CO LTD to 
survey a portion of land of the extent of 1055.22m2 
situate in the district of Plaines Wilhems place 
called Eau Coulee belonging to them as per 
Volume T.V 6559/38.

The said survey will start on Tuesday 15th day 
of October 2020 at 1.00 p.m and will continue on 
the following days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties are 
requested to be present at the said survey on the 
aforesaid day and hour and bring along with 
them all their title deeds, plans and whatever 
like documents concerning their properties so 
as to enable me to establish correctly the limits 
separating the aforesaid portion of land adjoining 
properties.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis this 24th day of September 
2020.

Gangess Puran Naidoo 
Professional Land Surveyor 

(Rec. No. 18/148797)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 9(l)(b) OF 
THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given that I, Mr Gangess Puran 
NAIDOO, Professional Land Surveyor shall at the 
request of Mr. Hassam Boodhun, Mr. Hassim 
Boodhun and Mr. Mamad Fhad Boodhun to 
survey three contiguous portions of land of the 
extent of eighty-two decimal seventy-five square 
meters (82.75m2), one hundred and nineteen 
decimal eighty square meters (119.80m2) & one 
hundred and fourteen square meters (114.00m2) 
respectively, situate in the district of Grand Port 
place called Plaine Magnien belonging to them as • 
per Volume T.V 4363/9.

The said survey will start on Tuesday 15th day 
of October 2020 at 9.30 a.m and will continue on 
the following days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties are 
requested to be present at the said survey on the 

aforesaid day and hour and bring along with 
them all their title deeds, plans and whatever 
like documents concerning their properties so 
as to enable me to establish correctly the limits 
separating the aforesaid portion of land adjoining 
properties.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis this 24th day of September 
2020.

Gangess Puran Naidoo 
Professional Land Surveyor 

(Rec. No. 18/148797)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 9(l)(b) OF 
THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given that I, Mr Gangess Puran 
NAIDOO, Professional Land Surveyor shall at the 
request of Mr. & Mrs. Vicash BHAYROW to 
survey a portion of land of the extent of 1090.49m2 
situate in the district of Flacq place called Mont 
Ida belonging to them as per Volume T.V 4996/21.

The said survey will start on Thursday 22nd day 
of October 2020 at 11.00 hrs and will continue on 
the following days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties are 
requested to be present at the said survey on the 
aforesaid day and hour and bring along with 
them all their title deeds, plans and whatever 
like documents concerning their properties so 
as to enable me to establish correctly the limits 
separating the aforesaid portion of land adjoining 
properties.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis this 29th day of September 
2020.

Gangess Puran Naidoo 
Professional Land Surveyor 

(Rec. No. 18/148797)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION (9)(2) AND (3) OF 
THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given that I, Kritanun 
SEEBARUTH, Sworn Land Surveyor, at the 
request of Mrs Oomawatee Mattapullut will 
survey a portion of land of an approximate extent 
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of 215 m2 situated in the district of Plaines Wilhems 
place called Candos Lane, Quatre Bornes which 
she intends to prescribe. The said survey will start 
on 31.10.2020 as from 1.30 pm and will continue 
on the following days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties are 
requested to be present at the survey on the 
aforesaid date, day and hour and to produce to me or 
to any other Land Surveyor deputed by me, in case 
of impediment, their relevant title deeds, survey 
plans and whatever like documents concerning 
their properties so as to enable me to establish 
correctly the limits separating the portion of land 
referred above from the adjoining properties.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated this 08th October 2020

Kritanun SEEBARUTH, 
Sworn Land Surveyor 

(Rec. No. 18/148874)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 9(3) OF 
THE LAND SURVEYOR’S ACT 1976 AND 

THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011

Notice is hereby given at the request of the 
Heirs of Mr. Tayub Esmael Patel represented by 
Mr. Kamil Tayub Patel that, I Nicolas d’Hotman 
de Villiers Land Surveyor, will on Wednesday 
4th of November 2020 at 9.30 am proceed with 
the survey operations and fixing of boundary 
stones of the portion of land of the extent of 
90 perches located at Bois Chéri in the district of 
Moka belonging to the above mentioned as per 
TV. 1436 No. 15.

You, the owners of the adjoining neighbours 
are therefore called upon to attend the survey 
operation on the aforesaid day, date and hour and 
to bring along with you all your title deed, plans or 
whatever like documents concerning your property 
and to produce them to me so as to allow me to 
establish correctly the limits of the said property.

Dated this 06/10/2020

Nicolas d’Hotman de Villiers
Land Surveyor 
Merestone ltd 
Eureka, Moka 

(Rec. No. 18/148821)

NOTICE UNDER THE CHILD 
PROTECTION’ACT 

COMMUNIQUE

I, Mrs Bibi Séhénaz HOSSAIN SAEB have 
made an application for the Centre d’Education et 
de Développement pour les Enfants Mauriciens 
(CEDEM) to be registered as a Place of Safety 
under the Child Protection Act, Section 21 (Place 
of Safety for the Welfare and Protection of 
Children) Regulations 2019 under the aegis of the 
Ministry of Gender Equality, Child Development 
and Family Welfare.

The Centre d’Education et de Développement 
pour les Enfants Mauriciens (CEDEM) Association 
wishes to inform the public in general that it has 
applied to set up a Place of Safety for Children in 
Distress in the locality of Vacoas.

Any objections to the above should reach the 
Permanent Secretary of the Ministry of Gender 
Equality, Child Development and Family Welfare, 
2nd Floor, Cnr Remy Ollier and Emmanuel Anquetil 
Streets, Port-Louis within 21 Days from the date 
of this publication.

Date: 1st October 2020
Centre d’Education et de Développement 

pour les Enfants Mauriciens (CEDEM)
(Rec. No. 18/148787)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the private company 
“TrueDesign Ltd” has by a Special Resolution 
of its shareholder passed on 08th September 
2020, changed its name to “Silent Resorts Ltd” 
as witnessed by a certificate delivered under the 
hand and seal of the Registrar of Companies dated 
01st October 2020.

Dated: 06th October 2020
ANTRIX CORPORATE SOLUTIONS LTD

Registered Agent 
(Rec. No. 18/148867)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Golden Foods 
Ltd has by board resolution changed its name to
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Golden Foods International Ltd, as evidenced by 
a certificate given under the seal of the office of the 
Registrar of Companies dated 05th October 2020.

Dated this 09th October 2020.

First Island Secretarial Ltd
Company Secretary

(Rec. No. 18/148875)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Plastic Industry 
(Mauritius) Ltd has by way of a special 
resolution passed on 9 September 2020 changed 
its name to PIM Limited as evidenced by a 
certificate issued by the Registrar of Companies on 
28 September 2020.

Date : 7 October 2020.

Intercontinental Secretarial 
Services Limited

Company Secretary 
(Rec. No. 18/148856)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

NOTICE is hereby given that the Company 
Reba Global Ltd has, by way of a special 
resolution changed its name to Reba Global 
PCC as evidenced by the certificate given under 
the Hand and Seal of the Registrar of Companies 
dated 24th September 2020.

Dated this 06th October 2020.

Capital Horizons Ltd 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 18/148835)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “Diabetes, 
Endocrinology and Metabolism Centre 
of (Mauritius) Ltd” has, by way of a board 
resolution passed on August 28, 2020 changed 
its name to “MACDEM (Mauritius) Centre 
for Diabetes, Endocrinology and Metabolism 
Ltd” as evidenced by a certificate given under the 

hand and seal of the Registrar of Companies on
September 3, 2020.

Dated this 2nd day of October 2020.

The Director
(Rec. No. 18/148795)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that WD Fishing Co Ltd 
having by a special resolution changed its name 
and is now incorporated under the name of Ocean 
Connect Marine Co Ltd as evidenced by a 
certificate given under the hand and seal of the 
Registrar of Companies dated 30th September 2020

This 2 October 2020.

The Company Secretary 
(Rec. No, 18/148786)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the company eQui 
Healthcare Ltd has by a special resolution passed 
on 8th September 2020 changed its name to Equi 
Telemedia Limited as evidenced by a certificate 
issued by the Registrar of Companies on the 
24th September 2020.

Dated this 2nd October 2020.
PORT LOUIS MANAGEMENT 

SERVICES LTD
Secretary 

(Rec. No. 18/148817)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the private 
company “ACCURARE DEVELOPMENT LTD” 
has, by way of a special resolution of its sole 
shareholder, changed its name to AccuraRED 
LTD as evidenced by a certificate issued under the 
hand and seal of the Registrar of Companies on 
30 September 2020.

Date: 30 September 2020.
Saeed Currimjee 

Director 
(Rec. No. 18/148819)
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Plavuma Trading 
Ltd, a Domestic Company, has by way of a 
special resolution dated 24th August 2020, change 
its name to Plamercatus Ltd, in accordance with 
Section 36(2)(c) of the Companies Act 2001.

A Certificate to that effect has been issued by 
the Registrar of Companies.

Date: 1st October 2020

Mondial Management Services Ltd 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 18/148836)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the private 
company Next Logistics & Distributions Ltd 
(File No. Cl 11085) has changed its name to 
The Next Marketing Ltd by Special Resolution 
dated 10th September 2020. The Registrar of 
Companies has confirmed the said change of name 
as per a certificate dated 23rd September 2020.

6th October 2020
Director

BRN: C12111085 
(Rec. No. 18/148829)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 309(l)(d) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given:

That SA 1 Holding Infrastructure Company 
(P) Ltd, a Category 1 Global Business Licence 
Company, having its registered office at C/o IQ 
EQ Fund Services (Mauritius) Ltd, 33, Edith 
Cavell Street, Port Louis, 11324, Mauritius is to 
be removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased business, has 
discharged in full all liabilities to all its known 
creditors, and does not have any surplus assets to 
be distributed in accordance with the Companies 
Act 2001.

That pursuant to Section 312 of the Companies Act 
2001, any objection to the removal of the Company 

shall be delivered to the Registrar of Companies 
not later than 28 days from the date of this notice. 

Dated this 23rd day of September 2020.

Arshad Goodur 
for and on behalf of 

IQ EQ Fund Services (Mauritius) Ltd 
Secretary 

(Rec. No. 18/148803)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that SKP EVERGREEN 
SPACE LTD, a domestic company and having 
its registered office at Temple Road, Amaury is 
on this 6th day of October 2020 applying to the 
Registrar of Companies to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the company 
has ceased to carry business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act is to be 
made in writing to the Registrar of Companies by 
not later than 28 days from the date of notice.

7th October 2020.

Director 
(Rec No. 18/148832)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “M. Consulting 
build as a service ltd”, a Domestic Company and 
having its registered office at 36 Impasse Lenepveu 
- Port Louis, is on this 21st day of September 2020 
applying to the Registrar of Companies to be 
removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the company 
has ceased to carry business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2001.
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Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by not later than 28 days from the date of the notice.

21st September 2020
Director 

(Rec. No. ! 8/148825)

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by not later than 28 days from the date of the notice.

1st October 2020.
Director

(Rec No: 18/148783)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “BRAIN SOFTECH, 
MAURITIUS” (Company No.: 56813 C2/GBL), 
a Category 2 Global Business Company having 
its registered office at 2nd Floor, C&R Court, 49 
Labourdonnais Street, Port Louis, Mauritius is on 
this 18th day of September 2020 applying to the 
Registrar of Companies to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors, and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by latest on the 18th October 2020.

Date: 18th of September 2020
St Lawrence Management Limited 

Secretary 
(Rec. No. 18/148842)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the company FilePro 
Limited, a Category 2 Global Business Company, 
having its registered office at Suite 122, 2nd Floor, 
Harbour Front Building, President John Kennedy 
Street, Port Louis, Mauritius is to be removed from 
the Register of Companies under Section 309( 1 )(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

That any objection to the removal under 
Section 313 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be 
delivered to the Registrar of Companies not later 
than 28 days following the date this notice has 
been published.

Dated this: 07 October 2020
Director

(Rec. No. 18/148876)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that MINARO CO. LTD 
a Domestic Company and having its registered 
office at 19, Royal Road, Cassis, Port Louis is 
on this 1st day of October 2020 applying to the 
Registrar of Companies to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the company 
has ceased to carry business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2001.

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Temporary Offices 
Limited having its registered office at Level 3, 
Alexander House, 35 Cybercity, Ebène, Mauritius 
is applying to the Registrar of Companies under 
Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies Act 2001 to 
request the Registrar to remove the Company from 
•the register.

Notice is also given that the Company has 
discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors, and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
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be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
not later than 28 days from the date of the 
publication of this notice.

Dated this 6th October 2020.

Intercontinental Trust Limited
Registered Agent

(Rec. No. 18/148853) 

be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
not later than 28 days from the date of the 
publication of this notice.

Dated this 6th October 2020.

Intercontinental Trust Limited
Registered Agent

(Rec. No. 18/148855)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Transient Solutions 
Limited having its registered office at Level 3, 
Alexander House, 35 Cybercity, Ebène, Mauritius 
is applying to the Registrar of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001 to 
request the Registrar to remove the Company from 
the register.

Notice is also given that the Company has 
discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors, and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
not later than 28 days from the date of the 
publication of this notice.

Dated this 6th October 2020.
Intercontinental Trust Limited

Registered Agent 
(Rec. No. 18/148854)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that POLYGLORY 
INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS INC. holding a 
Category 2 Global Business Licence and having 
its registered office at Level 3, Alexander House, 
35 Cybercity, Ebène, Mauritius is applying to the 
Registrar of Companies under Section 3 09( 1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001 to request the Registrar to 
remove the Company from the register.

Notice is also given that the Company has 
discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors, and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by latest 05th November 2020.

Dated this 08th October 2020.

GenPro Consulting (Mauritius) Inc
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 18/148849)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Workplace Plus 
Limited having its registered office at Level 3, 
Alexander House, 35 Cybercity, Ebène, Mauritius 
is applying to the Registrar of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001 to 
request the Registrar to remove the Company from 
the register.

Notice is also given that the Company has 
discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors, and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that THE BEST OPTION 
INTERNATIONAL LTD. holding a Category 2 
Global Business Licence and having its registered 
office at Level 3, Alexander House, 35 Cybercity, 
Ebène, Mauritius is applying to the Registrar 
of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001 to request the Registrar to 
remove the Company from the register.

Notice is also given that the Company has 
discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors, and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.
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Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by latest 05th November 2020.

Dated this 08th October 2020.

GenPro Consulting (Mauritius) Inc 
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 18/148850)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that GOLDEN STATE 
CO., LTD. holding a Category 2 Global Business 
Licence and having its registered office at Level 3, 
Alexander House, 35 Cybercity, Ebène, Mauritius 
is applying to the Registrar of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001 to 
request the Registrar to remove the Company from 
the register.

Notice is also given that the Company has 
discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors, and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by latest 05th November 2020.

Dated this 08th October 2020.

GenPro Consulting (Mauritius) Inc
Registered Agent

(Rec. No. 18/148851) 

creditors, and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by latest 05th November 2020.

Dated this 08th October 2020.

GenPro Consulting (Mauritius) Inc 
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 18/148852)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that ACATEX LTD, 
holding a domestic company business licence and 
having its registered office at La Tour Koenig, 
Industrial Estate, Pointe aux Sables, is applying to 
the registrar of Companies to be removed from the 
Registrar of Companies under Section 309(l)(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
foil its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus of assets in accordance with 
its constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection under Section 312 of the 
Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to the 
Registrar of Companies not less than 28 days from 
the date of this notice.

Dated: Wednesday, September 30 2020.
(Rec. No. 18/148846)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Sitronix Technology 
(Mauritius) Corp, holding a Category 2 Global 
Business Licence and having its registered office 
at Level 3, Alexander House, 35 Cybercity, ’ 
Ebène, Mauritius is applying to the Registrar 
of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001 to request the Registrar to 
remove the Company from the register.

Notice is also given that the Company has 
discharged in full its liabilities to all its known

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that BEE BLUE CALL 
CENTER LTD, holding a domestic company 
business licence and having its registered office at 
C/o Cays Associates 5th Floor GM Tower Broadway 
7 Maupin Street, Port Louis, is applying to the 
registrar of Companies to be removed from the 
Registrar of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
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full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus of assets in accordance with 
its constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection under Section 312 of the 
Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to the 
Registrar of Companies not less than 28 days from 
the date of this notice.

Dated: 01 October 2020
(Rec. No. 18/148847)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that 
DIACONSULT BE LTD, holding a domestic 
company business licence and having its registered 
office at C/o Cays Associates Johanna Street, Port 
Louis, is applying to the registrar of Companies to 
be removed from the Registrar of Companies under 
Section 309( l)(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus of assets in accordance with 
its constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection under Section 312 of the 
Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to the 
Registrar of Companies not less than 28 days from 
the date of this notice.

Dated: Friday, 02 October 2020.
(Rec. No. 18/148848)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

1. Notice is hereby given that the Company CSPL 
Holding Private Limited, a Global Business 
Company Category 1 having its registered office 
at C/o Citco (Mauritius) Limited, 4th Floor, Tower 
A, 1 Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius, is applying 
to the Registrar of Companies for its removal 
from the Register under Section 309(1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

2. Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged 
in full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and 

has distributed its surplus assets in accordance 
with its Constitution and the Companies 
Act 2001.

3. Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 
2001 should be delivered to the Registrar of 
Companies of this notice, not less than 28 days 
of the date of this notice.

Dated this 21st September 2020.

Company Secretary
(Rec. No. 18/148862)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

1. Notice is hereby given that the Company 
Navis Zebra Holding Private Limited, a 
Global Business Company Category 1 having 
its registered office at C/o Citco (Mauritius) 
Limited, 4th Floor, Tower A, 1 Cybercity, 
Ebene, Mauritius, is applying to the Registrar 
of Companies for its removal from the Register 
under Section 309(l)(d) of the Companies 
Act 2001.

2. Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged 
in full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and 
has distributed its surplus assets in accordance 
with its Constitution and the Companies 
Act 2001.

3. Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 
2001 should be delivered to the Registrar of 
Companies of this notice, not less than 28 days 
of the date of this notice .

Dated this 21st September 2020.

Company Secretary 
(Rec. No. 18/148862)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Mayfair Holdings 
Limited [the “Company”], licensed as an 
authorised company, having its registered office at 
Venture Corporate Services (Mauritius) Limited, 
Level 3, Tower 1, Nexteracom Towers, Cybercity, 
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Ebene, Mauritius, is applying to be removed from 
the Register of the Registrar of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

The Company has conducted no business to date 
and has no outstanding liabilities or obligations.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under section 313 of the Companies Act 2001 shall 
be delivered to the Registrar of Companies within 
28 days of the date of this notice.

Dated this: 08 October 2020

Venture Corporate Services 
(Mauritius) Limited 

Registered Agent 
(Rec. No. 18/148864)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

(‘the Act’)

Notice is hereby given that Bay Capital 
Partners I Ltd (the “Company”), having its 
registered office at C/o Apex Fund Services 
(Mauritius) Ltd, 4th Floor, 19 Bank Street, 
Cybercity, Ebene 72201, Mauritius, is applying to 
be removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(l)(d) of the Act.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its constitution and 
the Act.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Act is to be made in 
writing to the Registrar of Companies by latest on 
6 November 2020.

Dated: 6 October 2020

Secretary 
(Rec. No. 18/148865)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

TROPICAL NATURE CO. LIMITED

Notice is hereby given that Tropical Nature Co. 
Limited, a domestic company, having its Registered 
Office at 39, Blondeau Street, Rose-Hill, is to be 

removed from the Register of Companies under the 
Section 309(1 )(d)(i) of the Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with its constitution and the Companies 
Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 
312 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be made 
to the Registrar of Companies not later than 
28 days from the date of the notice by latest by 
7th November 2020.
(Rec. No. 18/148872)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

SARVODAYA CO LTD

Notice is hereby given that Sarvodaya Co Ltd, 
a domestic company, having its Registered Office 
at Old Mill, More Swan, Pereybere, Grand Baie 
is to be removed from the Register of Companies 
under the Section 309(1 )(d)(i) of the Companies 
Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with its constitution and the Companies 
Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 
312 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be made 
to the Registrar of Companies not later than 
28 days from the date of the notice by latest by 
7th November 2020.
(Rec. No. 18/148873)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that 
“SHA-NUSH TRADING CO LTD”, a domestic 
company, having its registered office at Beach Lane 
Pereybere, Mauritius, is to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(9)(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001, herein called “The Act”.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
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full its liabilities, to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
Constitution and the Companies.

Any objections under Section 312 of the 
Companies Act, shall be delivered to the Registrar 
of Companies within 28 days from the date of 
this notice.

2nd October 2020.
Oozeer Hassen 

Director 
(Rec. No. 18/148788)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that JOZI LOGISTICS 
LIMITED, a domestic company, having its 
registered office at Unit 10,2nd Floor, Palm Square, 
Tamarin, Mauritius is to be removed from the 
register of companies under section 309(1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

That any objection to the removal under 
section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be 
delivered to the Registrar of Companies within 
28 days from the date of this notice.

Dated this 1st October 2020.
N A Dann

Company Secretary 
(Rec. No. 18/148816)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Sasfin (Mauritius) 
Limited, a Domestic Company, having its 
registered office at 760A(l), 7th Floor, Dias Pier, 
Le Caudan Waterfront, Port Louis, Mauritius is to 
be removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business has discharged all its debts and liabilities 
in full and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with its Constitution and the Companies 
Act 2001.

That any objection to the removal under 
Section 313 of the Companies’Act 2001 shall be 
made to the Registrar of Companies not later than 
28 days from the date of this Notice.

Dated this 28th day of September 2020.
Director 

(Rec. No. 18/148792)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Lurdington 
Holding Ltd, a company incorporated in the 
Republic of Mauritius with Company No. 50150 
Cl/GBL and having its Registered Office at 
12th Floor, Standard Chartered Tower, 19, Bank 
Street, Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius, is applying to 
the Registrar of Companies to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(l)(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with its 
constitution and the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 and 313 of the Companies Act 
2001 is to be made in writing to the Registrar of 
Companies not later than 28 days from the date of 
this notice.

Dated this 5th day of October 2020.

Curatus Trust Company (Mauritius) Limited
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 18/148818)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that CREDENCE 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED, a 
Domestic Company, having its registered office 
address at Eversheds (Mauritius) Ltd, Suite 310 
3rd Floor, Barkly Wharf Le Caudan Waterfront, 
Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius, is to be 
removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its 
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known creditors, and has distributed all its surplus 
assets in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 313 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to 
the Registrar of Companies not less than 28 days 
from the date of this notice.

Dated this 30th September 2020.

Director
(Rec. No. 18/148805) 

has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with 
the Companies Act 2001.

We further declare that the Company has no 
charge holder.

Dated this 29th day of September 2020.

Marie Agnes BOY 
Abdullah Aly Mohammad ALLADEE

(Rec. No. 18/148868)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “Corton Ltd” is a 
Global Business Company Category 1 having its 
Registered Office at Suite 1909,19th Floor, Citadelle 
Mall, Dr Eugene Laurent Street, Port Louis, 
Mauritius, is to be removed from the Register 
of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 312 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to 
the Registrar of Companies not later than 28 days 
from the date of this notice.

Dated this 06th day of October 2020.

Aurisse International Ltd
Company Secretary 

(Rec No. 18/148826)

NOTICE UNDER THE COMPANIES ACT 2001 

Trianon Holdings Ltd
Trianon, Quatre Bornes, Mauritius 

DECLARATION OF DIRECTOR

We, the undersigned being the directors 
of Trianon Holdings Ltd (the “Company”) 
hereby declare having taken cognizance of the 
intention of the sole shareholder of the Company 
to request the Registrar of Companies that the 
Company be removed from the register under 
Section 309( 1 ) (d) on the grounds that the Company

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

Maxbram Co Ltd of Vel Industrial Complex, 
Mapou Leclézio, Goodlands has applied to the 
Director General of the Mauritius Revenue 
Authority for the issue of a new licence of Dealer 
in Liquor and Alcoholic Products - Wholesale in 
respect of premises situated at Vel Industrial 
Complex, Mapou Leclézio, Goodlands.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Maxbram Co Ltd
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/148798)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mrs Marie Anne Arokium of 72 Royal Road, 
Belle-Rose have applied to the Director General of 
the Mauritius Revenue Authority for the issue of 
a new licence of Retailer of Liquor and Alcoholic 
Products off in respect of premises situated at 
124, Raymond Rivet Street, Mont Roche.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Mrs Marie Anne Arokium
Applicant

(Rec. No. 18/148814)
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APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

Skypink Company Ltd of Camp Le Juge, 
Forest Side, Curepipe have applied to the Director 
General of the Mauritius Revenue Authority for 
the issue of a new licence of Retailer of Liquor and 
Alcoholic Products - Off in respect of premises 
situated at Edgard Hughes Street, Curepipe.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Skypink Company Ltd 
Applicant

(Rec. No. 18/148869)
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BANK OF BARODA - MAURITIUS BRANCHES (INCLUDING OFFSHORE BANKING UNIT)
6

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Bank of Baroda - Mauritius Branches (Including offshore Banking Unit)

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bank of Baroda - Mauritius Branches (including offshore Banking 
Unit) (the “Bank”), on pages 7 to 97 which comprise the statement of financial position as at March 31, 2020, 
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement 
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section 
of our report, the accompanying financial statements on pages 7 to 97 give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Bank as at March 31,2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards in compliance with the requirements of 
the Companies Act 2001, Banking Act 2004 and Financial Reporting Act 2004.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Other reserves include an amount of Rs.398m as at March 31, 2020 (2019: Rs.232m) representing translation 
reserves, for which we were unable to obtain satisfactory explanation on the existence and accuracy thereof. 
Corresponding monetary items on which the translation reserves movements arose could not be obtained and 
reconciled with the respective accounting entries to substantiate the movements in translation reserves for the 
year under review and preceding years. As at March 31,2019, an amount of Rs. 148m representing other assets 
was included in other reserves, out of which Rs. 133m has been reversed through translation reserves for the 
year ended March 31, 2020.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Mauritius, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and IESBA Code. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we 
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

BOO & Co, a firm of Chartered Accountants in Mauritius, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the international BOO 
network of independent member firms.

BDO is the brand name for the BDO network and for each of the BDO Member Firms.

http://www.bdo.mu
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6(a) 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D)
To the Shareholders of Bank of Baroda - Mauritius Branches (Including offshore Banking Unit)

1. Loans and advances

Key Audit Matter

As at March 31, 2020, the Bank had gross loans and advances portfolio amounting to Rs.9,195m, representing 
41% of the Bank’s total assets. These loans are measured at amortised-costs under IFRS 9, less an allowance for 
the expected credit loss, which amounts to Rs.671m at reporting date.

IFRS 9 requires the Bank to recognise expected credit losses (ECL) on financial instruments which involves 
significant judgement and estimates to be made by the Bank. The determination of ECL on loans and advances 
which are not credit impaired involves the highest level of management judgement, thus requiring greater audit 
attention. Specific areas of judgement and estimation uncertainty include:

• Identification of significant increase in credit risk (SICR), and in particular the selection of criteria to 
identify a SICR. These criteria are highly judgemental and can materially impact the ECL recognised for 
certain portfolios where the life of the facilities is greater than 12 months;

• Complexity of the ECL model involving a number of critical assumptions in the determination of 
probabilities of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) and Exposure at default (EAD).

• Use of forward-looking information to determine the likelihood of future losses being incurred.
• Qualitative adjustments made to model driven ECL results raised to address model limitations, emerging 

risks and trends in underlying portfolios which are inherently judgemental.
• Accuracy and adequacy of the financial statement disclosures.

Loans and advances are considered to be credit impaired in accordance with IFRS 9 when one or more events that 
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Failure to 
recognise adequate allowance for credit impairment can result in a potential overstatement of the loans and 
advances balance in the financial statements. Identification of credit-impaired facilities (i.e. those classified in 
Stage 3) and determination of the expected credit losses thereon involves significant judgement, estimates and 
assumptions regarding (i) determination of whether a facility is credit impaired and (ii) in estimating the forecasted 
cash flows the Bank expects to receive from the obligors. This includes an estimate of what the Bank can realise 
from the collaterals it holds as security on the impaired facilities.

Given the inherent risk associated and the nature of the business and size of the loans and advances, we deemed 
the valuation of loans and advances as well as the expected credit loss allowance a key audit matter.

Related Disclosures

Refer to note 7 and note 2.3 (accounting policies) and note 3(b), 3(c) (financial risks) of the accompanying financial 
statements.
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6(b) 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D)
To the Shareholders of Bank of Baroda - Mauritius Branches (Including offshore Banking Unit)

1. Loans and advances (cont’d)

Audit Response

We assessed and tested the design and operating effectiveness of key controls over loans and advances as well 
as the estimated expected credit loss allowance associated with non-performing accounts (NPA). In relation to 
impairment, careful audit consideration was given to specific impairment calculations and collateral valuation. 
For stage 1 and stage 2 loans, we assessed the appropriateness of the model used including the inputs and 
assumptions by performing the following procedures:
• Reviewing the methodology adopted by the Bank for calculation of ECL and the segmentation of loans in 

appropriate portfolios reflecting different risk factors. Our review also included an assessment of the design 
of the models used for determination of PD, LGD and EAD for different types of loans including inter-alia 
term loans, overdraft facilities, guarantees and other off-balance sheet exposures.

• Assessed the adequacy and quality of the data used for the calculation of PD, LGD and EAD;
• Reviewed the criteria for staging of credit exposures and ensure these are in line with the requirements of 

IFRS 9 including any backstops used in the methodology;
• Reviewed the minutes of Asset and Liability Management Committee and ensure proper classification to 

Stage 2 is made for all clients on watchlist;
• Tested the accuracy and completeness of the ECL model by reperformance;
• Assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of disclosures for compliance with the accounting standards.

For stage 3 loans, we have tested the list of all credit impaired loans identified by management by performing 
the following procedures

We obtained and tested loan arrears reports and ensured all that arrears exceeding 90 days past due were 
included in the NPA category for specific impairment assessment;
We reviewed and challenged management in respect of the extent of provision made on impairment 
accounts and ensured impairment allowance booked was in accordance with IFRS and the guidelines of the 
Bank of Mauritius.

2. Financial Reporting close process and opening balances

Key Audit Matter

We were appointed auditors on February 12, 2020. We have not been able to perform review of previous 
auditor’s file in line with ISA 510, Initial Audit Engagements - Opening balances. Opening balances are 
significant and dependent on nature of events in prior years. We performed substantive audit procedures to 
ensure the opening balances are fairly stated. We came across several differences in opening balances which 
did not reconcile to the audited accounts and we were not able to validate completeness and accuracy of opening 
balances and to satisfy ourselves by alternative means as provided by management. We were unable to 
determine whether any other adjustments, other than those put through during the year under review, might have 
been necessary in respect of reported opening balances or corresponding presentation in notes to the financial 
statements. The Bank did not have a proper organisational structure in place for the finance department, resulting 
in the absence of effective internal control and four eyes principle, and poor communication to those charged 
with governance in the closure of books at reporting date.
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6(c)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D)
To the Shareholders of Bank of Baroda - Mauritius Branches (Including offshore Banking Unit)

2. Financial Reporting close process and opening balances (eont’d)

Audit Response

Several audit adjustments have been put through in the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2020 as 
well as restatement of prior year figures We discussed with management and requested representation of same.

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information 
included in the Management Discussion Analysis Report but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Corporate Governance Report
Our responsibility under the Financial Reporting Act is to report on the compliance with the Code of Corporate 
Governance disclosed in the annual report and assess the explanations given for non-compliance with any 
requirement of the Code. From our assessment of the disclosures made on corporate governance in the annual 
report, the public interest entity has, pursuant to section 75 of the Financial Reporting Act, complied with the 
requirements of the Code.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the Companies 
Act 200, Banking Act 2004 and Financial Reporting Act 2004, and for such internal control as the directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or have no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.
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6(d)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D)
To the Shareholders of Bank of Baroda - Mauritius Branches (Including offshore Banking Unit)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Bank’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by Directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that 
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of 
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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6(e)
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONT’D)
To the Shareholders of Bank of Baroda - Mauritius Branches (Including offshore Banking Unit)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Companies Act 2001
We have no relationship with, or interests in, the Bank, other than in our capacity as auditors and dealings in 
the ordinary course of business.

We have obtained all information and explanations we have required except for the matters described in the 
Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Bank as far as it appears from our examination 
of those records except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report.

Banking Act 2004
In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with the preceding years and 
are complete and fair and comply with the Banking Act 2004 and the regulations and guidelines of the Bank of 
Mauritius except for matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report.

The explanations or information called for or given to us by the officers or agents of the Bank were satisfactory 
except for the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report.

Other Matter

This report is made solely to the shareholders of Bank of Baroda - Mauritius Branches (including offshore 
Banking Unit) (the “Bank”), as a body, in accordance with Section 205 of the Companies Act 2001. Our audit 
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Bank's shareholders those matters we are required to 
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not 
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Bank and the Bank's shareholders as a body, for our 
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

BDO & Co
Chartered Accountants

Port Louis, 
Mauritius.

September 28,2020

Ameenah Ramdin FCCA, ACA 
Licensed by FRC
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BANK OF BARODA - MAURITIUS BRANCHES (INCLUDING OFFSHORE BANKING UNIT)
7 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT MARCH 31,2020

ASSETS

Notes 2020 2019 2018
Rs'000 Rs'000 

Restated
Rs'000 

Restated

Cash and cash equivalents 5 4,615,444 8,814,508 6,945,962
Placements with banks 6 4,413,084 1,748,525 -
Loans and advances to customers 7 8,524,209 9,055,358 7,811,743
Investment securities 8 2,212,672 1,157,006 1,879,386
Investment property 9 32,000 32,000 32,000
Property and equipment 10 116,842 124,048 131,121
Right of use assets 10A 30,618 - -
Intangible asset 11 2,027 - -
Deferred tax assets 12 7,554 20,139 20,729
Other assets 13 599,142 626,670 705,863
Total assets 20,553,592 21,578,254 17,526,804

LIABILITIES
Deposits 14 12,712,944 9,003,670 10,334,113
Other borrowed funds 15 5,625,556 10,768,226 5,731,117
Current tax liabilities 16 3,114 23,657 12,587
Lease liabilities 10B 32,216 - -
Other liabilities 17 45,769 29,593 33,080
Retirement benefit obligations 18 16,642 16,722 14,749
Total liabilities 18,436,241 19,841,868 16,125,646

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on:

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Assigned capital 19 400,571 300,285 200,860
Retained earnings 928,095 843,088 689,019
Other reserves 19 788,685 593,013 511,279
Total equity 2,117351 1,736,386 1,401,158

Total equity and liabilities 20,553,592 21,578,254 17,526,804

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Guarantees, letters of credit 512,251 501,105 407,927
Others 655,737 23,406 12,215

20 1,167,988 524,511 420,142

(Alok Kumar) 
Assistant General Manager

(Ritesh Kumar) 
Vice President 

Mauritius Operations

(Hitesh Vyas) 
Senior Manager 

IT and Operations

The notes on pages 12 to 97 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditor's report on pages 6 to 6(e).
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BANK OF BARODA - MAURITIUS BRANCHES (INCLUDING OFFSHORE BANKING UNIT)
8

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2020

Notes 2020 2019 2018
Rs’000 Rs’000 Rs'000

Restated Restated
Interest income 21 649,162 656,164 402,205
Interest expense 22 (344,414) (303,330) (205,179)
Net interest income 304,748 352,834 197,026

Net fees and commission income 23 14,779 14,497 12,251

Net trading income 24 52,915 50,027 41,800
Other income 53,864 8,867 7,570

106,779 58,894 49,370

Operating income 426,306 426,225 258,647

Allowance for credit impairment losses 25 (56,270) 1,958 (88,667)
Net operating income 370,036 428,183 169,980

Personnel expenses 26 (52,163) (48,007) (44,701)
Depreciation of property and equipment 10 (9,070) (10,806) (9,134)
Depreciation of right use assets 10A (5,210) - -
Other expenses 27  (56,635) (49,309) (50,336)
Total operating expenses (123,078) (108,122) (104,171)

Profit before taxation 246,958 320,061 65,809
Income tax expense 16 (32,723) (25,589) (15,539)
Profit for the year 214,235 294,472 50,270

Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Revaluation of property and equipment 10 - - 10,354

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
GainsZ(losses) on foreign exchange rates 166,729 40,756 (56,895)

Other comprehensive income for year, net of tax 166,729 40,756 (46,541)

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax __ 380,964 335,228 3,729

The notes on pages 12 to 97 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditor's report on pages 6 to 6(e).
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2020
9

Note
Assigned 
capital

Statutory 
reserve

Revaluation 
reserve

Capital
reserve

Translation 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Total 
equity

Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000 Rs'000

At April 1,2017
As previously stated 200,860 201,177 101,351 7,559 247,733 653,687 1,412,367
Effect of prior year adjustments 32 - - - - - (14,938) (14,938)
As restated 200,860 201,177 101,351 7,559 247,733 638,749 1,397,429

Profit for the year - - 50,270 50,270
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 10,354 - (56,895) - (46,541)
Total comprehensive income for the year » - 10,354 - (56,895) 50,270 3,729

At March 31,2018 200,860 201,177 111,705 7,559 190,838 689,019 1,401,158

At April 1,2018
As previously stated 200,860 201,177 111,705 7,559 190,838 699,664 1,411,803
Effect of prior year adjustments 32 - - - - - (10,645) (10,645)
As restated 200,860 201,177 111,705 7,559 190,838 689,019 1,401,158

Profit for the year - a. 294,472 294,472
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - 40,756 - 40,756
Total comprehensive income for the year - - ~ - 40,756 294,472 335,228

Depreciation transfer for buildings - (3,192) 3,192 w
Appropriation from retained earnings 99,425 - - - - (99,425) -
Transfer to statutory reserve - 44,170 - - - (44,170) -
At March 31,2019 300,285 245,347 108,513 7,559 231,594 843,088 1,736,386

The notes on pages 12 to 97 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
Auditor's report on pages 6 to 6(e).
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BANK OF BARODA - MAURITIUS BRANCHES (INCLUDING OFFSHORE BANKING UNIT)
10

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2020

At April 1,2019
As previously stated
Effect of prior year adjustments

Note
Assigned 

capital
Statutory

reserve
Revaluation 

reserve
Capital 
reserve

Translation 
reserve

Retained 
earnings

Total 
equity

32

Rs'000

300,285

Rs'000

201,177
44,170

Rs'000

108,513

Rs'000

7,559

Rs'000

367,760
(136,166)

Rs'000

892,110
(49,021)

Rs'000

1,877,404
(141,017)

As restated 300,285 245,347 108,513 7,559 231,594 843,089 1,736,387

Profit for the year - - - - 214,235 214335
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 166,729 - 166,729
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 166,729 214335 380,964

Depreciation transfer for buildings - (3,192) - 3,192 -
Appropriation from retained earnings 100,286 » - - - (100,286) -
Transfer to statutory reserve 32,135 - - (32,135) -
At March 31,2020 400,571 277,482 105,321 7,559 398323 928,095 2,117351

The notes on pages 12 to 97 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
Auditor's report on pages 6 to 6(e).
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Operating activities
Profit before taxation

Notes 2020 2019 2018
Rs'000

246,958

Rs'000
Restated

320,061

Rs'000
Restated

65,809

Adjustments for:
Net allowance for credit impairment 20 56,656 9,919 88,667
Depreciation on property and equipment 10 9,070 10,812 9,134
(Profit)/loss on disposal of plant and equipment (1,266) 351 (104)
Retirement benefit obligations 18 (361) 1,893 58
Gain on fair value of investment property - (868)
Depreciation of right of use of assets 10A 5,210 -
Write off of property and equipment 10 78 -
Profit on disposal of financial assets 10B (32,677) -
Interest expense on lease liabilities 2,736 -
Exchange difference (52,914) 24,956 19,951

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in other assets 27,528 (641,152) (607,035)
Increase in other liabilities 16,181 24,761 56,354
(Decrease)/increase in placements (2,650,101) (2,261,997) 3,698,804
Increase/(decrease) in loan and advances 428,465 (1,299,848) 218,191
Increase/(decrease) in deposits from customers 3,709,275 (1,326,497) (2,796,949)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) operations 1,764,838 (5,136,741) 752,012

Tax paid 16 (41,235) (14,122) (16,180)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 1,723,603 (5,150,863) 735,832

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property and equipment 10 (2,482) (4,042) (7,965)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1,825 660 138
Acquisition of intangible assets (2,028) - -
Purchase of investment securities (2,117,603) (2,606,500) (6,424,800)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of investment securities 1,629,344 5,447,319 7,723,583
Net cash (used in) / from investing activities (490,944) 2,837,437 1,290,956

Cash flows from financing activities
Net change in borrowings with banks 3,776,912 (995,248) (4,702,621)
Principal paid on lease liability (3,612) - -
Interest paid on lease liability (2,736) - -
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 3,770,564 (995,248) (4,702,621)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,003,223 (3,308,674) (2,675,833)

Movement in cash and cash equivalents
At April 1, (1,006,944) 2,152,874 4,917,720
Increase/(decrease) 5,003,223 (3,308,674) (2,675,833)
Net foreign exchange difference (282,704) 148,856 (89,013)
At March 31, 5 3,713,575 (1,006,944) 2,152,874

The notes on pages 12 to 97 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Auditor's report on pages 6 to 6(e).

(Rec. No. 18/148813)
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SPICE FINANCE LTD
SUMMARY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT JUNE 30, 2020

June 30, June 30, June 30,
2020 2019 2018
Rs. Rs. Rs.

ASSETS

Balances with banks and cash in hand 405,658,808 452,246,619 130,247,548

Investments
Investment securities - 24,923,461 225,174,706
Net investment in finance leases 2,618,673,099 2,428,182,713 2,381,082,640

2,618,673,099 2,453,106,174 2,606,257,346

Others
Intangible assets 3,615,790 3,140,767 181,615
Equipment 570,412,837 643,504,119 709,972,098
Other assets 24,685,857 28,086,097 267,883,604

598,714,484 674,730,983 978,037,317

Total assets 3,623,046,391 3,580,083,776 3,714,542,211

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Deposits
Personal 1,617,778,803 1,504,077,744 1,456,322,255
Business 1,395,094,276 1,491,575,834 1,752,853,484

3,012,873,079 2,995,653,578 3,209,175,739

Other liabilities
Other liabilities 195,894,076 166,250,966 136,506,568
Interest-bearing loans 1,156,575 2,959,439 9,351,578
Employee benefit obligations 1,498,879 - -
Income tax payable 7,645,567 6,435,165 3,745,894
Deferred income tax liabilities 15,477,916 20,591,932 22,543,781

221,673,013 196,237,502 172,147,821
Equity
Issued capital 200,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000
Retained earnings 62,650,157 72,711,527 87,240,135
Other reserves 125,850,142 115,481,169 45,978,516

388,500,299 388,192,696 333,218,651

Total liabilities and equity 3,623,046,391 3,580,083,776 3,714,542,211
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SPICE FINANCE LTD
SUMMARY STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

June 30, 
2020

June 30,
2019

June 30,
2018

Rs. Rs. Rs.

Interest and similar income 223,490,363 212,079,032 212,295,872

Interest and similar expense (139,961,268) (140,961,813) (152,265,382)

Net interest income 83,529,095 71,117,219 60,030,490

Loss on sale of repossessed assets classified as finance lease (926,928) (11,492,315) (14,993,425)
Allowance for impairment losses on finance leases (9,142,323) 6,154,179 (4,619,389)

73,459,844 65,779,083 40,417,676

Other operating income 200,963,988 227,820,186 227,187,492
Loss on sale of repossessed assets classified as operating lease (1,594,844) (3,889,655) (2,551,477)
Allowance for impairment losses for assets under operating lease (10,313,642) 6,962,741 (3,610,774)

Net interest and other income 262,515,346 296,672,355 261,442,917

Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment for leasing

(801,477) (106,794) (106,794)

operations (137,595,947) (164,345,012) (158,825,418)
Administrative expenses (62,012,444) (60,852,544) (63,843,127)
Net Impairment losses on financial assets 35,360 (59,856) -

Non-interest expenses (200,374,508) (225,364,206) (222,775,339)

Profit before income tax 62,140,838 71,308,149 38,667,578

Income tax expense (11,833,235) (10,713,807) (5,242,739)

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 50,307,603 60,594,342 33,424,839

Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share 2.52 3.03 1.67
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SPICE FINANCE LTD
SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Issued 
capital

Retained
earnings

Other 
reserves

Total 
equity

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Balance as at July 01, 2017 200,000,000 58,829,022 40,964,790 299,793,812

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - 33,424,839 - 33,424,839

Transfer to statutory reserve - (5,013,726) 5,013,726 -

Balance as at June 30, 2018 200,000,000 87,240,135 45,978,516 333,218,651

Effect of new accounting standard IFRS 9 - (5,620,297) - (5,620,297)

Balance as at July 01, 2018 200,000,000 81,619,838 45,978,516 327,598,354

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - 60,594,342 - 60,594,342

Transfer to statutory reserve - (9,089,151) 9,089,151 -

Transfer to general reserve - (60,413,502) 60,413,502 -

Balance as at June 30,2019 200,000,000 72,711,527 115,481,169 388,192,696
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - 50,307,603 - 50,307,603
Transfer to statutory reserve - (7,546,140) 7,546,140 -
Transfer to general reserve - (2,822,833) 2,822,833 -
Transaction with owner of the Company:

Dividends - (50,000,000) - (50,000,000)
Balance as at June 30, 2020 200,000,000 62,650,157 125,850,142 388,500,299

The financial statements from which these summary financial statements are derived from, have been approved for issue by 
the Board of Directors on October 01, 2020.

Mr. Gilbert A P 
Director

Mr. Shankar O OCHIT 
Director

Mr. Vikash R TULSIDAS 
Chief Executive Officer

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MUR ’000

- Profit After Tax: 50,308
- Total Deposits: 3,012,873
- Total Finance Lease: 2,618,673

Comments:
SPICE Finance Ltd announces herewith its audited results for the year ended June 30, 2020. The Company ended the year with 
a Profit After Tax of MUR 50.3m, a decrease of 17% over last year. Total assets increased from MUR 3,580.1m to MUR 3,623m 
representing an increase of 1.2% over last year while the deposit portfolio increased by 0.57% from MUR 2,995.7m in 2019 to 
MUR 3,012.9m in 2020. The finance lease book increased by 7.8% from MUR 2,428.2m in 2019 to Rs 2,618.7m in 2020.

Note 1:
The accompanying summary financial statements, without reference to the detailed notes, are derived from the audited 
financial statements of SPICE Finance Ltd (the "Company") for the year ended June 30, 2020. These audited financial 
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in compliance with 
the Mauritian Companies Act 2001, the Mauritian Banking Act 2004 and guidelines issued by the Bank of Mauritius, are 
available from the regulatory authorities and can be viewed on our website: www.spicefinance.mu.

The summary financial statements comprise the summary statement of financial position at 30 June 2020 and the summary 
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2020, as presented in the 
audited financial statements for that period without reference to the detailed notes.

Note 2:
The Board of Directors of SPICE Finance Ltd accepts full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this 
communiqué.

http://www.spicefinance.mu
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SPICE FINANCE LTD
SUMMARY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax

June 30, 
2020

June 30,
2019

June 30,
2018

Rs.
62,140,838

Rs.
71,308,149

Rs.
38,667,578

Adjustment for:
Non cash-items:
Depreciation of equipment 137,595,947 164,345,012 158,825,418
Interest income (223,490,363) (212,079,032) (212,295,872)
Interest expense 139,961,268 140,961,813 152,265,382
Amortisation of intangible assets 801,477 106,794 106,794
Profit on disposal of equipment (6,780,998) (10,935,153) (9,314,950)
Allowance for impairment losses on finance lease 9,142,323 (6,154,179) 4,619,389
Allowance for impairment losses for assets under operating lease 10,313,642 (6,962,741) 3,610,774
Net Impairment losses on financial assets (35,360) 59,856 -

_ 67,507,936 _ 69,342,370 97,816,935

Change in operating assets
Net investment in finance leases (193,519,451) (43,001,212) (166,848,833)
Other assets (6,913,826) 243,991,403 (56,254,762)
Interest received 217,462,535 211,504,568 209,534,938

17,029,258 412,494,759 (13,568,657)
Change in operating liabilities
Deposits 8,787,660 (225,510,076) 164,139,651
Liabilities 22,773,208 29,744,398 (64,958,738)
Retirement benefit obligation 1,498,879 - -
Interest paid (131,529,426) (128,973,897) (118,712,785)
Income tax paid (13,866,949) (8,825,240) (2,760,475)

(112,336,628) (333,564,815) (22,292,347)

Net cash from operating activities 34,341,404 219,580,463 100,623,509

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from disposal of equipment 75,842,658 111,096,908 79,019,030
Acquisition of intangible assets (1,276,500) (3,065,946) -
Acquisition of assets under operating leases (133,107,865) (191,655,837) (218,775,188)
Acquisition of equipment (458,460) (6,382,951) (1,586,880)
Net cash used in investing activities (59,000,167) (90,007,826) (141,343,038)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from interest-bearing loans - 2,431,244
Repayment of interest-bearing loans (1,802,864) (6,392,139) (15,417,738)
Dividend paid (45,000,000)

Net cash used in financing activities ___ (46,802^864)___ (6,392,139) (12,986,494)

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents (71,461,627) 123,180,498 (53,706,023)

Effect of impairment loss on cash and cash equivalents 35,784 (238,690)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ‘ 477,084,651 354,142,843 407,848,866
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 405,658,808 477,084,651 354,142,843

Cash and cash equivalents are made up of:
Balances with banks and cash in hand 405,658,808 452,246,619 130,247,548
Investment securities 24,838,032 223,895,295

405,658,808 477,084,651 354,142,843
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholder of
SPICE Finance Ltd

Report on the Summary Financial Statements

Our Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying summary financial statements of SPICE Finance Ltd (the “Company”) are 
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements, on the basis described in note 1.

The summary financial statements

The Company's summary financial statements derived from the audited financial statements for the year ended June 
30, 2020 comprise:
• the summary statement of financial position as at June 30, 2020;
• the summary statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
• the summary statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
• the summary statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
• the related notes to the summary financial statements.

The summary financial statements do not contain all the disclosures required by International Financial Reporting 
Standards. Reading the summary financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon, therefore, is not a substitute 
for reading the audited financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon.

The audited financial statements and our audit report thereon

We expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the audited financial statements in our report dated October 01,2020. 
That report also includes the communication of key audit matters. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our 
professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the audited financial statements of the current 
period.

Responsibilities of the directors for the summary financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the summary financial statements on the basis described in note 
1.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the summary financial statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on whether the summary financial statements are consistent, in all 
material respects, with the audited financial statements based on our procedures, which were conducted in 
accordance with International Standard on Auditing 810 (Revised), ‘Engagements to Report on Summary Financial 
Statements’.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company's shareholder in accordance with 
Section 34(6)(b)(ii) of the Mauritian Banking Act 2004 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, 
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into 
whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Michael Ho Wan Kau, licensed by FRC

(Rec. No. 18/148820)



3834 The Mauritius Government Gazette

MAU
BANK Le partenaire de votre progrès!

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of MauBank Ltd

Report on the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of MauBank Ltd (the “Bank” or the “Public Interest Entity”) and its 
subsidiary (collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 29 to 143, which comprise the consolidated and separate statements of financial position 
as at 30 June 2020, and the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated and separate 
statements of changes in equity and consolidated and separate statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated 
and separate financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group 
and the Bank as at 30 June 2020, and of their consolidated and separate financial performance and consolidated and separate cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), and comply with the requirements of the Mauritius 
Companies Act 2001 and the Financial Reporting Act 2004.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for Audit of the consolidated and separate financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group and the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated and separate 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matters 
noted below relate to the consolidated and separate financial statements.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Provision for expected credit losses

Management determines the allowances for Expected Credit Losses (‘ECL’) 
on financial instruments as required under IFRS 9 and has made significant 
judgement and estimates. The key areas where we identified greater levels of 
management judgements and estimates and therefore increased levels of audit 
focus in the implementation of IFRS 9 are:

• Model estimations - Statistical modelling is used to estimate ECLs which 
involves determining Probabilities of Default (‘PD’), Loss Given Default (‘LGD’), 
and Exposures at Default (‘EAD’). The PD and LGD models used in the loans 
portfolios are the key drivers of the ECL results and are therefore the most 
significant areas of judgements and estimates used in the ECL modelling 
approach.
• Macro-Economic Forecasts - IFRS 9 requires to measure ECLs on a 
forward-looking basis using the most appropriate macro- economic forecasts. 
The macro-economic forecasts are estimates of future economic conditions.
• Qualitative adjustments - Adjustments to the model-driven ECL results 
are raised by management to address known impairment model limitations 
or emerging trends. Such adjustments are inherently uncertain and significant 
management judgement is involved in estimating these amounts.

The effect of these matters is that, as part of our risk assessment, we 
determined that the ECL on loans and advances to customers has a high 
degree of estimation uncertainty. The credit risk section of the financial 
statements disclose the sensitivities estimated by the Bank. Also refer note 4 
of the financial statements.

Our procedures included the following amongst others:

• Evaluating the appropriateness of the impairment methodologies applied 
by the Bank under the requirements of IFRS 9;

• Testing the design and operating effectiveness of the key controls over 
the completeness and accuracy of the key inputs and assumptions into 
the IFRS 9 impairment models;

• Using specialist team for assessing:
a) the appropriateness of the macro- economic forecasts used;
b) the appropriateness of PD, LGD and EAD used in the ECL calculation;
c) the reasonableness of the model predictions by comparing them against 

actual results;
d) key data sources and assumptions including economic forecasts, PD,

• LGD assumptions and qualitative adjustments impacting ECL 
calculations;

e) the completeness and accuracy of data used for ECL calculation 
through sample testing;

We found the judgments and assumptions used in determining the expected 
credit loss to be reasonable and appropriate.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of MauBank Ltd

The Mauritius Companies Act 2001

In accordance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, we report as follows:

• we have no relationship with, or interest in, the Bank and its subsidiaries other than in our capacity as auditor;
• we have obtained all information and explanations that we have required; and
• in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Bank as far as appears from our examination of those records.

The Banking Act 2004

• In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year 
and are complete, fair and properly drawn up and comply with the provisions of the Banking Act 2004 and the regulations and guidelines 
issued by Bank of Mauritius in relation to banks; and

. the explanations or information called for or given to us by the officers or agents of the Bank were satisfactory.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Corporate Information, Directors’ Report, Statement 
of Management’s Responsibility for Financial Reporting, Report from the Secretary, Management Discussion and Analysis and Administrative 
Information, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor's report. The other information does not include the consolidated and separate 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Corporate Governance Report

Our responsibility under the Financial Reporting Act is to report on the compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance disclosed in the 
annual report and assess the explanations given for non-compliance with any requirement of the Code. From our assessment of the disclosures 
made on corporate governance in the annual report, the Public Interest Entity has, pursuant to section 75 of the Financial Reporting Act 2004, 
complied with the requirements of the Code.

Responsibilities of directors for the consolidated and separate financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards, and in compliance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, the Banking Act 
2004, and the Financial Reporting Act 2004 and they are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to 
enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Bank’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group and the Bank or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s and the Bank’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of MauBank Ltd

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We 
also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's and the Bank’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 
by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and the Bank’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Group and the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to 
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe those matters 
in our auditor’s report unless laws or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

This report is made solely to the Bank’s shareholders, as a body, in accordance with section 205 of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001. Our audit 
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Bank’s shareholders those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report 
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Bank and 
the Bank’s shareholders as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Deloitte 
Chartered Accountants

R. Srinivasa Sankar, FCA 
Licensed by FRC

30 September 2020
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Statements of Financial Position
as at

Notes
The Group The Bank

30 June 2020

Rs

30 June 2019

Rs

30 June 2018

Rs

30 June 2020

Rs
30 June 2019

Rs

30 June 2018

Rs

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 8(a) 4,287,385,039 4,117,331,280 1,329,205,952 4,287,385,039 4,117,331,280 1,329,205,952

Loans to and placements with banks 9 2,447,872 73,722,466 314,467,714 2,447,872 73,722,466 314,467,714

Derivative assets 29 45,718,645 2,830,728 1,006,361 45,718,645 2,830,728 1,006,361

Trading assets 10 3,637,975,739 1,620,255,263 1,192,675,454 3,637,975,739 1,620,255,263 1,192,675,454

Investment securities 11 3,568,483,878 1,927,225,589 2,928,036,240 3,568,483,878 1,927,225,589 2,928,036,240

Loans and advances to customers 12 15,406,607,530 14,935,784,208 11,177,109,838 15,597,383,181 15,146,836,349 11,404,531,039

Property, plant and equipment 13(a) 1,782,530,259 1,723,756,990 1,791,989,667 1,479,141,150 1,484,210,276 1,541,772,716

Intangible assets 13(b) 196,854,243 215,650,705 220,608,500 196,854,243 215,650,705 220,608,500

Right of use 13(c) 112,090,590 - - 212,919,603 - -

Investment properties 14 79,300,000 66,460,000 66,460,000 79,300,000 66,460,000 66,460,000

Investment in subsidiary 15 - - - 100,000 100,000 100,000

Current tax assets 38(c) 5,613,241 6,920,064 1,621,967 5,081,483 6,293,906 836,872

Deferred tax assets 38(d) 44,034,416 77,699,731 380,941,082 54,366,696 76,340,528 380,128,812

Receivable from fellow subsidiary 16 - - 5,097,577,730 - - 5,097,577,730

Other assets 17 2,294,404,529 2,048,901,636 2,075,455,065 2,332,427,701 2,086,924,806 2,113,478,233

Total assets 31,463,445,981 26,816,538,660 26,577,155,570 31,499,585,230 26,824,181,896 26,590,885,623

Liabilities

Deposits from customers 18 26,313,109,402 23,056,443,423 22,336,114,499 26,314,518,873 23,064,500,010 22,346.501,200

Derivative liabilities 29 289,498,366 2,382,221 531,529 289,498,366 2,382,221 531,529

Other borrowed funds 19 1,089,390,019 198,345,266 399,431,739 1,089,390,019 198,345,266 399,431,739

Lease liabilities 20 74,526,375 - - 203,309,885 - -

Payable to fellow subsidiary 41 10,141,366 38,180,968 - 10,141,366 38,180,968 -

Other liabilities 21 564,861,615 647,754,912 676,545,270 564,256,445 647,184,796 675,999,158

Retirement benefits obligations 22 127,035,127 109,812,754 65,214,969 127,035,127 109,812,754 65,214,969

Total liabilities 28,468,562,270 24,052,919,544 23,477,838,006 28,598,150,081 24,060,406,015 23,487,678,595

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Stated capital 23 2,466,420,956 2,466,420,956 2,466,420,956 2,466,420,956 2,466,420,956 2.466,420,956

Statutory reserve 24 1,619,995 1,619,995 1,619,995 1,619,995 1,619,995 1,619,995

(Accumulated lossesJ/Retained earmings 25 (158,302,462) (271,066,429) 135,936,241 (175,273,101) (279,941,657) 130,793,712

Net owned funds 2,309,738,489 2,196,974,522 2,603,977,192 2,292,767,850 2,188,099,294 2,598,834,663

General banking reserve 26 90,709,840 90,709,840 90,709,840 90,709,840 90,709,840 90,709,840

Fair value reserve 11(d) (21,167,091) (2,510,450) (21,739,662) (21,167,091) (2,510,450) (21,739,662)

Other reserve 27 (b) 12,809,247 5,978,082 - 12,809,247 5,978,082 -
Revaluation reserve 27 (a) 602,793,226 472,467,122 426,370,194 526,315,303 481,499,115 435,402,187

Total equity attributable to equity 
holders of the parent 2,994,883,711 2,763,619,116 3,099,317,564 2,901,435,149 2,763,775,881 3,103,207,028

Total liabilities and equity 31,463,445,981 26,816,538,660 26,577,155,570 31,499,585,230 26,824,181,896 26,590,885,623



3838 The Mauritius Government Gazette

MAU
BANK Le partenaire de votre progrès!

Statements of Financial Position
as at

Notes

The Group The Bank 

30 June 2020

Rs

30 June 2019

Rs

30 June 2018
Rs

30 June 2020
Rs

30 June 2019

Rs

30 June 2018

Rs

Contingent liabilities

Letters of credit, guarantees, acceptances, 
endorsements and other obligations on 
account of customers 28(b) 1,981,028,082 1,300,989,705 1,364,714,537 1,981,028,082 1,300,989,705 1,364,714,537

Credit commitments 30 1,908,076,512 2,260,463,823 2,617,580,952 1,908,076,512 2,260,463,823 2,617,580,952

Approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 30 September 2020 and signed on its behalf by

Mr. Gooroodeo Sookun 
Chairman
On behalf of Board of Directors

Mr. Premchand Mungar 
Chief Executive
On behalf of Board of Directors On behalf of Board of Directors

Date: 30 September 2020

Ebene 72201, Republic of Mauritius
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MAU
BANK Le partenaire de votre progrès!

Statements of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
for year ended

Notes

The Group The Bank

Year ended
30 June 2020

Rs

Year ended
30 June 2019

Rs

Year ended
30 June 2018

Rs

Year ended
30 June 2020

Rs

Year ended
30 June 2019

Rs

Year ended
30 June 2018

Rs
Interest income 1,022,567,961 1,042.446,380 1,228,682,402 1,034,815,135 1,056,574,734 1,244,066,344
Interest expense (443,779,554) (458,530,017) (534,955,443) (447,614,361) (458,530,017) (534,955,443)
Net interest income 31 578,788,407 583,916,363 693,726,959 587,200,774 598,044,717 709,110,901

Fee and commission income 245,444,634 247,563,800 109,938,827 245,444,634 247,563,800 109,938,827
Fee and commission expense (46,381,840) (42,882,639) (42,666,717) (46,381,840) (42,882,639) (42,666,717)
Net fee and commission income 32 199,062,794 204,681,161 67,272,110 199,062,794 204,681,161 67,272,110

Net trading income 33 253,953,093 176,188,288 130,736,190 253,953,093 176,188,288 130,736,190
Net gain from derecognition of financial 
assets measured at FVTOCI 76,513,331 63,243,771 44,941,009 76,513,331 63,243,771 44,941,009
Other income 34 40,859,821 25,956,727 202,256,191 40,859,821 25,956,727 202,256,191

371,326,245 265,388,786 377,933,390 371,326,245 265,388,786 377,933,390

Operating income 1,149,177,446 1,053,986,310 1,138,932,459 1,157,589,813 1,068,114,664 1,154,316,401
Personnel expenses 36 (515,504,836) (541,210,930) (449,362,844) (515,504,836) (541,210,930) (449,362,844)
Operating lease expenses 44 (16,416,286) (42,596,467) (48,526,213) (16,416,286) (73,512,306) (79,474,130)
Depreciation and amortisation 13 (147,701,532) (157,176,216) (151,069,547) (171,852,378) (146,505,977) (141,155,402)
Other expenses 37 (274,995,202) (300,493,635) (282,198,578) (269,681,907) (299,857,292) (281,252,603)
Profit before impairment and 
income tax 194,559,590 12,509,062 207,775,277 184,134,406 7,028,159 203,071,422
Net impairment (loss)/reversal on financial 
assets 35 (56,354,532) (732,062) (166,617,172) (56,354,532) (732,062) (166,617,172)
Profit after impairment but before 
income tax 138,205,058 11,777,000 41,158,105 127,779,874 6,296,097 36,454,250
Income tax expense 38(b) (21,905,722) (354,581,772) (27,278,364) (19,575,949) (352,833,568) (25,654,284)

ProfitZ(Loss) for the year attributable to 
equity holders of the parent 39 116,299,336 (342,804,772) 13,879,741 108,203,925 (346,537,471) 10,799,966

Earnings /(Loss) per share 40 0.02 0.00 0.03 0.02 0.00 0.03
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MAU
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Statements of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
for year ended (contd)

Notes

The Group The Bank 

Year ended
30 June 2020

Rs

Year ended
30 June 2019

Rs

Year ended
30 June 2018

Rs

Year ended
30 June 2020

Rs

Year ended
30 June 2019

Rs

Year ended
30 June 2018

Rs

ProfitZ(loss) for the year 116,299,336 (342,804,772) 13,879,741 108,203,925 (346,537,471) 10,799,966

Other comprehensive (loss)Zincome:
Items that will not be reclassified 
subsequently to profit or loss

Gain on revaluation of property, plant and 
equipment 105,778,447 34,589,069

Deferred tax on revaluation of property, 
plant and equipment 38(d) (14,686,149) - - (2,583,955) - -

Effect of tax rate change on deferred tax 
on revaluation of property, plant and 
equipment 27(a) 45,278,393 - 45,278,393 -

Gain on revaluation of Right-of-use assets 27(a) 39,233,806 - - 12,811,074 - -

Actuarial loss for the year 22(iii) (3,721,441) (34,294,652) (10,631,732) (3,721,441) (34,294,652) (10,631,732)

Deferred tax on actuarial loss 38(d) 186,072 1,714,733 1,807,394 186,072 1,714,733 1,807,394

Items that may be classified subsequently 
to profit or loss:

Change in fair value of assets at FVTOCI 11(d) (18,656,641) 19,229,212 (18,656,641) 19,229,212

Change in fair value of avaiiable-for-sale 
financial assets 11(d) - - (167,415,281) - - (167,415,281)

Credit impairment charge on financial 
assets at FVTOCI 27(b) 6,831,165 4,135,850 - 6,831,165 4,135,850 -

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for 
the year, net of tax 114,965,259 36,063,536 (176,239,619) 29,455,343 36,063,536 (176,239,619)

Total comprehensive income/loss for 
the year attributable to equity holders of 
the parent 231,264,595 (306,741,236) (162,359,878) 137,659,268 (310,473,935) (165,439,653)

Transfer to Statutory Reserve 24 _ - - (1,619,995) - (1,619,995)

Approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 30 September 2020 and signed on its behalf by

Mr. Gooroodeo Sookun 
Chairman
On behalf of Board of Directors

Mr. Premchand Mungar
Chief Executive
On behalf of Board of Directors On behalf of Board of Directors

Date: 30 September 2020

Ebene 72201, Republic of Mauritius
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MAU
BANK Le partenaire de votre progrès!

Statements of Changes in Equity
for year ended

Stated 
Capital

Statutory 
Reserve

Retained 
earnings/ 

(Accumulated 
losses)

General 
Banking 
Reserve

Fair Value 
Reserve

Other 
Reserve

Revaluation 
Reserve

Total equity 
attributable 

to equity 
holders 

of the parent

Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs

The Group

At 01 July 2019 2,466,420,956 1,619,995 (271,066,429) 90,709,840 (2,510,450) 5,978,082 472,467,122 2,763,619,116

Profit for the year - - 116,299,336 - - - - 116,299,336

Transfer to statutory reserve 
(Note 24) - - - - - - -

Gain on revaluation 
of property, plant and 
equipment 105,778,447 105,778,447

Deferred tax on revaluation 
of property, plant and 
equipment (14,686,149) (14,686,149)
Gain on revaluation of Right- 
of-use assets - - - - 39,233,806 39,233,806

Change in fair value of 
financial assets held at 
FVTOCI - (18,656,641) - - (18,656,641)
Credit impairment charge on 
financial assets at FVTOCI - 6,831,165 - 6,831,165

Actuarial loss for the year - - (3,721,441) - - - - (3,721,441)
Deferred tax on actuarial loss - - 186,072 - - - - 186,072

At 30 June 2020 2,466,420,956 1,619,995 (158,302,462) 90,709,840 (21,167,091) 12,809,247 602,793,226 2,994,883,711

Stated 
Capital

Statutory 
Reserve

Retained 
earnings/ 

(Accumulated 
losses)

General 
Banking 
Reserve

Fair Value 
Reserve

Other 
Reserve

Revaluation 
Reserve

Total equity 
attributable 

to equity 
holders 

of the parent

Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs

The Group

At 01 July 2018 2,466,420,956 1,619,995 135,936,241 90,709,840 (21,739,662) - 426,370,194 3,099,317,564

Impact of transition to IFRS 9 - - (30,799,444) - - 1,842,232 - (28,957,212)

2,466,420,956 1,619,995 105,136,797 90,709,840 (21,739,662) 1,842,232 426,370,194 3,070,360,352

Loss for the year - - (342,804,772) - - - - (342,804,772)

Transfer from revaluation 
reserve to retained earnings - - (818,535) - - 818,535 -

Transfer to statutory reserve 
(Note 24) - - - - - - - -

Effect of tax rate change 
on deferred tax on revalu­
ation of property, plant and 
equipment 45,278,393 45,278,393

Change in fair value of finan­
cial assets held at FVTOCI - - 19,229,212 - - 19,229,212

Credit impairment charge on 
financial assets at FVTOCI - - 4,135,850 - 4,135,850

Actuarial loss for the year - - (34,294,652) - - - - (34,294,652)

Deferred tax on actuarial loss - - 1,714,733 - - - 1,714,733

At 30 June 2019 2,466,420,956 1,619,995 (271,066,429) 90,709,840 (2,510,450) 5,978,082 472,467,122 2,763,619,116
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MAU
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S8

Statements of Changes in Equity
for year ended

Stated Capital
Statutory 
Reserve

Retained 
earings/ 

(Accumulated 
losses)

General 
Banking 
Reserve

Fair Value 
Reserve

Revaluation 
Reserve

Total equity 
attributable to 
equity holders 

of the parent

Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs

The Group

At 01 July 2017 6,670,858,232 - (4,071,936,443) 90,709,840 145,675,619 426,370,194 3,261,677,442

Capital reduction (Note 23) (4,204,437,276) - 4,204,437,276 - - - -

Profit for the year - - 13,879,741 - - - 13,879,741

Transfer to statutory reserves - 1,619,995 (1,619,995) - - - -

Gain on fair value of available-for- 
sale financial assets - - - - (167,415,281) - (167,415,281)
Actuarial loss for the year - - (10,631,732) - - - (10,631,732)
Deferred tax on actuarial loss - - 1,807,394 - - - 1,807,394

At 30 June 2018 2,466,420,956 1,619,995 135,936,241 90,709,840 (21,739,662) 426,370,194 3,099,317,564

Stated
Capital

Statutory 
Reserve

Retained 
earnings/ 

(Accumulated 
losses)

General 
Banking 
Reserve

Fair Value 
Reserve

Other 
Reserve

Revaluation 
Reserve

Total equity 
attributable 

to equity 
holders 

of the parent

Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs
The Bank

At 01 July 2019 2,466,420,956 1,619,995 (279,941,657) 90,709,840 (2,510,450) 5,978,082 481,499,115 2,763,775,881
Profit for the year - - 108,203,925 - - - - 108,203,925
Transfer to statutory reserve 
(Note 24) - ■ - - - - - -

Gain on revaluation of 
property, plant and equipment - - - - - - 34,589,069 34,589,069

Deferred tax on revaluation of 
property, plant and equipment (2,583,955) (2,583,955)

Gain on revaluation of Right- 
of-use assets - - - - - - 12,811,074 12,811,074

Change in fair value of 
financial assets held at 
FVTOCI

- - - - (18,656,641) - - (18,656,641)

Credit impairment reversal on 
financial assets at FVTOCI - - - - - 6,831,165 - 6,831,165

Actuarial loss for the year - - (3,721,441) - - - - (3,721,441)
Deferred tax on actuarial loss - - 186,072 - - - - 186,072
At 30 June 2020 2,466,420,956 1,619,995 (175,273,101) 90,709,840 (21,167,091) 12,809,247 526,315,303 2,901,435,149
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Le partenaire de votre progrès!

Statements of Changes in Equity
for year ended

Stated
Capital

Statutory 
Reserve

Retained 
earnings/ 

(Accumulat­
ed losses)

General 
Banking 
Reserve

Fair Value 
Reserve

Other Re­
serve

Revaluation 
Reserve

Total equity 
attributable 

to equity 
holders of 
the parent

Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs
The Bank

At 01 July 2018 2,466,420,956 1,619,995 130,793,712 90,709,840 (21,739,662) - 435,402,187 3,103,207,028
Impact of transition to IFRS 9 - - (30,799,444) - - 1,842,232 - (28,957,212)

2,466,420,956 1,619,995 99,994,268 90,709,840 (21,739,662) 1,842,232 435,402,187 3,074,249,816
Loss for the year - - (346,537,471) - - - - (346,537,471)
Transfer from revaluation 
reserve to retained earnings - - (818,535) - - - 818,535 -

Transfer to statutory reserve 
(Note 24) - - - - - -

Effect of tax rate change on 
deferred tax on revaluation of 
property, plant and equipment 45,278,393 45,278,393
Change in fair value of finan­
cial assets held at FVTOCI - - - 19,229,212 - 19,229,212
Credit impairment charge on 
financial assets at FVTOCI - - - - 4,135,850 - 4,135,850
Actuarial loss for the year - - (34,294,652) - - - - (34,294,652)
Deferred tax on actuarial loss - - 1,714,733 - - - - 1,714,733
At 30 June 2019 2,466,420,956 1,619,995 (279,941,657) 90,709,840 (2,510,450) 5,978,082 481,499,115 2,763,775,881

Stated Capital
Statutory 
Reserve

Retained 
earnings/ 

(Accumulated 
losses)

General 
Banking 
Reserve

Fair Value 
Reserve

Revaluation 
Reserve

Total equity 
attributable to 
equity holders 

of the parent
Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs Rs

The Bank

At 01 July 2017 6,670,858,232 - (4,073,999,197) 90,709,840 145,675,619 435,402,187 3,268,646,681
Capital reduction (Note 23) (4,204,437,276) - 4,204,437,276 - - - -
Profit for the year - - 10,799,966 - - - 10,799,966
Transfer to statutory reserve - 1,619,995 (1,619,995) - - - -
Gain on fair value of availa- 
ble-for-sale financial assets - - - (167,415,281) - (167,415,281)
Actuarial loss for the year - - (10,631,732) - - - (10,631,732)
Deferred tax on actuarial loss - - 1,807,394 - - - 1,807,394
At 30 June 2018 2,466,420,956 1,619,995 130,793,712 90,709,840 (21,739,662) 435,402,187 3,103,207,028
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Statements of Cash Flows
for year ended

Notes

The Group The Bank
Year ended

30 June 2020
Rs

Year ended
30 June 2019

Rs

Year ended
30 June 2018

Rs

Year ended
30 June 2020

Rs

Year ended
30 June 2019

Rs

Year ended
30 June 2018

Rs
Cash from operating activities 
Profit before income tax 138,205,058 11,777,000 41,158,105 127,779,874 6,296.097 36,454,250
Adjustments for:
Finance charge 20 1,964,193 - 5,799,000 -
Impairment losses on loans and 
advances 35 70,597,541 13,270,754 180,266,854 70,597,541 13,270,754 180,266,854
Depreciation of property.plant and equip­
ment 13(a) 84,702,299 112,735,865 107,189,283 75,544,696 102,065,626 97,275,138
Amortisation of intangible assets 13(b) 40,761,489 44,440,351 43,880,264 40,761,489 44,440,351 43,880,264
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 13(c) 22,237,744 - - 55,546,193 - -
Loss/(profit) on disposal of property, plant 
and equipment 34 283,776 (416,308) 283,776 (416,308)
(Profitless on revaluation of investment 
securities at FVTPL 34 (6,406,590) (5,396,743) 3,527,975 (6,406,590) (5,396,743) 3,527,975
Profit on revaluation of investment prop­
erties 14 (12,840,000) - - (12,840,000) - -
Retirement benefit obligations 13,500,932 10,303,133 (43,830,148) 13,500,932 10,303,133 (43,830,148)

Changes in operating assets and 
liabilities
(lncrease)/decrease in trading assets

352,722,666

(2,012,612,597)

187,414,136

(423,578,399)

331,776,025

908,791,669

370,283,135

(2,012,612,597)

171,262,994

(423,578,399)

317,158,025

908,791,669
Decrease/(increase) in derivative 244,228,228 26,325 550,260 244,228,228 26,325 550,260
(IncreaseJ/decrease in loans and advances 
to customers (535,219,521) (3,809,879,753) 4,998,823,249 (514,943,031) (3,793,510,696) 5,011,459,612
Decrease/(increase) in receivable from 
fellow subsidiary 16 5,135,758,698 (5,097,577,729) - 5,135,758,698 (5,097,577,729)
Decrease in payable to fellow subsidiary (28,039,602) - - (28,039,602) - -
Increase in deposits from customers 3,256,665,980 720,328,923 393,863,464 3,250,018,863 717,998,810 397,016,250
(lncrease)/decrease in other assets (245,502,893) 26,553,434 (361,584,006) (245,502,894) 26,553,434 (363,728,113)
(Decrease)/increase in other liabilities (82,377,636) (29,849,972) 259,596,063 (82,412,687) (29,873,974) 259,516,451
Cash generated from operations 949,864,625 1,806,773,392 1,434,238,995 981,019,415 1,804,637,192 1,433,186,425
Tax paid 38(c) (8,368,692) (8,378,332) (3,618,469) (5,096,451) (5,457,034) (955,269)
Tax refund received 38(c) 6,935,034 785,098 2,543,451 6,308,873 - 834,563
Net cash from operating activities 948,430,967 1,799,180,158 1,433,163,977 982,231,837 1,799,180,158 1,433,065,719

Cash from investing activities
DecreaseZ(increase) in securities (1,658,616,219) 1,033,682,343 (643,923,784) (1,658,616,219) 1,033,682,343 (643,923,784)
Net placements with correspondent banks 71,390,637 240,628,904 (282,584,778) 71,390,637 240,628,904 (282,584,778)
Acquisition of property, plant and 
equipment 13(a) (37,697,123) (63,035,735) (29,107,465) (35,886,502) (63,035,735) (29,009,207)
Acquisition of intangibles 13(b) (21,965,027) (28,931,545) (66,522,535) (21,965,027) (28,931,545) (66,522,535)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant 
and equipment 7,697,761 1,210,868 7,697,761 1,210,868
Net cash (used inj/from investing 
activities (1,646,887,732) 1,190,041,728 (1,020,927,694) (1,645,077,111) 1,190,041,728 (1,020,829,436)
Cash from financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in other borrowed 
funds 8(b) 891,044,753 (201,086,473) 68,853,087 891,044,753 (201,086,473) 68,853,087
Proceeds from issue of shares - • - - - -
Decrease in lease liabilities 20 (22,532,346) - - (58,143,837) - -
Decrease in subordinated liabilities 8(b) _ - - (162,622,782) - - (162,622,782)
Net cash from/(used in) financing 
activities 868,512,407 (201,086,473) (93,769,695) 832,900,916 (201,086,473) (93,769,695)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 170,055,642 2,788,135,413 318,466,588 170,055,642 2,788,135,413 318,466,588
Cash and cash equivalents, at start of 
the year 4,117,341,365 1,329,205,952 1,010,739,364 4,117,341,365 1,329,205,952 1,010,739,364
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of 
the year 8_ 4,287,397,007 4,117,341,365 1,329,205,952 4,287,397,007 4,117,341,365 1,329,205,952

(Rec. No. 18/148866)
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DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

On the Financial Statements 
of the District Council of Black River 
for the year ended 30 June 2018

------------------NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE----------------—
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of the Director of Audit

To The District Council of Black River

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

I have audited the financial statements of The District Council of Black River, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018 and the statement financial 
performance, statement of cash flow, statement of changes in net assets/equity and the 
statement of comparison of budget and actual amount, for the year then ended and notes to 
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the 
financial position of The District Council of Black River as at 30 June 2018, and of its 
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs).

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit 
Institutions (ISSAIs). My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I 
am independent of The District Council of Black River in accordance with the INTOSAI 
Code of Ethics together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the 
financial statements in Mauritius, and I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most 
significance in my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
my opinion thereon, and I do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

I have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in my report.

14lh Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius 
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0882 Fax: (230) 211 0880
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Emphasis of Matter

I draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements concerning basis of preparation and 
statement of compliance. The District Council of Black River initiated accrual basis IPSASs 
on 1 July 2017 and elected to adopt the transitional exemptions in IPSAS 33, First-time 
Adoption of Accrual Basis IPSASs that allows it a transitional period of up to three years. As 
a result, the District Council of Black River is not able to made an explicit statement about its 
full compliance with accrual basis IPSAS.
My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial 
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Council’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management intends to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible of overseeing the Council’s financial 
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISSAIs, will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISSAIs, I exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.



3848 The Mauritius Government Gazette

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence, obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Council’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I 
am required to draw attention,in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause The District Council of Black 
River to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.

I also provide those charged with governance with a statement that I have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, I determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. I describe these matters in my auditor’s report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or, when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, I determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Management’s Responsibilities for Compliance

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements described above, management is also responsible to ensure that the Council’s 
operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of laws and regulations, including 
compliance with the provisions of laws and regulations that determine the reported amounts 
and disclosures in an entity’s financial statements.

Auditor’s Responsibilities

In addition to the responsibility to express an opinion on the financial statements described 
above, my responsibility includes reporting to the Council whether:

a) I have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of the audit;

b) any loss or deficiency is wholly or partly due to the negligence or misconduct of any 
person;
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c) any sum which ought to have been so brought but which , due to willful default or 
negligence, has not been brought into account; and

d) the provisions of Part V of the Public Procurement Act regarding the bidding process has 
been complied with.

I performed procedures, including the assessment of the risks of material non-compliance, to 
obtain audit evidence to discharge the above responsibilities.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion.

Local Government Act

I have obtained all information and explanations which to the best of my knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purpose of my audit.

Based on my examination of the accounts of The District Council of Black River, nothing has 
come to my attention that indicates:

(a) any loss or deficiency which is wholly or partly due to the negligence or misconduct of 
any person; and

(b) that any sum which ought to have been brought to account, has not been so brought due to 
willful default or negligence.

Other Matter

The financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2018 were received at my 
Office on 30 October 2018. Following examination of these financial statements, 
amendments had to be made. The amended financial statements, approved by the Council on 
16 July 2020, were submitted to my Office on 30 July 2020.

Public Procurement Act

In my opinion, the provisions of Part V of the Act have been complied with as far as it 
appears from my examination of the relevant records.

C. Romooah
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14,
Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

28th August, 2020
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER 
FIRST TRANSITIONAL IPSAS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2018

Notes

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash And Cash Equivalents
Receivables From Non-Exchange Transactions
Receivables From Exchange Transactions 
Debtors
Inventories
Investments
Prepayments

TOTAL
Non Current Assets
Receivables From Exchange Transactions
Property, Plant And Equipment
TOTAL
TOTAL ASSETS
LIBILITIES
Current Liabilities

Trade And Other Payables
Deposits From Customers

Payments Received In Advance
Employment Benefit Obligations - Leave, etc
TOTAL
Non Current Liabilities
Employment Benefit Obligations - Leave, etc 
Employment Benefit Obligations - Pension 
TOTAL
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
EQUITY
Reserves
TOTAL
TOTAL EQUITY

5
6
7

8
9
10

7

4

11
11

11
12

12
12

"^.66^552,940

: 3 730,781
? ' f504^393;357 

508,124,138
■ ~ r674,677‘,07.1

.^19;899;671'f 

-492,64;

;s/>;34*530,769:

2016-2017 
GAAP 

Rs

66,473,857

7,056,752
1,154,893

50,294,713

124,980,215

494,193,183
494,193,183
619,173,398

14,908,911
2,399,630

11,175,797

28,484,338

46,000,000
46,000,000
74,484,338 

544,689,060

544,689,060
544,689,060
544,689,060

The notes 1-38 are an integral part of the financial statements.

Approved by Council at its meeting of 16 July 2020. .

......\i -...............
V. Leu-Govind V.Thakoor
Chairperson Chief Executive

1



10 October 2020 3851

THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER 

FIRST TRANSITIONAL IPSAS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Notes
2017-2018

IPSAS
2016-2017 

GAAP
- Rs Rs

Revenue from Non Exchange Transactions

Trade Fees 13 10,341 113 13,774,385
Advertising and Publicity Fees 14 37,318 2,394,903
Government Grant 15 263,105,537 216,496,000
Other Income 16 ' 156,853 417,859
Sub- Total 273,620,821 233,083,147

Revenue From Exchange Transactions
Building and Land Use Permit 17 13,075,939 13,752,312
Scavenging Fees 18 3,105,900 3,196,400
Bus Toll Fees 19 54,000 57,750
Rental Income 20 96.000 96,000
Finance Income 21 2,879,151 2,208,382
Burial and Incineration Fees 22 - 601,500 310,000
Other Income 23 591,791 210,450

Sub-Total 20,404,311 19,831,294

Total Revenue 294,025,132 252,914,441

Expenses
Compensation of Employees 24 - 169,075,466 124,816,697

Utilities Cost 25 18,443,304 17,480,201
Motor Vehicle Expenses 26 1,729; 498 1,768,430

Repair and Maintenance 27 7,189,968 7,612,110

Cleaning Services 28 67,036,721 66,518,483

Grants and Subsidies 29 3,049,989 2,115,764

Professional and Legal fees 30 1,582,900 1,063,070

Depreciation 31 2,395,366 -
General Expenses 32 7.3b2,699 9,358,083

Sub-Total 277.865,911 230,732,838

Surplus/!Deficit) before gains/losses 16,159,221 22,181,603

Other Gains/Losses
Retirement Benefit Obligation -15,000,000

Surplus/(Deficit) 16,159,221 7,181,603

The notes 1-38 are an integral part of the financial statements.

2
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER

gTATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 
for the year ended June 30,2018

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES i 2016-17
Receipts R» Rs

IPSAS | GAAP

Fees, fines and penalties 11.87'.4231 17,283,338
Government Grants 261.920 791 243,137,467
Building and Land Use Permit ,13 102,239 13,752,312
Finance Income 2,576,880 2,208,382
Rental Income 96.000 96,000
Other revenue ' 6.207,821 41,787,722
Total receipts 297,779,154 318,265,221

Payments
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 117.622,462 154,062,696
Cash payments to suppliers, contractors, etc 111,283,678 105,612,553
Total payments 228,906,140 259,675,249
NET FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES <»8,S”3,014 58,589,972

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment -30,892.346 -20,955,864
Proceeds from sales of Property, Plant & Equipment -■
(Increase)/Decrease of Investments -12.9S4.028 -15,094,713
TOTAL CASH FLOWS/(USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES -43,871,824 -36,050,577

NET INCREASEZ(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25,001,190 22,539,395

Cash And Cash Equivalents Opening: 66,473,857 43,934,462
Cash And Cash Equivalents Closing 91.4-5.04" 66,473,857

Cash in hand
Bank Balance Bank 1
Bank Balance Bank 2
Bank Balance Bank 3
Bank Balance Bank 4
Bank Balance Bank 5
Bank Balance Bank 6
Bank Balance Bank 7
Cash And Cash Equivalents Closing

180 689
95,996 208,209

4,464,106 2,753,022
45,967,692 36,943,025

37,243 594,473
153,939 153,939

43,529,425 30,147,027
-2,773,534 -4,326,527
91,475,047 66,473,857

3
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS/EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Balance as at 01 July 2017
Adjustment

Remeasurement-Employee Benefits Liability IPSAS 39
Surplus/Deficit for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2018

2017-2018 

IPSAS 

MUR 
' 438,923,185 

(21,-225,840) 
11,720,804

- 16,1*9,221

445,577370

Balance as at 01 July 2016
Increase/Decrease in Pension Retired employee Benefits 

Movement

Surplus/Deficit for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2017

2016-2017 

IPSAS 

MIR 

542,074,817 

(157,777,T) 

41,432,641
_ 13,193,444.,

438,923,185'

4



THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER

STATEMENT OF COMPARISO X OF BUDGETVS AGI[TJALAMOl

Original 
Budget 

2017-2018
Final Budget 

2017-2018
Actual 

2017-2018
Performance

Justifications
MUR MUR MUR MUR

REVENUE:' ' § ’ ' ' '
Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions

Trade Fees 13,428,000 13,428,000 10,341,113 (3,086,887)
There were less new applications for Trade Licence and 
more cessation than expected

Advertising And Publicity Fees 1,800,000 1,700,000 17,318 (1,682,683)
There were more advertisement panels installed than 
expected

Government Grant 222,022,000 222,022,000 222,022,000 0
Other income - - 156,853 156,853 Other unexpected income received
Total Revenue from Non-Exchange 
Transactions 237,250,000 237,150,000 232,537,284 -4,612,717

—
Revenue from Exchange Transactions

Building and Land Use Permit Fees 6,500,000 9,000,000 13,075,939 4,075,939 Unexpected building permit for major development.
Bus Toll Fees 54,000 54,000 54,000 0 —
Rental Income 96,000 96,000 96,000 0 —
Financial Income 150,000 500,000 2,879,181 2,379,181 Better interest rates were received than expected.
Burial And Incineration Fees 280,000 400,000 601,500 201,500 There were more deceased persons than expected. ~~~
Scavenging Fees 1,500,000 1,800,000 3,105,900 1,305,900 New morcellement and restaurants.

Other Income 550,000 550,000 591,792 41,792
Unexpected income were received for obstruction of 
roads

Total Revenue from Exchange 
Transactions 9,130,000 12,400,000 20,404,312 8,004,312

IOI \l Ri ( I RRkNl RhVFNUE 246,380,000 249,550,000 252.9.41395 3,391,595

3854 
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Reconciliation with Statement of Financial Performance:
MUR

Total Revenue as per Statement of Financial Performance 294,025,132
Less Grant received from government for capital expenditure -41,083,537
Balance as per above statement MWisjS

5-8



THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER
Original 
Budget 

2017-2018
Final Budget 

2017-2018
Actual 

2017-2018
Pci tot nianci 
DifRiiiin Justifications

MUR MUR MUR MUR

RECURRENT EXPENDITURE^ ■

Compensation of employees 125,420,328 121,082,087 122,309,900 1,227,813

There has been savings under Compensation of 
Employees as funded posts were not yet filled or filled 
for only part of the year. There has been no increase in 
allowances and travelling paid to councillors than 
expected. (Actual figure includes provision for sick and 
vacation leave)

Goods and Services

Cost of Utilities 19,580,000 19,555,000 18,443,304 -1,111,696
There were no increase in prices of utilities during the 
year.

Motor Vehicle Expenses 2,280,000 2,280,000 1,729,498 -550,502 There were no increase in fuel prices during the year.

Repair and Maintenance 8,748,000 8,748,000 7,189,968 -1,558,032
Maintenance work were not effected as buildings and 
structures were still in good conditions.

Cleaning Expenses 67,433,250 67,333,250 67,036,721 -296,529 Expenses depends on weather conditions
Professional and Legal Fees 1,310,000 1,610,000 1,582,900 -27,100
Electoral Expenses 1,025,214 1,025,214 0 -1,025,214 No Electoral Expenses was required to be paid.
Printing, Postage & Stationery 1,320,000 1,190,000 1,142,694 -47,306
Notice and Publications 275,000 275,000 174,201 -100,799 Other means of public communications were used.
Books and Periodicals 70,000 60,000 48,434 -11,566
Committee expenses 200,000 150,000 146,118 -3,882
Entertainment and Hospitality 40,000 30,000 31,229 1,229
Bank chargesand fee 75,000 50,000 59,488 9,488
Local Disaster Management Expenses 100,000 100,000 66,828 -33,172
Fees to Evaluators 125,000 385,000 384,215 -785

Hired and Contracted Services 1,800,000 4,050,000 1,610,769 -2,439,231
Survey of assets were not contracted out as too 
expensive.

Insurance
850,000 740,000

339,239
-400,761

There were no increase in insurance fees, vehicles 
were revalued down at their fair value.

Rent 216,000 216,000 210,000 -6,000

5-8



THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER
Social, Cultural, Sport and Educational 
Activities 675,000 675,000 602,491 -72,509 Some activities were performed at national level.

Social Assistance 70,000 70,000 55,000 -15,000
Independence Day Celebrations 190,000 1,485,834 1,474,344 -11,490
Overseas Travel & Twinning 650,000 600,000 599,887 -113
Miscellaneous Expenses 618,000 458,000 417,763 -40,237 Other miscellaneous expenses were not required.

Office Furniture & IT Equip.'.ient 610,000 425,000 340,830 -84,170

Furniture and IT Equipment were not purchased as 
funded posts were not yet filled and old equipment were 
still in good conditions.

Grants
Grants 3,173,000 3,173,000 3,049,989 -123,011 There were no increase in contribution to Associations.

Acqu isition of Non-Financial Assets

Equipment and Machinery 11,800,000 2,456,208 1,955,023 -501,186

Some equipment were not purchased as funded posts 
were not yet filled and old equipment were still in good 
conditions.

iSi ■ ■ ■■ itgWWg
S’OjeÀD RECURRENEEXPENDITllRE 248,653,792 238,222,593 231.0H0AM -7,221,760

Surplus for the period , ^2t,94o5«3
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Reconciliation with Statement of Financial Performance:
MUR

Total Expenditure as per Statement of Financial Performance 277,865,911
Less Depreciation -2,395,366
Less increase in provision for sick leave -21,497,096
Less provision for vacation leave -25,268,470
Add Office Equipment and furniture 340,830
Add Acquisition of non-Financial Assets 1,955,023
Balance as per above statement 231,000.833



THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER

C \l’l 1 M » XPI M'lll KI
Original 
Budget

Final Budget
2017-2018

Actual 
2017-2018

Performance 
Difference

MUR MUR MUR MUR

Building 6,373,443 6,373,443 6,373,443 0
Public Infrastructure 23,326,760 23,326,760 23,326,760 0
Computer, IT Equipment & Softwares 871,525 871,525 871,525 0
Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings 1,892,398 1,892,398 1,892,398 0
Motor Vehicles 1,026,000 1,026,000 1,026,000 0

IOI < M'l 1 \l 1 XI'I XDIH KI ■'33.490.126 U 10II.I2G U4t<U2' tl

JUSTIFICATIONS FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
There were no performance differences for Capital Expenditure as the approved amount were paid.

Note: (1). The Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual amounts has been prepared on an accrual basis
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER 
OPENING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 01 JULY 2017

Notes

As at 01 July 
2017 

(GAAP)

As at 01 July 
2017 

(IPSAS)

Rs Rs
ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash And Cash Equivalents 66,473,857 66,473,857
Loans and Advances B - 1,768,092
Receivables From Exchange Transactions A 7,056,752 1,421,779
Receivables From Non-Exchange Transactions C - 4,468,754
Inventories 1,154,894 1,154,894
Investments 50,294,713 50,294,713
Prepayments D - 121,308
TOTAL 124,980,216 125,703,397

Non Current Assets
Loans and Advances C - 5,288,660
Property, Plant And Equipment 494,193,183 494,193,183
TOTAL 494,193,183 499,481,843
TOTAL ASSETS 619,173,399 625,185,240

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade And Other Payables 14,908,911 14,908,911
Deposits From Customers 2,399,631 2,399,631
Employment Benefit Obligations E 11,175,797 11,175,797
TOTAL 28,484,339 28,484,339

Non Current Liabilities
Non Current Employee Benefits E 46,000,000 157,777,717
TOTAL 46,000,000 157,777,717
TOTAL LIABILITIES 74,484,339 186,262,056
NET ASSETS 544,689,060 438,923,184

EQUITY
Reserves 544,689,060 438,923,184
TOTAL 544,689,060 438,923,184
TOTAL EQUITY 544,689,060 438,923,184

9-11
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER

(i) Reconciliation of surplus/deficit in accordance with the previous basis of accounting (i.e GAAP) to
the opening balance of surplus/deficit as at 1 July 2017:

2016-2017 
MUR

Surplus/Deficit using GAAP 
Scavenging Fees Receivable 
Interest Receivable
Trade Fee Receivable 
Advertising Fee Receivable 
Advance payment for GPS/GIS 
Surplus/Deficit using IPSAS

7,181,603
766,500

655,279
2,242,075
2,226,679 

_____________ 121,308 
13,193,444

(Ii) Reconciliation of Reserves in accordance with the previous basis of accounting (i.e GAAP) to 
the opening balance of Reserves as at 1 July 2017:

Reserves as at 01/07/2017 using GAAP
Increase in Non Current Employee Benefits 
Adjustment on Surplus/Deficit
Reserves as at 1 July 2017 using IPSAS

2016-2017
____________ MUR

544,689,060
111,777,717

6,011,841
438,923,184

Receivables From Exchange Transactions

Scavenging Fees 
Interest Receivable

2016-2017
________ MUR

766,500
655,279

1,421,779

Loans & Advances-Car Loans

Car Loans and Advances- Current
Car Loans and Advances- Non Current

2016-2017 
MUR 

1,768,092 
5,288,660 
7,056,752

Receivables From Non-Exchange Transaction v

Trade Fee Receivable 
Advertising Fee Receivable

C 2016-2017
____________MUR

2,242,075
2,226,679
4,468,754

Prepayment D

Advance payment for GPS/GIS

2016-2017
________ MUR

121,308

9-11
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS - LONG TERM

Provision for Unutilised Sick Leave Pay - current
Provision for Passage Benefit - current

Provision for Retirement Benefit - Non current

Total

2016-2017 
RS

5,000,000
6,175,797

11,175,797

157^777^717

168,953,514

9-11
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -30 JUNE 2018

1. REPORTING ENTITY

The District Council of Black River is a corporate body established under the Local Government Act 
2011, Part II Section 3 and 7. The place of management is at Geoffroy Road, Black River. The 
Council’s principal activities are the provision of sound public infrastructure and its maintenance, 
household waste collection, licensing of business activities, issuing of development permit and the 
promotion of sport, leisure and welfare activities.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of the District Council of Black River have been prepared in compliance with 
Section 132 and 133 of the Local Government Act 2011 and has adopted the International Public Sector 
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) for the first time and elected to adopt the three years transitional period.

The following standards have been adopted by the Council for this financial year:

IPSAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

IPSAS 2 - Cash Flow Statements

IPSAS 3 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

IPSAS 9 - Revenue from Exchange Transactions

IPSAS 12 - Inventories

IPSAS 13 - Leases

IPSAS 14 - Events after Reporting Date

IPSAS 17 - Property, Plant and Equipment

IPSAS 19 - Provisions Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

IPSAS 20 - Related Party Disclosures

IPSAS 21 - Impairment of Non-Cash-Generating Assets

IPSAS 23 - Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions (Taxes and Transfers)

IPSAS 24 - Presentation of Budget Information in Financial Statements

12



3862 The Mauritius Government Gazette

THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -30 JUNE 2018

IPSAS 25 - Employee Benefits

IPSAS 31 - Intangible Assets

IPSAS 33 - First Time Adoption of Accrual Basis IPSAS’s

IPSAS 39 - Employee Benefits

(b) Basis of measurement and Functional and presentation currency and comparative 
information.

The Financial Statements are presented in Mauritian Rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest 
rupee. The accounting policies have been applied as from this year. The Financial Statements have been 
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless stated otherwise. The Cash Flow Statement is 
prepared using the direct method and the Financial Statements are prepared on the accruals basis. 
Comparative figures for the previous period are according to GAAP.

Presentation of Financial Statement

The Financial Statement Comprises of the following:
• Statement of Financial Position

• Statement of Financial Performance

• Statement of Cash Flows

• Statement of Changes in Net Assets/Equity

• Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

• Opening Statement of Financial Position

• Notes to the Financial Statements

3, APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL PUBLIC SECTOR ACCOUNTING 
STANDARDS (IPSAS)

(a) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the District 
Council and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is received.

13
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The general policy of the Council is to recognize revenue on an accrual basis with the substance of the 
relevant agreement. Revenue is recognized as deferred income when there is a related condition attached 
that would give rise to a liability to repay the amount.

Financial reporting of revenue arising from exchange transactions when one entity receives asset or 
services, or has liabilities exchanged, and directly gives approximately equal value in the form of cash, 
goods, services or use of assets to another entity in exchange. Non-exchange transactions are those 
transactions where there are no exchange of approximate direct benefits or value between receiving and 
giving entities.

Revenue from Exchange Transactions

(i) Bus toll fee
Bus toll fee is payable by every bus owner using the traffic centers and the fee is accounted for 
as income on an accrual basis. It is payable to Council one month in advance.

(ii) Rental income
Rent income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a 
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or 
loss due to its operating nature.

(iii) Building Ordinance fee
Building and land use permit fee is recognized on the actual basis, that is the amount actually 
received and/or collected and development permit actually issued.

(iv) Interest Income
Interest income is accrued using a time proportion basis based in accordance of the relevant 
agreement and prevailing rate of interest. Interest income generated from investment of the 
Passage Fund is not accounted in the financial statements in compliance with Section 81 (5) 
(b) of the Local Government Act 2011.

(v) Burial and Incineration fees
Burial and incinerator fees are recognized on the actual basis that is the amount actually 
received and / or collected and service actually provided.

(vi) Other Income
School fee, loss BLP fee and loss trade license fees are accounted for as income on an accrual 
basis unless collectability is in doubt and cannot be recognized when it is uncertain that future 
economic benefit will flow to the Council, and the fair value of the asset can be measured 
reliably.

14
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF BLACK RIVER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -30 JUNE 2018

Revenue from Non-Exchange Transactions

(i) Trade fee
Trade fee is payable whenever an economic operator or any person carries out a classified trade 
as stipulated by the Local Government Act 2011 Section 122 (2). It is an offence to carry out 
such trade without the payment of the appropriate fees. However, there is a high risk that a 
trader failed to complete the procedure for cessation of business and thus the probability of 
receiving payment of trade fee is remote

Thus, revenue from non-exchange transaction, trade fee, is recognized when the income is 
measure at fair value, is reliable and collectible. As the collectability of trade fee receivable is 
not reasonably assured, trade fee receivable and received is recognized on the cash basis.

(ii) Advertising fee
Advertising fees are accounted for as income on an accrual basis unless collectability is in 
doubt and cannot be recognized when it is uncertain that future economic benefit will flow to 
the Council, and the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

(iii) Government Capital grants
Government grant is not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the Council will 
comply with the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received. A liability is 
recognized in respect of the condition attached to the grant and related revenue recognized in 
the period the condition is satisfied.

(iv) Government grant-in-aid
Grant in aid that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for 
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Council with no future related costs 
are recognized in the statement of financial performance in the period in which they become 
receivable.

(v) Transfer from other government entities
Revenue from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair 
value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset ( cash, goods, services and property) if 
the transfer is free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service 
potential related to the asset will flow to the Council and can be measured reliably

(b) Taxes
Current income tax is not charged on the revenue of the Council and therefore local authorities are 
exempted from taxes on revenue.
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Value added Tax
Value added tax paid on the procurement of asset, goods and services is not recoverable from the tax 
authority and therefore the tax paid is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset and 
expenses.

(c) Investment Property

Investment property is land or buildings held to earn rentals rather that use in the production of services 
or for administrative purpose. Investment property is measured initially at its fair value at the date of 
acquisition or cost including transaction cost. It is recognized as an asset when it is likely that future 
economic benefits or service potential that are associated with the investment will flow to the Council 
and the cost or fair value of the investment property can be measured reliably.

The Council does not have such type of investment property.

(d) Property, Plant and Equipment

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized as an asset when it is probable that future 
economic benefits will flow for the Council and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured 
reliably.

The Council has adopted IPSAS for the first time and elected to adopt the three year transitional period 
and will recognize all its Property, Plant and Equipment over tire three years. For the financial year 
2017-2018, the Council has recognized Computer & IT Equipment and Motor Vehicles at fair value 
less depreciation.

Other classes of assets have been shown at cost and no depreciation have been charged in this financial 
year. In the financial year 2018-2019 we have recognized Public Infrastructures at fair value less 
depreciation. Land and Building has also been accounted for separately. Part of the land owned by the 
Council has also been shown at fair value.

The Council plans to recognize the remaining class of assets by the end of the transitional period.

(i).  Land is maintained at cost and is not depreciated.

Land acquired by Council is valued at cost of acquisition and it is not depreciated.

Land transferred by land and real estate promoters to the Council are in principle transferred to the Council 
at the token amount of MUR 1 per plot and the deed of sale clearly stipulates the condition that the land 
shall be used only for the purpose for which it has been vested to the Council under the Morcellement Act. 
Land transferred is capitalized as fixed asset at the date the transfer took place and it is valued at fair value.
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(ii) . Annual rates of Depreciation

The annual rates are used in the calculation of depreciation using the straight-line method.

Motor Vehicles 10%
Computer and IT Equipment 25%

(iii) . Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognized if it is probable that future benefits or services potential that are 
attributable to the asset will flow to the Council, and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured 
reliably. Internally generated intangible assets are not recognized. An intangible item that does not meet 
both the recognition and definition criteria is expense in statement of financial performance when 
incurred.

Following the initial recognition as an intangible asset it is accounted for using the cost model less any 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The economic useful life of an intangible asset is 
assessed as finite or infinite.

Application software is classified as an intangible asset while operating software is recognized as 
property, plant and equipment as it cannot be separated from the latter. The cost of intangible is 
amortized over its useful economic life. Impairment test is carried out whenever there is indication that 
the asset may be impaired.

(e) Financial Instruments

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus/deficit, loans and 
receivables, held to maturity investments and/or available-for-sale financial assets. Council determines 
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial assets are recognized on the date that Council is committed to purchase or sell the asset and/or 
date on which the assets are transferred or delivered. Council financial assets include: cash and cash 
equivalent; term deposits; trade and other receivables; loans and other receivable; and inventories.

Subsequent to initial recognition financial assets are measured based on their respective classification. 
They are classified into four categories namely, financial assets measured at fair value through surplus 
or deficit, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets.

Our investments comprise of fixed deposits held with different institutions for a period of less than 
one year at a fixed rate. The interest is payable upon maturity, but the Council recognized the interest 
on an accrual basis.
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(f) Inventories

Inventories are measured at cost upon initial recognition. Inventory received free or at nominal cost in a 
non-exchange transaction is recognized at fair value at the date of acquisition.

• Raw materials are accounted at purchase cost using the weighted average cost method.
• Work-in-progress and finished goods are accounted at cost of direct materials plus labour cost 

and a proportion of overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing 
cost.

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. However, to 
the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for nominal charge, that class 
of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost.Net realizable value is the 
estimated selling price or the market price less the estimated costs of completion of the sale, exchange or 
distribution.

Inventories are stated at weighted average value or weighted average price of lots of items where balance 
of the lot is greater than zero. Value for the item of stock is the cost charged by supplier. The Council 
practices the first in first out basis (FIFO) for the issue of stock items. Inventories are recognized as an 
expense when issued for utilization and consumption in the provision of services and administration of 
the Council.

(g) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank net of overdraft, cash in hand, short term deposits with a 
financial institutions and highly liquid investment with a maturity period of not exceeding three months 
which is readily convertible into cash and is not subject to significant risk of change in value. Cash 
equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value.

(h) Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are stated at their nominal value. All known trade payables are recognized at its 
cost. They are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year. Otherwise, they are 
presented as non-current liabilities.

(i) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the District Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit or service potential 
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties required to settle the 
present obligation. When the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will 
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance net of any 
reimbursement, for example under an insurance contract.

(j) Contingent liabilities

The Council does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any contingencies in the notes 
to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources is remote.

(k) Contingent Assets

The Council does not recognize a contingent Asset, but discloses details of any possible asset whose 
existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrcnce of one or more uncertain future events not 
wholly within the control of Council in the notes to the financial statements.

(l) Retirement Benefit Costs r

(i) State Plan

The Council contributes 6 % of the gross emoluments of part-time employees and employees 
who are not on a permanent and pensionable establishment to the National Pension Fund.

The Council also contributes 2.5% of the gross emoluments of all employees to the National 
Savings Fund.

T he above contributions are charged to statement of profit or loss in the year they are due.

(ii) Defined Contribution Plan

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the District Council 
pays fixed contributions (12% of gross emoluments) into another entity, the State Investment 
Company of Mauritius Limited (“SICOM Ltd”), for new full-time employees who joined the 
Local Authorities from 1 January 2013 onwards. The district council has no further payment 
obligations once the contributions have been paid. These contributions are charged to 
statement of profit or loss in the year they are due.

(iii) Retirement Pension To Retirees Before 1 July 2008

The Council pays retirement pension to those employees who retired before 1 July 2008.

The obligation has been calculated by independent actuaries from SICOM Ltd and the 
accounting policy is as per the defined benefit plan.

(iv) Compassionate Allowance
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In accordance with the Local Authority Employees (Allowance) Regulations 1964 (GN 159 of 
1964) the Council also pays Compassionate Allowance to part time employees who have been 
in service for more than 5 years on their retirement. This has been computed based on the 
number of year of services up to the year end, average annual wage for the last 5 years.

(v) Defined Benefit Plan

The Council operates a defined benefit plan, administered by and invested with SICOM Ltd. 
The pension plan is funded by payment of contribution to the fund (Council: 12% of gross 
emoluments and employee: 6% of gross emoluments) taking account of the recommendations 
of the Pay Research Bureau (PRB) report.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit pension plans other than defined 
contribution plans. Defined benefit plans typically define the amount of benefit that an 
employee will receive on or after retirement, dependent on factors such as years of service and 
compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of a defined benefit pension plan is the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value of plan 
assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised past-service costs. The defined benefit 
obligation has been calculated by independent actuaries from SICOM Ltd using the projected 
unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by 
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using market yields on bonds.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited 
to equity in other comprehensive income in the period when they arise.

Past service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

(vi) Sick Leave

Employee entitlements to bank sick leave as defined in the PRB report are recognized as and 
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for the estimated liability for bank sick 
leave.

The employees are allowed to accumulate sick leaves not taken at the end of each calendar 
year, up to a maximum of 110 days and this is recorded as bank sick leave balance for the 
financial year and is recognized as Long term Payables under Non-current Liabilities.

Where it is foreseen that an employee would retire within the next financial year, the total 
amount of sick leave so payable is transferred to Current Liabilities.
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Once the maximum of 110 days is reached, employees are entitled to encash up to 16 unutilised 
days of sick leave annual entitlement at the end of every calendar year and this is expensed to 
the Statement of Financial Performance when payment is effected. This estimated amount of 
sick leave is also transferred to current liabilities.

(vii) Unutilized Vacation Leave

Employee entitlements to vacation leave as defined in the PRB report are recognized as and 
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for the estimated liability for unutilized 
vacation leave.

(viii) Passage Benefits

Passage benefits for each employee are valued at the end of each financial year and are included 
as a short-term liability under Current Liability, as this represents any forthcoming payments 
in the next financial year.

(m) Nature and Purpose of Reserves

The Council creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements.

Pension Fund

In accordance with IPSAS 39, full provision has been made for pension liability for the year 2017-2018.

Enacted under section 81 of the Local Government Act 2011, a pension fund has been created by Council 
whereby a monthly contribution, in line with the Pay Research Bureau recommendation, in paid in and 
retirement benefit is paid out of it to retired employees of the Council. These include payment of retirement 
benefits to employees transferred from another local authority, public service, statutory body or from any 
other institution. Every year an actuarial investigation is carried out to determine the pension liability and 
adjustment is made accordingly to the surplus or deficit in the statement of financial performance and 
statement of financial position.

The pension fund is managed by SICOM and therefore it does not include in the statement of change in net 
asset.

Passage Fund

Enacted under Section 81 of the Local Government Act 2011, a passage fund has been created by the 
Council to finance the payment of passage benefit to officers transferred from other Local Authorities, from 
the public service, from a statutory body or from any other institution.
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(n) Related Parties

Related parties are entities that control or have significant influence over the reporting entity and parties 
that controlled or significantly influenced by the reporting entity. Members of key management, members 
of executive committee, members of permit and business monitoring committee, district councilors, 
members of procurement committee and the parent ministry.

The village Councils are managed and significantly influenced by its Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and 
District Councillors given that they are separate legal entities as per local Government Act 2011 and the 
District Council is responsible for over viewing the administration. The village council funds are managed 
by the Chief Executive and Financial Controller of the District Council. The Council has no significant 
influence over the decision-making process of the village councils. The expenditure of village councils is 
disclosed under grant and subsidies in one line.

(o) Budget Information

Budget information of local authorities are required to be made readily available for public inspection under 
section 85(e) of the Local Government Act 2011.

The annual budget is prepared on the accruals basis whereby all estimated expenditure and income and 
presented in a performance based budget format. After its approval by the Council, the budget estimates is 
submitted to the parent ministry for its approval as per with section 85 of the Local Government Act 
2011.The budget is then approved after the Local Government Governance Unit having carried out 
adjustment to the original budgetary provisions.

During the financial year Council carried out monthly budget monitoring exercise to identify the need for 
any additional funding and a final revised budget estimates is submitted with expected expenditure and 
revenue for the ministerial approval.

Any difference between revised and actual expenditure and income is provided in the notes to the financial 
statements. The explanation gives the reasons for overall growth or decline in the budget and detail 
information of overspending and/or underspending on line items.

2 Critical Accounting Estimates, Assumption and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies and 
Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires the District Council to make 
certain accounting estimates and judgements that have an impact on the policies and the amounts reported 
in the financial statements. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical 
experiences and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable at 
the time such estimates and judgements are made, although actual experience may vary from these 
estimates.
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The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing adjustment to carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities are discussed below:

(i) Provisions

Provisions are measured at the management’s best estimation of the potential financial 
obligational based on the information available at the reporting date.

(ii) Provision for Bad Debts

Provision is made when there is objective evidence that the District Council will not be able to 
collect certain debts. This is made based on detailed analysis and historical experience.

(iii) Useful Economic Life and Residual Values

The economic useful life and its residual value is assessed based on the nature of the asset, its 
susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and process; the environment where 
the asset is deployed; expert advice, financial capacity to replace the asset; and change in the 
market in relation to the asset.

(iv) Fair Value Estimation

Financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the statement of financial position are 
derived from the active market based on the market price. In the absence of an active market 
the fair value is determined using valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow model. 
The inputs to the models are obtained from the market; otherwise judgment is required in 
establishing fair value. Judgement includes the consideration of inputs like liquidity risk, credit 
risk and volatility. Any change in assumptions may affect the fair value of tire assets and 
liabilities.

(v) Defined Benefit Obligations
The present value of the post-employment pension obligations depends on a number of factors 
that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions such as discount rate, 
expected salary increase and mortality. Any change in these assumptions will impact the 
carrying amount of pension obligations.

(vi) Change in accounting policies

Any effect of change in accounting policies is applied retrospectively. The effect of changes in 
accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is impractical.
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Financial Risk Management

The District Council is exposed to financial, credit and liquidity risks. The overall risk management of the 
District Council is focused on the mitigation of liquidity and credit risks and seek to minimize potential 
adverse effects on the financial performance and service delivery of the Council.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from credit exposures to customers. The Council does not consider the need to have an 
independent rating of its customers. In fact, no trade fee receipt is issued on credit while three-month credit 
facilities are allowed to holders of market stall in principle.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through 
an adequate amount of credit facilities. The Council has appropriate management policy in place to ensure 
that there is sufficient cash to meet its financial obligations.
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4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Rate
COST:

As at 01 July 2017

Adjustments

Additions

Asat 30 June 2018

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT:
As at 01 July 2017

Charge for the year

Impairment

As at 30 June 2018

Carrying Value

As at 30 June 2018

As at 30 June 2017

Land_and Building Public Infrastructure

RS BS

56,187,977 378,323,389

6,373,443 23,326,760

62,561,420 401,650,149

- -

62,561,420 401,650,149

56,187,977 378,323,389

Computer & IT 
Equipment

Furniture, Fixtures 
& Fittings

RS
25%

RS

9,759,561 25,610,294

871,525 1,892,398

10,631,086 27,502,692

1,479,866

4,711,622

6,191,488 -

4,439,598 27,502,692

9,759,561 25,610,294

Motorvehicles Total

RS 55
10%

24,311,962 494,193,183

(8,700,000)

1,026,000 33,490,126

16,637,962 527,683,309

915,500 2,395,366

7,482,962 12,194,584

• 8,398,462 14,589,950

8,239,500 504,393,359

24,311,962 494,193,183

The M
auritius G

overnm
ent G

azette

Note:

(1) . All the fixed assets were acquired out of government grant.

(2) . Previous years impairment has been accounted for under Equity.

(3) . Softwares have been included under Computer and ÎT Equipment and depreciated accordingly since the IT Equipment were purchased with the software.
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5 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

2017-2018 2016-2017

RS RS

Cash in Hand 180 690

Cash at Bank 91,474,867 66,473,167

91,475,047 66,473,857

6 RECEIVABLES FROM NON-EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
2017-2018 2016-2017

RS

Trade Fee Receivable

Advertising fee receivable

Amount Owed by Village Councils

RS
674,250

831,152
92,836

1,598,238

7 RECEIVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
2017-2018 2016-2017

Scavenging Fees (Receivable)

Loans and Advances - Car Loan - Current

Interest (Receivable)

RS
949,650

1,600,845

736,521

3,287,016

RS

7,056,752

7,056,752

Loans and Advances - Car Loan - Non-Current 3,730,781

8 INVENTORIES
2017-2018 2016-2017

RS RS

Inventories 3,780,438 1,154,893

3,780,438 1,154,893

9 INVESTMENTS
2017-2018 2016-2017

RS RS

Short Term Investments 66,288,909 50,294,713

66,288,909 50,294,713

The shortterm deposits in 2017/2018 pertaining to fixed deposits held with financial institutions have matured during 
the year. It is the Council's policy to invest its funds in Treasury Bills and/or Fixed Deposit.
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10 PREPAYMENT
2017-2018 2016-2017

RS RS

Advance payment for GPS/GIS 123,292 -

11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2017-2018 2016-2017

RS RS

Trade And Other Payables 16,546,442 11,832,808

Deposits - Deduction Account 217,437

General Deposits 2,576,623

Payments Received In Advance 492,641

Morcellement Deposit 2,399,630

Stale cheque 241,203

Retention Money on Contracts 3,353,234 2,617,463

22,968,940 17,308,541

12 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS - LONG TERM
2017-2018 2016-2017

RS RS

Provision for Unutilised Sick Leave Pay - current 4,468,582 5,000,000

Provision for Unutilised Vacation Leave Pay - current 917,450

Provision for Passage Benefit - current 6,175,797 6,175,797

11,561,829 11,175,797

Provision for Retirement Benefit - Non current 148,189,405 46,000,000

Provision for Unutilised Sick Leave Pay - Non current 22,028,514
Provision for Unutilised Vacation Leave Pay - Non current 24,351,020

194,568,939 46,000,000

Total 206,130,768 57,175,797

Amounts recognised in balance sheet at end of period/year: 2017-2018 2016-2017
RS RS

Defined benefit obligation 256,065,537 245,223,785

Fair value of plan assets ( 107,876,132 ) ( 87,446,068 )
Liability recognised in statement of financial

148,189,405 157,777,717
position at end of period/year

Amounts recognised in income statement:

Service cost:
Current service cost 8,354,162 8,342,991
Past service cost - -

(Employee contributions) ( 3,739,335 ) ( 3,624,720 )

Fund Expenses 242,732 207,028

Net Interest expense/(income) 10,153,957 9,837,570

Profit Loss Charge 15,011,516 14,762,869

Remeasurement:

Liability (gain)/loss ( 7,132,991 ) 402,094

Assets (gain)/loss ( 4,587,813 ) ( 402,094 )

Net Assets/Equity (N&E) ( 11,720,804 ) -

Total 3,290,712 14,762,869
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2017-2018 2016-2017
Movements in liability recognised in balance sheet: Rs Rs
At start of year 157,777,717 155,454,987
Amount recognised in P8<L 15,011,516 14,762,869
(Direct benefits paid by Employer) ( 5,401,569 ) ( 5,190,955 )

(Contributions paid by Employer) ( 7,477,455 ) ( 7,249,184 )

Amount recognised in NAE ( 11,720,804 ) 0

At end of period/year 148,189,405 157,777,717

The plan is a defined benefit arrangement for the employees and it is funded. The assets of the funded plan are held 
independently and administered by The State Insurance Company of Mauritius Ltd.

Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation

Present value of obligation at start of period/year 245,223,785 229,221,593

Current service cost 8,354,162 8,342,991

Interest cost 16,282,859 14,899,404

(Benefits paid) ( 6,662,278 ) ( 7,642,297 )

Liability (gain)Zloss ( 7,132,991 ) 402,094

Present value of obligation at end of period/year 256,065,537 245,223,785

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at start of period/year 87,446,068 73,766,606

Expected return on plan assets 6,128,902 5,061,834

Employer contributions 7,477,455 7,249,184

Employee contributions 3,739,335 3,624,720

(Direct Benefits paid by Employer) - -

(Benefits paid, Assurance, Fees and Other Outgoings) ( 1,503,441 ) ( 2,658,370 )

Asset gain/(loss) 4,587,813 402,094

Fair value of plan assets at end of period/year 107,876,132 87,446,068

Distribution of plan assets at end of period/year

Percentage of assets at end of year

Fixed Interest Securities and cash 59.50% 56.60%

Loans 3.70% 4.40%

Local equities 14.60% 15.80%

Overseas bonds and equities 21.60% 22.60%

Property 0.60% 0.60%

Total 100% 100%
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Additional disclosure on assets issued or used by the Council

Percentage of assets at end of period/year
Assets held in the entity’s own financial instruments 

Property occupied by the entity 
Other assets used by the entity

(%) (%)

2017-2018 
RS

2016-2017 
RS

Components of the amount recognised in NAE

Asset experience gain/(loss) during the period/year 
Liability experience gain/(loss) during the period/year

4,587,813
7,132,991

11,720,804

402,094
( 402,094 )

Year
Expected employer contributions (RS)

2018/2019
15,552,214

14 yearsWeighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation

(Calculated as a % change in PV of liabilities for a 1% change in discount rate)

The plan is exposed to actuarial risks such as : investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk. The risk 
relating to death in service benefits is re-insured.

The cost of of providing the benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Method. The principal assumptions used 
for the purpose of the actuarial valuation were as follows:

Discount rate
Future salary increases
Future pension increases
Mortality before retirement

Mortality in retirement 
Retirement age

6.64%
4.00%
3.00%

A 6770 Ultimate Tables

6.50%
4.00%
3.00%

PA (90) Tables rated down by 2 years

As per Second Schedule of Statutory Bodies Pension Funds Act

The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields on bonds.

Significant actuarial assumptions for determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected 
salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based reasonably on possible 
changes of the assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period.

- If the discount rate would be 100 basis points (one percent) higher (lower), the defined benefit obligation would 
decrease by Rs 31.9 M (increase by Rs 39.6 M) if all other assumptions were held unchanged.

- If the expected salary growth would increase (decrease) by 100 basis points, the defined benefit obligation would 
increase by Rs 18.1 M (decrease by Rs 15.7 M) if all assumptions were held unchanged.

- If life expectancy would increase (decrease) by one year, the defined benefit obligation would increase by Rs 6.5 M 
(decrease by Rs 6.5 M) if all assumptions were held unchanged.

In reality one might expect interrelationships between the assumptions, especially between discount rate and 
expected salary increases, given that both depends to a certain extent on expected inflation rates. The analysis above 
abstracts from these interdependence between the assumptions.
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13 Trade Fees

2017-2018 2016-2017

RS RS

Trade Fees 10,299,113 13,774,385

Occasional Licence 42,000 37,500

10,341,113 13,774,385

14 Advertising and Publicity Fees

2017-2018 2016-2017

RS RS

Advertising and Publicity Fees 17,318 2,394,903

17,318 2,394,903

15 Government Grant
2017-2018 2016-2017

RS RS

Government Grant 222,022,000 216,271,000

Project Related Grant and Capital Grant 41,083,537 225,000

263,105,537 216,496,000

Note: In FS 2016/17, Capital Grants were not credited through the Statement of Financial Performance.

16 Other Income - Non Exchange
2017-2018 2016-2017

17

Other Income - Miscellaneous Income

Cleaning of Bareland

Refund and Absences

Building and Land Use Permit

RS

41,962

114,891

156,853

RS

48,707

12,409

356,743

417,859

2017-2018 2016-2017

BLP Processing Fee

RS

54,910

RS

Building and Land Use Permit Fee 13,021,029 13,752,312

13,075,939 13,752,312
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18 Scavenging Fees
2017-2018 2016-2017

RS

3,196,400

3,196,400

Scavenging Fees

RS

3,105,900

3,105,900

19 Bus Toll Fees
2017-2018 2016-2017

RS B5

Bus Toll Fees 54,000 57,750

54,000 57,750

20 Rental Income
2017-2018 2016-2017

RS RS

Rent of District Council Building 96,000 96,000

96,000 96,000

21 Finance Income
2018 2017

RS RS

Interest from Investments 2,879,181 2,208,382

2,879,181 2,208,382

22 Burial and Incineration Fees
2017-2018 2016-2017

RS RS

Burial and Incineration Fees 601,500 310,000

601,500 310,000

23 Other Income - Exchange
2017-2018 2016-2017

RS RS

Erection of Monuments 72,750 81,250

Permit to run electric motors 27,300 50,200

Obstruction of Road 76,000 79,000

Interest Passage > 160,916

Interest on Car Loan 254,826

591,792 210,450
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24 COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES

Salaries and Wages

Extra Remuneration

Allowances

Sick Leave Refund

End of Year Bonus

Travelling and Transport

Overtime

StaffWelfare

Passage Benefit

Social Contributions

Gratuities and Pensions

Increase in Provision for Unutilised Sick Leave

Provision for Vacation Leave

Councillor's Allowance

25 UTILITIES COST

Electricity and Gas Charges

Water Charges

Telephone

26 MOTOR VEHICLE EXPENSES

Fuel and Oil
Repairs and Maintenance

27 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

Repairs and Maintenance

28 CLEANING SERVICES

Embellishment and Environment

Refuse Collection

2017-2018 2016-2017

RS RS

67,201,131 66,189,774

1,284,256 417,685

1,649,543 1,708,402

3,408,910 3,365,554

5,860,707 6,420,574

8,574,139 9,510,952

4,473,376 2,908,032

233,822 357,961

2,043,848 3,100,000

12,664,383 10,249,638

6,190,966 7,051,203

21,497,096 5,000,000

25,268,470 -

8,724,819 8,536,922

169,075,466 124,816,697

2017-2018 2016-2017

BS RS

17,315,791 16,389,578

243,932 238,501

883,581 852,122

18,443,304 17,480,201

2017-2018 2016-2017

RS RS
957,523 838,631
771,974 929,799

1,729,497 1,768,430

2017-2018 2016-2017

RS RS

7,189,968 7,612,110

7,189,968 7,612,110

2017-2018 2016-2017

fis RS
342,745 128,983

66,693,976 66,389,500

67,036,721 66,518,483
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31
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2017-2018 2016-2017

RS
1,942,000

173,764

Grant to Village Council

Contribution to Association of District Councils

Grant to Associations

rs
2,598,000

243,634

208,355

3,049,989 2,115,764

PROFESSIONAL AND LEGAL FEES
2017-2018 2016-2017

RS RS
Audit fee 412,500 275,000

Legal and Professional fees 1,170,400 788,070

1,582,900 1,063,070

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Depreciation 2,395,366 -

Impairment 12,194,584 -

14,589,950 -

GENERAL EXPENSES
2017-2018 2016-2017

RS RS
Printing, Postage & Stationery 1,142,694 960,581

Notice and Publications 174,201 255,217

Books and Periodicals 48,434 58,802

Committee expenses 146,118 124,764

Entertainment and Hospitality 31,229 24,777

Acquisition of Non Financial Assets - IT and Office Equipment - 2,930,639

Bank charges and fee 59,488 44,407

Local Disaster Management Expenses 66,828 33,345

Office Equipment - 217,095

Electoral Expenses 1,025,214

Fees to Evaluators 384,215 50,350

Hired and Contracted Services 1,732,077 1,240,794

Insurance 339,239 399,134

Rent 210,000 135,065

Social, Cultural, Sport and Educational Activities 602,491 694,243

Social Assistance 55,000 40,000

Independence Day Celebrations 1,474,344 225,000

Overseas Travel 599,887 184,776

Miscellaneous Expenses 296,454 255,176

Stock Adjustment - 458,704

7,362,699 9,358,083
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33 NET ASSETS/EQUITY

2017-2018 2016-2017

In accordance with
(GAAP) 

Not In accordance
IPSAS with IPSAS

RS RS

Capital Grants Applied 421,815,330 430,515,330

Other Reserves 21,499,416 21,499,416

Retirement Benefit Obligation -148,189,405 -46,000,000

Pension Fund 46,000,000 46,000,000

Renewal Fund 16,450,110 16,450,110

GRF Revenue Contribution 58,458,199 58,458,199

Reserve Fund-Accumulated Surplus/Deficit 13,384,499 10,584,403

Deficit/Surplus for the year 16,159,221 7,181,602

Net Asscts/Equity 445,577,370 544,689,060

Note: An amount of Rs 16,450,110 and Rs1,948,344 have been earmarked for expenditure of a capital nature for 

replacement and renewal of Property, Plant and Equipment and for fixing of Street Lanterns in new morcellement respectively.

34 RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES TO SURPLUS/DEFICIT
2017-2018

RS

Surplus/(Deficit); 23,668,858

Adjustment for depreciation and impairment on PPE 2,395,366

Changes in Assets and Liabilities;

Increase in receivables from exchanges transactions -1,666,171

Increase in receivables from non-exchanges transactions «1,598,238

Increase in inventories -2,625,544

Increase in trades and other payables from exchange and non-exchange transactions 1,953,179

Decrease in provisions and deferred revenue 46,765,566

68,873,016

35 HUMAN RESOURCE
2017-2018 2016-2017

Permanent and Pensionable employees 236 237

Part-time Employees 14 9

250 246

Female Employees 53 51

Male Employees __ 197 195

250 246

Vacant Funded Posts 9 1

Vacant Unfunded Posts 1 3

260 250
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36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The liability of the Council is not at stake in relation to pending litigation or disputes within the jurisdiction of Mauritius. There 
are no judicial and arbitration findings which has arisen. There are no contractual commitments, guarantees, indemnities 
which could affect the Council financially.

37 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Key Management personnel comprise of the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, District Councillors, 
the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive and Heads of Departments
Compensation of Key Management Personnel 2017-2018 

RS
2016-2017 

RS
CHAIRPERSON, DISTRICT COUNCIL 465,715 189,291
VICE CHAIRPERSON, DISTRICT COUNCIL 272,976 173,130
DISTRICT COUNCILLORS 2,189,572 2,100,721
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 1,115,442 1,817,677
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE 1,260,366 1,217,847
HEAD PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE DEPT 1,214,563 1,138,064
CHIEF HEALTH INSPECTOR 1,053,462 658,745
HEAD, LAND USE AND PLANNING DEPARTMENT 1,317,052 1,235,153
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT 1,082,410 1,098,091
PRINCIPAL WELFARE OFFICER 848,015 842,16110,413,572 10,470,073

38 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

As at the date of approval of the financial statements no such post balance sheet even was known which may 

materially effect the financial reporting and the fair and true view.

35
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